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Forward Looking Statements

Statements in this Annual Report that are not strictly historical in nature are forward-looking statements.
These statements include, but are not limited to, statements regarding Cymer's anticipated operating and
financial performance, including anticipated returns on and reductions in investments in research and
development and infrastructure, and expectations for average selling prices for products and 2004
revenues; the competitive advantages of Cymer's manufacturing efficiencies and the expected impact of
Cymer's new manufacturing facility and the facilities consolidation on Cymer’s future performance and
operating results; expected product and technology developments, including the development and
demand for new Cymer products, such as the XL Series and the ELS 7010, and their anticipated
performance, expectations for Cymer's MOPA technology, such as its impact on cost of light source
operations, its extension to KrF and F, applications and its applicability to immersion lithography, price
trends for KrF light sources, competitors’ product development, the impact of the current photolithography
roadmap and anticipated benefits and challenges facing immersion technology; semiconductor and
related industry and market projections, including the anticipated impact of increasing inventories of
spares and consumables and the utilization of DUV tools worldwide, and projections made by third
parties; the anticipated impact of Cymer organizational changes; and Cymer’s business and operating
strategies. These statements are only predictions based on current information and involve a number of
risks and uncertainties. Actual events may differ materially from those projected in such statements due
to various factors, including, but not limited to: the demand for semiconductors in general, and, in
particular, for leading-edge devices with smaller geometries; the performance and market acceptance of
Cymer's new products or technologies; the timing of customer orders, shipments and acceptances;
delays or cancellations by customers of their orders; Cymer’s ability o meet its production and product
development schedules; Cymer’s ability to secure adequate supplies of critical components for its
products; the rate at which semiconductor manufacturers take delivery of photolithography tools from
Cymer's customers; new and enhanced product offerings by competitors; and Cymer's ability to manage
its expense levels and unanticipated expenses. For a discussion of these and other factors that may
cause our actual events or results to differ from those projected, please refer to Cymer’s most recent
annual report on Form 10-K, as well as other subsequent filings with the Securities and Exchange
Commission.
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About Cymer

Cymer is the world's leading supplier of deep ultraviolet (DUV) light sources used in semiconductor manufacturing.
Our products provide the essential light source for DUV photolithography systems. We supply light sources to all
three DUV photolithography system manufacturers who in turn supply wafer steppers and scanners to chipmakers.
More than 80 chipmakers around the world now use Cymer light sources in production. With a worldwide installed
base exceeding 2,200 systems, Cymer supports its customers through approximately 50 locations around the globe,
providing them with service, technical support and training, as well as consumables and spare parts. Cymer's strong
intellectual property position includes 197 patents issued in the United States and another 79 U.S. patents pending,
and 267 foreign patents issued with 317 foreign patents applied for as of December 31, 2003.




~Letter to Shareholders

To Our Shareholders:

Though 2003 was a challenging and often
difficult year, it was also a year of significant
accomplishment and preparation.

In the first half of this challenging vear,
unexpected push outs of system orders into
subsequent  quarters  resulted in  the
unpredictability of projecting shipment and
revenue levels even on a short-term basis.
Business visibility continued to be less than one
quarter while the landscape seemed to shift first
one way, then another.

in April, we implemented a reduction in our
employee workforce, refocused our product
portfolio, implemented tighter company-wide
cost controls, and began the facilities
consolidation that would take place over the next
several quarters. We wrote off various
corporate assets in the second quarter. During
the third quarter we wrote off approximately
$15.6 million in tenant improvements associated
with vacating two older San Diego facilities after
we had completed building and moving into our
new 265,000 square foot manufacturing facility
in San Diego, which we call CSD6. These
actions contributed to improved overall operating
results and margins moving into 2004.

Fortunately, challenges and difficulties can also
present opportunities. We used 2003 to prepare
for the semiconductor industry upturn we
believed would soon materialize. We officially
opened our Korean chamber refurbishment
facility early in the year; we shipped the first of
our XL Series products, the XLA 100, which is
based on our revolutionary MOPA (Master
Oscillator Power Amplifier) dual-chamber
technology; and we built and occupied CSD6.
Each of these is a significant achievement in
itself, and combined they have put Cymer in
what may be our strongest, most competitive
position to date, and have given us the
opportunity to maximize the return on these
investments in the coming upturn.

In the remainder of this letter, we'll discuss the
challenges, difficulties, achievements and
opportunities of 2003 in more detail. We'll

review our financial results and operating and
other highlights for the year. Then, in the
section titled "Building for Our Future,” we’ll
review the changes we made during the
extended downturn of 2001 to 2003 to prepare
to realize the opportunity the current upturn
should provide to enhance the bottom line. This
section will include a discussion of our two
newer facilities, the Korean chamber
refurbishment facility and CSD®86, both of which
officially began production in 2003. Finally, in
the section titled “The New Lithography
Roadmap,” we'll review the significant
technology changes in the lithography roadmap
that took place during 2003, and how Cymer's
technical leadership will position us for the
future.

A Review of the Trends in 2003

As 2003 began, there was a broad-based
anticipation among companies in  the
semiconductor capital equipment sector that we
would soon see orders increasing and an end to
the volatile market conditions we had suffered
through since the middle of 2002. Anticipation
faded as the unpredictable business trends that
had developed in the latter half of 2002
persisted into the early months of 2003.

There were many conflicting signs of business
activity in 2003. Some chipmakers announced
cuts to their capital spending budgets, while
others announced increases. There was no
clear direction in capital spending across the
whole semiconductor industry. We all knew that
if the capital equipment sectcr were to see
revenue improvement at all in 2003, orders
would have to increase by the middle of the
year.

Unfortunately, the upturn seemed to be receding
further into the future rather than arriving sooner.
Chipmakers’ fab utilization rates remained in the
lackluster 55 percent to 65 percent range early
in the year. Technology buys for 130 nanometer
(nm) and 90 nm applications dominated the
order book and there was no sign of a return to
capacity-driven orders. Our business in the first
half of 2003 was characterized by a low volume
of technology buys and capacity push-outs. Our




visibility into our business future was generally
limited to less than one quarter. Though the first
quarter’s 56 light source shipments seemed low,
in the second quarter, we shipped only 31 light
sources, and only 34 in the third quarter. We
hadn’t seen this low a volume of system
shipments since 1996.

As a result, Cymer posted net losses for the first
three quarters of 2003, as well as a loss for the
full year — the first annual net loss we have
recorded as a public company. Several other
conditions exacerbated the difficulty of making a
profit with the volume of system shipments this
low.

o First, we had decided to invest in
research and development (R&D) at a
significantly higher leve! than targeted in
our business model in order to have the
most technologically advanced, highest
value added products developed and
available for volume production when
the upturn began. Throughout 2003, we
invested more than $58 million, or 22
percent of revenue, in R&D — when our
business model called for a maximum
R&D investment of 18 percent.
Although this affected the bottom line
significantly, this expenditure allowed us
to complete the development of the XL
Series platform and bring the first XL
product, the XLA 100, to market on
schedule. It also helped us learn how to
build the XLA 100 efficiently in a
downturn so that we can better meet
high industry demand in an upturn.
We'll discuss the importance of
completing this development effort in
2003 in more detail below.
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Second, cost of materials for the XLA
100 was higher than we originally.
anticipated, which had a significant
negative effect on gross margins in the
second and third quarters of the year.
(The second quarter gross margin fell to
16 percent, the second iowest quarterly
gross margin the company had ever
recorded.) These lower gross margins
were due to the perfect storm of higher
material costs, the complexity of building
this revolutionary system in a low
volume environment, and the learning
curve required to bring the XLA 100's
manufacturing efficiency up to our
standard levels. We partially offset
these issues with increased efficiency,
better cost controls and lower material
costs during the third and fourth
quarters of 2003, which led to the
substantial gross margin improvements
reported in those two quarters. It's
interesting to note that with every
introduction of a completely new Cymer
model or product line, we experience a
certain  level of  manufacturing
inefficiency as we progress along the
production learning curve until we reach
manufacturing maturity, which usually
occurs in about the fourth quarter after
product introduction. In 2003, these
inefficiencies were magnified by the low
volume of system shipments and the
fact that the XLA 100 made up such a
high percentage of system shipments in
the second and third quarters.

We consolidated our San Diego facilities
in the third quarter, vacating two older
buildings including  our  former
manufacturing facility, which
necessitated the write-down of tenant
improvements in those buildings during
the quarter. This added $15.6 million to
our selling, general and administrative
{SG&A) expenses in that quarter, and
augmented our operating loss for the
third quarter and the full year.
Additionally, the fact that we are still
paying the leases on our two older
facilities while we work to find a new
tenant to take over those facilities is
contributing approximately $1 million per
quarter of additional expense in SG&A.
Needless to say, we plan to find a new
tenant for those facilities as quickly as




possible. Our facilities consolidation will
have a long-term net positive impact on
our operating costs, cash flows, and
financial results, however. We reduced
the space we occupy in San Diego from
577,000 square feet to 400,000 square
feet within two buildings, which we own
rather than lease.

Signs of an Upturn

During the third quarter, signs of an approaching
upturn became more evident. Chip factory
utilization rose during the quarter and the
utilization of our light sources leveled off at
historically high rates, which drove our non-
systems product revenue to new record highs as
a percentage of total revenue. Some
chipmakers announced their intentions to fill out
existing production lines or to equip new ones.
New systems orders rose in the third quarter
and continued their upward climb in the fourth
quarter. The volatility and unpredictability that
had become a staple of the downturn receded
as visibility improved. More chipmakers
announced increases to their capital spending
plans for 2004 and our direct customers
announced rapidly  increasing  backlogs.
Through the end of the fourth quarter of 2003,
and early in the first quarter of 2004, it became
increasingly obvious that the longest, steepest
downturn in semiconductor industry history was
finally over.

Operating Resuits for 2003

During 2003, we shipped a total of 163 light
sources, which is a 42 percent decline from the
282 light sources shipped in 2002. The decline
in unit volume was partially offset by a 34
percent increase in our currency adjusted
average selling price (ASP) and by a 24 percent
increase in non-systems product revenue, to
$105.5 million in 2003 from $84.9 million in
2002,

Revenue in 2003 totaled $267.5 million, an eight
percent decrease from 2002 total revenue of
$290.2 million. The net loss for 2003 was $15.4
million, equal to a loss of $0.44 per share
(diluted), compared to 2002 net income of $13.6
miilion, equal to $0.39 earnings per share
(diluted).
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Continuing ASP Growth

Since introducing our first lithography light
source for volume production in 1995, we have
enjoyed ongoing growth in our ASPs. By the
time we were in the third year of the downturn in
2003, need for any but the most advanced
capacity-related krypton fluoride (KrF) light
sources had all but disappeared, and the
majority of light source shipments in the middle
quarters of the year were XLA 100s, our latest
argon fluoride (ArF) products based on our
MOPA architecture. Because these light
sources had been introduced with a price of
$1.475 million, their dominance of shipments in
the second and third quarters raised our
currency adjusted ASPs in those quarters to
more than $1 million. For the full year 2003, our
currency-adjusted ASP reached $963,000, a 34
percent increase over the $716,000 currency-
adjusted ASP recorded in 2002.

Looking forward into 2004, we expect ASPs to
be reduced due to the substantial increase in
orders and anticipated shipments of capacity-
related KrF light sources with lower selling




prices. In fact, we have projected an ASP of
approximately $810,000 for the first quarter of
2004. The degree to which the ASP rises in
later quarters depends on our returning to a
more balanced order environment, where orders
for ArF light sources increase and orders for our
newly announced KrF product, the ELS-7010,
which carries a higher selling price than our
older 6000 series light sources, become a more
significant part of the order mix.
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XLA Adoption: A 2003 Success Story

One of the major highlights of 2003 was the
successful introduction and adoption of the XLA
100, the first product in our planned XL Series of
light sources based on the revolutionary duai-
discharge chamber MOPA technology.

We announced this new technology in March of
2002. At that time, we discussed the challenges
the industry was facing in light source
development. The industry needed light sources
that provided both higher power and a narrower
bandwidth of light. The problem, simply stated,
is that these two requirements were becoming
increasingly difficult to satisfy in a single light
source: higher power would distort or disrupt a
system’s ability to create a narrow bandwidth of
light. Our solution to this problem was to create
a light source with two chambers, each
dedicated to one of these tasks. The first
chamber, much like a pre-amp in a stereo
component system, creates a high fidelity optical
signal with highly narrowed bandwidth. This
light is then passed on to the power amplifier,
which, much like the amplifier in a stereo system
that is capable of driving power-hungry
speakers, amplifies the power of the light to the
levels necessary to give the chipmakers the
throughput needed. As an additional benefit,
this approach significantly reduces the wear on
either chamber, considerably extending their

| ®@ Nanolith 7000

usable lifetimes, which in turn reduces system
cost of operation for chipmakers.

As we had anticipated, our MOPA products
proved to be very compelling and they quickly
became the mainstay of our light source
shipments during 2003. By vyear-end they
accounted for approximately 42 percent of total
system shipments for the entire year, and have
now been installed in more than 20 fabs
globally. We anticipate orders for the XL Series
light sources to increase during the current year
after the initial wave of capacity-related orders
has been filled and chipmakers return to a more
balanced order pattern.
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Leading in New Product Development

One of our most successful ongoing strategies
has been the rapid technology development and
commercialization of new light sources. Our
development goal has always been to obsolete
our own products (and in the process, those of
our competitors) before our competitors can do
so. This strategy continued during 2003. While
we were striving to achieve the necessary
manufacturing efficiencies with the XLA 100, at
the same time we were developing a new and
enhanced XL Series product, the XLA 105,
which we announced during the first quarter of
2004.

Both the XLA 100 and the XLA 105 offer 40
Watts (W) of output power. They differ in that
the XLA 100’s bandwidth is 0.25 picometers
{pm), while the XLA 105 offers 0.20 pm
bandwidth and greater capability to work with
higher numerical aperture (NA), higher
resolution lenses. Other differences are that the
XLA 105 has a pulse duration of </= 70
nanoseconds, roughly twice the pulse duration
of the XLA 100, and that it offers appreciably
longer module lifetimes, and therefore lower cost




of consumables (CoC), than its predecessor.
Longer pulse duration further reduces any
possibilities of lens material damage due to the
light itself. We expect demand for the XLA 105
to grow significantly moving forward.

We're driving our product leadership further
forward in 2004. While our competitors are still
planning their first generation introductions of
dual chamber ArF products, we're making
strides in succeeding generations of our XL
Series product platform. During the first quarter
of 2004, we shipped the XLA 105, our second-
generation dual stage ArF light source. We are
currently engineering the XLA 200 — our third-
generation MOPA product that targets super
high NA ArF in volume production as well as the
early ArF immersion process development
market — and the XLA 300, our fourth-generation
XL Series product that targets the high volume
production ArfF immersion market. (An
explanation of ArF immersion lithography can be
found on p. 14.) You can expect that each of
these products will offer higher power output
than our current XL Series products, as well as
narrower bandwidth and other performance
enhancements designed to be very compelling
to customers when these products are released.

As expected, the KrF wavelength is rapidly
becoming the workhorse in chipmakers’ fabs,
patterning more and more layers on the wafer
every year. It might be expected, therefore, that
KrF would become more of a commadity, which
would encourage greater competition. However,
in response to these competitive pressures at
this wavelength, we recently announced the ELS
7010, a higher power, narrower bandwidth
enhancement of the ELS 7000. It addresses the
high NA, high productivity next generation KrF
scanners being developed by our direct
customers and will provide them and
chipmakers with longer module lifetimes, lower
cost of consumables and lower total cost of
ownership than the ELS 7000. Chipmakers’
response to this new product has been very
positive, and we expect 1o begin shipping the
ELS 7010 in the middle of 2004.

Because the future timing of (or even the need
for) fluorine (F») lithography came into question
during 2003 and remains an unknown today
(see the roadmap discussion beginning on page
13), we have put on hoid our efforts to
commercialize products at this wavelength,
continue  our

although  we scientific

investigations. You may remember that in 2000
we shipped two F; systems and have a strong
intellectual property position in this technology.
if and when it becomes evident that our
customers need a production-worthy F, light
source in volume, we will be ready to begin
productizing it on the XL platform at the
appropriate time.

We continued our extreme ultraviolet (EUV)
source development efforts throughout the
downturn, working diligently to have a
production-worthy light source offering well
before the industry is ready to adopt it in
production late in this decade or early in the next
one. In late January of 2004 we announced a
development agreement with Intel Corporation
to accelerate the availability of a production-
worthy EUV source in support of EUV
lithography for their 32 nm node in 2009. Under
this agreement, Intel will provide Cymer with a
total of $20 million in funding over the next three
years, which we will use to offset part of our
EUV developmental expenses over that time
period. This will increase the total funding being
invested in EUV source development at Cymer
without impairing our ability to invest
concurrently in the right DUV technologies.

Our unique market leadership position, strong
financial position, and the additional outside
EUV development funding allows us to invest at
all four wavelengths without having to
compromise  between  short-term  market
requirements and long-term  technology
investment. it allows us to support the
aggressive lithography roadmap while staying
within the R&D expense levels targeted in our
financial model.

Growing Installed Base

We installed 231 new light sources at
chipmakers and other end users in 2003, a 19
percent reduction from 284 light sources
installed in 2002. As of December 31, 2003, we
had 2,217 light sources instailed worldwide.

On a regional basis, our light sources were
installed in 2003 as follows:

¢ 64 in the United States

o 41inJapan

e 53 in Korea

s 20 in Taiwan

¢ 16 in the People’s Republic of China




e 29in Europe, and
¢ 8in Singapore.
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Though the U.S. and Korea were the strongest
regions for our light source installations in 2003,
Japan showed a great deal of strength in the
second half of the year. The People’s Republic
of China (PRC) has shown rapid growth over the
last two years and, based on the number of
chipmakers announcing fabs planned for China
and Chinese chipmakers’ planned expansion, it
is likely this will be a strong area of growth for
some time.

We estimate that the rolling four-quarter share of
Cymer light sources installed at chipmakers as
of December 31, 2003 was approximately 87
percent. Moving forward, we believe that
capacity-driven ArF buys for full production 300
mm scanners will be powered by our XL series
light sources based on our dual stage MOPA
technology. Our XL strategy and products have
positioned Cymer very well in the ArF segment
of the lithography market in the current upturn.

Expanding Our Global Infrastructure

Our global service and support infrastructure is
another unique competitive advantage that
continues to position us well in our marketplace.
Though the basic infrastructure has been in
place and has served our chipmaker customers
well for a number of years, we enhance it
continuously. Early in 2003, we copened a new
office in Shanghai, to position ourselves strongly
in the growing market in the People’s Republic
of China. This office will allow us to respond
quickly and efficiently to our direct customers,
each of which has established a presence in
China. And with this office located close to
Jeading chipmakers and foundries, we can also
provide them with the comprehensive service,
support and process expertise they have come

to expect of us. Being able to respond quickly,
we can help reduce costly tool downtime and
ensure that our already highly reliable light
sources are consistently running at optimum
praoductivity levels, providing chipmakers with
the maximum return on their light source

© investment.

New Manufacturing Facilities

In addition to the Shanghai office, we expanded
our global manufacturing capabilities with the
official opening of our Korean chamber
refurbishment facility in January of 2003 and
with the completion of CSD6 in San Diego later
in the year. These facilities are discussed in
detail in the section beginning on page 10.

Enhancing Our Corporate Structure

Late in 2003, we enhanced the corporate
business-unit structure we had put in place
during the previous year. It had become evident
that we could achieve greater efficiencies by
consolidating the manufacturing groups in our
Lithography Systems Solutions and
Semiconductor Manufacturing Solutions
business units. The Manufacturing Operations
Business Unit, led by Executive Vice President
Jim Caltrider, was created with the responsibility
to achieve the highest possible level of
manufacturing efficiency, the greatest level of
material cost control, and a high degree of
manufacturing flexibility through a significant
reduction in our product lead times.

During 2003, we successfully reduced our
average light source lead time to two to three
months. This means that if one of our direct
customers needs a light source at the end of
March, they now only need to order it in
January, and not before. Our lead time
reduction has aligned us with lead time
reduction efforts at all three of our direct
customers.

We believe this gives us a critical competitive
advantage because it means our customers can
do business with us more cost-effectively. They
not only need to carry less inventory, but they
now ailso have the flexibility to delay final
scanner configuration decisions, to make sure
they get exactly the product they want, without
incurring additional costs for this benefit. 1t has
a positive financial impact on Cymer as well,
because producing light sources more quickly



allows us to maintain a lower components and
subsystems inventory level. We have seen the
benefits of this with improved material
management and flow as well as reduced
material costs.

At the end of September we announced that Dr.
Anthony (Tony) Yen joined us as Senior Vice
President of Lithography Market Development.
Tony came to us after an approximate two-year
assignment at International Sematech (ISMT),
where he served as co-director of the
lithography division, and was responsible for
developing and executing the ISMT lithography
strategy to take semiconductor technology down
to the 32 nm node. Prior to his ISMT
assignment, Tony served for five years as
department manager of Advanced Lithography
Technology at Taiwan Semiconductor
Manufacturing Co. (TSMC).

We are extremely pleased to add another world-
class lithography expert of Tony’s caliber to our
already outstanding team. Anyone familiar with
our industry knows how highly he is regarded in
the lithography sector. Tony's years of
experience with some of the world's leading
chipmakers, coupled with his extensive
knowledge of advanced lithography technology
and collaborative leadership of large, complex
organizations will enhance our leadership
position and competitive strength as we move
forward to develop next-generation lithography
technologies.

Robert S. Gisburne

The Cymer family was saddened in September
of 2003 ‘when Robert S.
Gisburne, our Vice President of Procurement,
was killed in the crash of his private aircraft.
Bob had served Cymer for three years and was
an extremely valuable contributor and a great
person to work with. His legacy at Cymer is the
strong procurement group he built. In honor of
Bob's many contributions — and in tribute to his
epitomizing Cymer's corporate values of
integrity, teamwork, drive for innovation, passion
to succeed and balance through humor ~ we
have dedicated our quarterly Values in Action
employee awards in his name. Bob was only
44 years old and he will be greatly missed.

Ongoing Strong Financial Condition

The importance of a strong balance sheet
becomes even more significant during a
prolonged downturn such as the one just ended.
You, our shareholders, want to know that Cymer
can weather the storms of the volatile
semiconductor cycle. At the same time, our
customers need to know that we have the
financial staying power to be here to support
them in good times and bad.

As of December 31, 2003, cash, cash
equivalents and short- and long-term
investments totaled $401.6 million and working
capital totaled approximately $397.8 million.
During the year, we paid off the balance of our
revolving loan, leaving our $250 million
convertible subordinated notes, issued in
February 2002, as our only long-term debt.
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For 2003, capital spending totaled $62.8 million,
and depreciation and amortization totaled $30.9
million. Capital spending for the year was high
due to the construction of the CSD6 facility in
San Diego and the purchase of XLA 100
production equipment throughout the year.

Conclusion and Outlook

For all of the challenges and difficulties we
experienced during 2003, the year ended
positively and we returned to profitability in the
fourth quarter. We were pleased with the pick-
up in business activity that began during the
fourth quarter and the progress we made in
controlling our expenses while executing our
plan.

We believe we are very well positioned to make
the most of this upturn. Over the past two and a
half years we completed several key significant
investments that we expect will pay substantial




operating and competitive dividends during the
upturn. Discussed in more detail beginning on
page nine, these include:

e The development of the revolutionary
MOQOPA technology and the XL platform

s The production ramp of the XLA 100
model ArF light source

e The construction of our refurbishment
factory in Korea

e The construction of CSD-6 and our San
Diego facilities consolidation, and

e Our ongoing efficiency improvements.

It has been almost three years since we made
our decision to take the quantum jump to the
two-stage MOPA technology for our future
products. Because our competitors have only
recently decided to follow our technology lead
and product path, we are in the unique position
of offering the only full-production 40 W ArF light
source. We are also in a strong competitive
position for leading edge KrF, with the improved
performance and power of the ELS-7010
planned for mid-2004 shipment. Looking at the
overall picture, we believe that we are positioned

A

Pascal Didier
President & COQO

Robert P. Akins
Chairman & CEO

well to maintain our market leadership this
upturn.

The positive order momentum we experienced
in the latter half of 2003 improved our visibility
as well. We have not seen a significant
slowdown in orders for the spares and
consumables needed for ongaing support of our
light sources in the field. It appears that fab
managers are increasing their inventories of
consumables and spares in order to avoid
unnecessary downtime in the future. As for
new light sources, the broad-based expansion of
applications expected in 2004, the virtually full-
capacity utilization of DUV production tools
worldwide, the firming of chip prices, and our
present order environment lead us to anticipate
a record revenue year for the company in 2004.

We would like 1o take this opportunity to thank
our dedicated Cymer employees for their hard
work, perseverance, and commitment to getting
the job done no matter the circumstances during
these past three, difficult years. We would also
like to thank our customers, suppliers and
shareholders for their confidence and support.

ﬂW}M

Nancy J. Baker
Sr. Vice President & CFO



Building Our Future

Ready to Seize the Opportunity

During the protracted and severe semiconductor
industry downturn we continued to take
appropriate actions and make appropriate
investments to position our company more
competitively in the lithography industry and to
streamline our operations to enhance the return
on investment for all of our stakeholders.

MOPA Technology and XL Platform
Development

Our greatest single technical achievement
during this period, and the one that is most
important to Cymer's future, was the
development of our revolutionary Master
Oscillator Power Amplifier (MOPA) technology
that provides the foundation for our XL Series
product platform.

MOPA Dual-Chamber Architecture

The MOPA technology is unique and represents
a paradigm shift for us and our industry. MOPA
is based on the use of two discharge chambers
within a single light source enclosure. All of our
previous products utilized a single discharge
chamber. However, as the semiconductor
industry’s demands grew for higher power and a
narrower bandwidth from the light source,
meeting those demands became more difficult.
A narrower bandwidth enables improved lens
focus and resolution of the circuitry on the wafer,
while higher power reduces wafer exposure
times and improves throughput — but therein lies
the problem: striving for a more narrowed

bandwidth would result in lowering the average
power of a single chamber design.

The MOPA architecture solves this problem by
utilizing two discharge chambers within the
same light source. The first chamber, the
Master Osciilator, produces light of very narrow
bandwidth but at very low power. The light is
then passed into the Power Amplifier, where the
power is boosted without distorting the narrow
bandwidth. This approach solves many of the
problems the industry was expecting to face and
it does so with a significantly lower CoC, which
in turn lowers chipmakers’ cost of light source
operation (Co0).

The MOPA technology was developed
concurrently with the XL product platform, the
first such development in Cymer's history. The
platform includes the enclosure, the optical
table, power supplies, gas management system,
cooling system, control system, wiring
harnesses and other components. As the
industry progresses along Moore’s Law of ever-
shrinking circuit size, requiring light sources with
shorter wavelengths and narrower bandwidths,
higher power, etc., each of our new XL Series
products will require that only a few specific
modules need be modified — such as the
chamber and optics modules. In the past, we
have engineered each new product from the
ground up, whereas we will now be developing
each new product on our XL platform simply by
changing only the required modules.

We began developing the MOPA technology in
the spring of 2001. We announced it in the
spring of 2002 and delivered the first system on
February 1, 2003. From 2001 to 2003, we
invested over $190 million in R&D, which
represented 22 percent, 25 percent, and 22
percent of revenue in 2001, 2002, and 2003,
respectively. During those three years, the lion's
share of our R&D investment and resources
went toward MOPA and XL platform
development.

Though this has been a significant investment,
we believe it will pay ongoing dividends for many
years:




o First, the XL platform simplifies and
accelerates new product development,
because the product platform remains
the same. Only a few modules need to
be modified to meet a new product’s
specifications, costing less and
shortening the time to market.

* The MOPA technology lends itself
ideally for use in immersion lithography
applications (see more on this on
pages 13 to 15 below). We won't need
to develop a new immersion product
from the ground up, but can modify the
necessary modules to meet new
specifications.

o The MOPA technology is extendable to
the KrF and F, wavelengths, if the
industry’s needs require the further
extension of KrF (using immersion)
and/or the use of F,.

Overall, our successful development of the
MOPA technology and XL platform mean that
we will have much lower DUV R&D and product
development costs moving forward. They have
also greatly enhanced our competitiveness
because neither of our competitors currently
offers a MOPA type product, and neither is
expected to introduce such a product until late
2004 at the earliest. This gives Cymer a
commanding lead in ArF volume production

tools during the current upturn, since we are the .

only supplier with a 40 W, production ArF light
source on the market.

investing in New Facilities
In addition to investing in R&D during the

downturn, we also built two new manufacturing
facilities designed for our specific needs.
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During 2002, we completed construction of a
25,000 square foot chamber refurbishment
facility near Seoul, South Korea. We qualified
the plant for manufacturing by the end of the
year and shipped the first chambers in early
2003. With more than half of our installed base
located in the greater Asia/Pacific region, this
plant allows us to respond more quickly and
cost-effectively to our chipmaker customers’
needs. The facility is capable of refurbishing
chambers for any of our light source modeis and
enables our San Diego manufacturing facility to
focus on new light source system production.

This dedicated chamber refurbishment facility

significantly expands the world-class
infrastructure that our customers have come to
rely on. It enables us to provide improved
service, through faster turnaround times, in a
high-volume, lower-cost manufacturing
environment. We own this building and the
construction costs were recognized in 2002.

We began building our new San Diego
manufacturing facility, CSD8, in the late summer
of 2002. Designed specifically and purposefully
for our unique manufacturing requirements, the
265,000 square foot facility was put on fast track
construction by San Diego County — which
accelerated the permit and inspection process —
and set a West Coast record for construction of
buildings of its size. We began occupying and
using some of the manufacturing area in April of
2003; we completed construction in August and
had completely moved in by the end of
September, vacating our older San Diego
buildings in the process. Cymer's total cost for
building and equipping CSD6 was approximately



$60 million, which was fully paid for from our
cash reserves.

We are already enjoying many benefits of a
facility —specifically designed for efficient
manufacturing of our XL Series products,
including:

¢ Increased manufacturing flexibility. We
are currently manufacturing the XLA
100, the XLA 105, and several different
models of KrF  light sources
simultaneously, along with a number of
different modules specific to each light
source. As the product mix changes,
we can quickly reconfigure an area of
the plant without having any efficiency
or product quality impact on other
manufacturing areas.

¢ Reduced lead and cycle times.
Compared to manufacturing in the old
facility, the flexibility we have in CSD86
allows us to ramp production more
quickly and easily. It has also allowed
us to reduce lead times and cycle times
significantly. Moving forward, we expect
further efficiency improvements in
product manufacturing cycle time,
quality improvement and overall better
material management and flow.

e Improved product yields. Our first-pass
yields are improving noticeably because
of the new cleanroom and the new
cleanroom processes associated with it.

In addition, CSD6 enabled our facilities
consolidation in the second half of 2003. We
vacated two older buildings including our former
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manufacturing facility, as well as our leased
warehouse. We reduced the number of
buildings we occupy in San Diego from five to
two and cut our square footage from 577,000 to
400,000 square feet. Becausé we own the two
buildings we now occupy, our facilities cash
flows will be lower going forward.

Overall, we've realized significant benefits from
the construction of these two facilities. We've
reduced our inventory requirements, reduced
our lead times, enhanced our manufacturing
efficiency and provided our customers with the
benefits derived from this flexibility. We believe
these facilities will meet our manufacturing
needs for years to come and we anticipate that
capital expenditures in 2004 will return to our
normal historical levels of between $20 million
and $30 million per year.

Expanding Our Product Offerings and Global
Infrastructure

We now have a portfolio of KrF and ArF
products that offers a wide range of features,
benefits, and prices to enable chipmakers to
choose the product that is best for their fab and
application. This further enhances our
competitiveness and our market leadership.

In addition to the two new manufacturing
facilities, we expanded our global service and
support infrastructure in a key market with the
opening of our Shanghai office in the spring of
2003. As you know, this support infrastructure
differentiates us from our competitors, who have
not yet invested in comparable infrastructures of
their own to support their chipmaker customers.
It is another strong competitive advantage for us
and is another factor chipmakers consider in
making their decisions on which light source to
choose for their scanner purchases. We do not
foresee needing to make any additional
expenditures on our facilities infrastructure
during the current upturn.

Enhancing Efficiencies
Costs

and Controlling

During the downturn, we made every effort to
control costs and improve our productivity. We
made cost-saving decisions on product
development, focused our investment on
products where we believed the return would be
greatest, and temporarily ceded market share to
the competition in certain low-volume, niche




markets to avoid the expense of developing a
product for which there would be little demand.
This has positioned us strongly for product
leadership during the upturn.

We consolidated our San Diego facilities and
eliminated unnecessary offices in other regions.
We implemented stringent, company-wide cost
controls that will help maximize profitability
during the upturn. Our ongoing efficiency
enhancements achieved through improved
business processes have allowed us to continue
to get the job done throughout the downturn in
spite of significant headcount reduction. As a
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result, our staffing plan to manage our business
in this upturn is substantially lower today than
the same plan of record two years ago.

Overall, we believe we are entering this upturn
with the most efficient operations and in the
strongest competitive position in Cymer’s
history. What's more, we're doing so with the
vast majority of the investment required to put us
in this position behind us. We intend to seize
the growth opportunity the upturn will offer and
to return as much of that opportunity as possible
to the bottom line to maximize shareholder
value.




The New Lithography Roadmap

A number of years ago, the International
Technology Roadmap for Semiconductors
(ITRS) identified four wavelengths of light for
semiconductor lithography: beginning at 248
nanometers (nm), and continuing to 193 nm,
157 nm, and 13.5 nm. These are, of course, the
four wavelengths at which Cymer has either
developed its high volume production light
sources or done significant research. Though
evolutionary changes have taken place in this
roadmap over the vyears, 2003 saw a
revolutionary change with the acceptance of ArF
“immersion” lithography as a realizable
production technique within the next few years.
Because of the importance of the ITRS roadmap
to Cymer's product roadmap and our R&D
efforts and expenditures, a brief discussion of
these changes and what they mean to our future
is appropriate here.

this during the 1990s was the extension of the
use of I-line tools far beyond the geometries
originally thought to be their limit.

This delayed the expected adoption of DUV light
sources from about 1992 until about 1996.

The same technology extension has been
occurring more recently at the DUV
wavelengths. For example, the 1997 ITRS
showed that KrF light sources were expected to
be usable down to 150 nm, and possibly down
to 130 nm, although its use at that node was
uncertain. ArF light sources might begin to be
used at 150 nm, but would certainly be needed
by 130 nm, and F, light sources appeared as a
dotted line — meaning their use was uncertain —
at about 100 nm. This roadmap has undergone
evolutionary modifications as KrF has gradually

{0 Resolution
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Resolution/Wavelengh, nm

0.2

THE OPTICAL LITHOGRAPHY ROADMAP

Extending Existing Technology

For years, the semiconductor industry has
extended existing manufacturing technologies
whenever possible. The object has been to
avoid prematurely adopting new and more
expensive technologies and developing the
necessary processes and materials to make
them production realities. A good example of
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been extended to 100 nm, and now even 90 nm.
ArF  has found manufacturing application
beginning around 120 nm for some chipmakers,
and has been anticipated to extend down to 65
nm. However, through the use of immersion
technology, immersion ArF lithography will be
usable to at least 45 nm and possibly 32 nm
geometries.




ArF Immersion Lithography

Immersion lithography is based on an old
principle. In your high school biology class, your
teacher may have had you insert a drop of index
matching oil between the microscope’s lens and
the slides you were going to view, which
increased the contrast and clarity of the image.
Based on this principle, some chipmakers now
intend to use 193 nm immersion lithography to
extend the effective applicability of that
wavelength. In the immersion configuration, a
transparent fluid (in this case, water) is inserted
between the lowermost projection lens element
and the photoresist-coated wafer surface. The
water serves to better couple the light into the
photoresist and permits the realization of lens
designs of higher numerical aperture (NA) and
higher resolution and with improved depth of
focus than are achievable in the normal “dry”
configuration,

While conventional “dry” ArF projection ienses
are limited to practical NAs of less than one
(typically 0.92 to 0.93), immersion lens designs
could achieve NAs in the range of 1.1 10 1.3 and
beyond. A host of new technical challenges
needed to be resolved to accomplish this —
including the out-gassing of photoresists, visco-
elastic coupling between the wafer stage motion
and the lens, and turbulence and pressure
fluctuations in the water, among others.
Research done on immersion lithography by our
three direct customers indicate these challenges
can be overcome. As an example of how
revolutionary immersion technology is thought to
be, it was the hottest topic at the SPIE
Microlithography Conference in Santa Clara,
California in February 2004, and papers or
presentations on performance of prototype
immersion tools drew standing-room-only
crowds.

When successfully implemented, ArF immersion
will allow chipmakers to take advantage of their
rapidly growing knowledge base for ArF
patterning processes.

The industry has evaluated the challenges and
costs of ArF immersion tool design and
compared that to the challenges and costs of
production-worthy F, designs, which until
recently were thought to be the next generation
of technology. The industry now appears ready
to adopt immersion lithography, and this will
have a significant impact on the roadmap going
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forward — including the delay or potentiai
elimination of F, lithography. Based on our
internal analysis, however, pushing ArF to the
45-nm node or beyond in either dry or wet
configuration will require substantially higher
levels of optical performance, consistency, and
power from the light source, which will rely even
more on the capability of our MOPA design and
the scalability of our XL platform.

At our annual Lithography Symposium in
December 2003, held in Tokyo in conjunction
with SEMICON Japan, we had a lively panel
discussion on the lithography technology
roadmap for the 45-nm node and beyond. The
prestigious panel was comprised of ASML,
Canon and Nikon, several chipmakers (AMD,
Intel, NEC, Sony and TSMC) and a
representative of the mask community, Dai
Nippon Printing.

The panel’'s consensus was the following:

e Dry, or standard, ArF lithography will be
extended to 65 nm by the vast majority
of chipmakers. At least one chipmaker
plans to use high-NA dry ArF at 45 nm.

¢ Immersion technology will extend ArF to
the 45 nm node for the vast majority.

s At the 32-nm node, the prognostication
was less clear, and four alternatives
were identified:

(1) ArF immersion would be
extended further, using higher
NA lenses, more mask and
illumination technologies as well
as other processing tricks.

(2) F;  immersion  would be
introduced, in conjunction with
fewer resolution enhancement
technologies.

(3) Electron projection or proximity
electron lithography would be
used for specialized critical
layers (such as contact holes).

(4) As an alternative, accelerated
EUV lithography tools would be
available for insertion at this
node.




o Selection between the four alternatives
will be chipmaker-specific, with wafer
throughput and tool cost being major
considerations.

e For the 22-nm node the candidates
were narrowed to electron techniques
and EUV, with EUV identified as the

needed we will be able to develop such a
product quickly on the XL platform. With the
ITRS modifications and the industry moving
ahead with ArF immersion lithography, we have
been able to focus our R&D efforts and dollars
on the products that will provide the best return
on our investment. We also expect our R&D
expenses for DUV light sources to be

post-optical technology having the significantly reduced from expenditures during
greatest potential for high wafer the downturn, since so much of our DUV product
throughput. development going forward will be based on the
XL platform.
1TRS nods Hhnm S 80nm 0om 85nm [ A 32nm
e 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 w08 2009
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THE CYMER TECHNOLOGY ROADMAP

As you can appreciate, the tools and process
development for the 45-nm node will be very
challenging, but with high NA dry and wet ArF
technoliogy in the works, the solution paths seem
relatively clear. In contrast, for the 32-nm node
and below, the picture remains less well-defined.
What is clear is that the cost-effectiveness of
any such future solution is just as important as
its technical feasibility.

The development of this new lithography
roadmap and the industry’s decision to move
forward with ArF immersion lithography have
significantly changed our product roadmap,
putting even greater emphasis on our XL
platform-based products and MOPA technology.
We continue to develop new products and
enhancements to existing products in both KrF
and ArF technologies. Recently some
chipmakers have begun to examine the
feasibility of immersion KrF lithography, and
though those explorations are still in their very
early stages, if immersion KrF light sources are
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The EUV Roadmap

The roadmap projecting the insertion of EUV
light sources into production has also undergone
modification. in 1999, the ITRS estimated that
EUV light sources could be needed at about the
90 nm node, which the roadmap expected to
occur in 2006. Recently, the ITRS moved EUV
to the 32 nm node in 2013.

in January of this year, however, we announced
intel's funding to augment our EUV R&D (please
see page five in the “Letter to Shareholders” for
more detail). The purpose of the development
agreement is to accelerate the availability of a
production-worthy EUV source in support of
EUV lithography for the 32 nm node by 2009,
which coincides with Intel's more aggressive
roadmap.
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Forward-Looking Statements

Statements in this annual report on Form 10-K that are not strictly historical in nature are
forward-looking statements. These statements include, but are not limited to, references to
manufacturing activities; expected domestic and international product sales and development; service
and support; research and development activities and expenditures; adequacy of capital resources and
investments; effects of business cycles in the semiconductor business; competitive positioning; and
relationships with third-party manufacturers for product manufacturing, and may contain words such as
“believes,” “anticipates,” “expects,” and words of similar meaning. These statements are only predictions
based on current information and expectations and involve a number of risks and uncertainties. The
underlying information and expectations are likely to change over time. Actual events or results may
differ materially from those projected in the forward-looking statements due to various factors, including,
but not limited to, those set forth under the caption "Risks and Uncertainties That May Affect Results”
and elsewhere in this annual report on Form 10-K.

PART |
item 1. Business

Overview

Cymer is the world’s leading supplier of excimer light sources, the essential light source for deep
ultraviolet, (“DUV"), photolithography systems. DUV photolithography is a key enabling technology that
has allowed the semiconductor industry to meet the exacting specifications and manufacturing
requirements for volume production of today’s most advanced semiconductor chips. Cymer's light
source systems are incorporated into step-and-repeat (“steppers”) and step-and-scan (“scanners”)
photolithography systems for use in the manufacture of semicanductors with critical feature sizes below
0.35 microns. One micron equals one millionth of a meter. Cymer’s excimer light source systems
constitute a substantial majority of all excimer light sources incorporated in DUV photolithography tools.
Cymer’'s products consist of photolithography light source systems, replacement parts and service.
Cymer maintains a worldwide service organization that supports its installed base of light sources. As of
December 31, 2003, this installed base totaled 2,217 light sources. Cymer’s customers include ali three
manufacturers of DUV photolithography systems: ASM Lithography, Canon and Nikon.
Photolithography systems incorporating Cymer's excimer light sources have been purchased by each of
the world’s 20 largest semiconductor manufacturers: Fujitsu, Hynix, IBM, Infineon, intel, Matsushita,
Micron, Motorola, NEC, Qualcomm, Renesas Technology, Rohm, Philips, Samsung, Sanyo, Sharp,
Sony, ST Microelectronics, Texas instruments, and Toshiba.

Other Information

Cymer is a Nevada corporation, incorporated on July 12, 1996. Cymer was originally
incorporated in California in 1986 and reincorporated in Nevada in 1996.

Cymer's website address is http://www.cymer.com. Cymer's filings with the Securities and
Exchange Commission (“SEC”) including its Annual Report on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-
Q, current reports on Form 8-K and any amendments to those reports are available free of charge
through Cymer's website as soon as reasonably practicable after being filed with or furnished to the
SEC.

Products and Services

Cymer's products primarily consiét of photolithography light source systems, replacement parts
and service.




Photolithography Light Sources

Cymer's photolithography light sources produce narrow bandwidth pulses of short wavelength
light within the DUV spectrum. The three DUV wavelengths are measured in nanometers ("nm”). One
nanometer equals one billionth of a meter. The light sources are referred to according to the gases
mixed to produce the light or by the wavelength. Krypton Fluoride {“KrF”) gases produce 248nm light,
Argon Fiuoride (“ArF”) gases 193nm light, and Fluorine (“F2”) gas 157nm light. The light sources permit
very fine feature resolution for imaging the circuitry on the wafer and high throughput in wafer
processing. Cymer has designed its light sources to be highly reliable, easy to install and compatible
with existing semiconductor manufacturing processes. Cymer's light sources are used to pattern the
integrated circuits, which are also called semiconductors or “chips”, that power many of today’s
advanced consumer and business electronics. In 2003, Cymer sold 163 light source systems at an
average selling price of $983,000.

248nm KrF Light Sources

ELS-7010 - The ELS-7010, 4 kilohertz ("kHz") KrF excimer light source will address the aggressive
performance and cost requirements demanded by the semiconductor industry for the sub-100nm design
nodes. With the ELS-7010, Cymer will enhance its 7000 Series product family by increasing the power
and bandwidth performance parameters of its previously delivered KrF light source, the ELS-7000, and
decreasing the overall cost of consumables. Cymer engineered these performance and cost
improvements to be upgradeable for its current installed base of ELS-7000 light sources.

ELS-7000™ - The technically-advanced ELS-7000 meets the requirements of high volume production
of sub-0.13 micron devices on 248nm exposure tools. The ELS-7000 offers a 4 kHz, 30 watt (“W”)
optical output, plus ultra-low bandwidth performance and high speed wavelength control. Advanced
architecture and materials incorporated into the design of the ELS-7000 reduce laser consumables
costs.

6000_Series — The 6000 Series consists of tight source models that are within Cymer’s cutting-edge
248nm KrF portfolio and are designed for the production of semiconductor devices down to 130nm (0.13
micron) design rules:

o ELS-8010 - Cymer’'s ELS-6010 enables semiconductor manufacturers to leverage their existing
KrF experience during the transition to 130nm design rules. it provides a highly line-narrowed
spectral bandwidth of = 0.5 picometer ("pm”) full width half maximum (“FWHM") and < 1.4 pm
95 percent energy integral. The ELS-6010 enables full image performance from lithography
steppers and scanners using lenses with numerical apertures (“NA”) > 0.75.

e ELS-6000™ - The ELS-6000 is a 2 kHz light source designed for advanced steppers and
scanners for the production of devices with 180 nm and below geometries. The 20 W ELS-6000
is designed for the most advanced optical systems with up to 0.70 NA lens designs.
Incorporating advances in the light source chamber, pulse power and optics modules, the ELS-
6000 enables significant improvements in throughput rates and critical dimension (“CD”) control
through its *0.4% energy dose stability, 0.6 pm bandwidth FWHM, and 2.0 pm bandwidth at
95% energy integral.

5000 Series — With a repetition rate of 1 kHz, this solid-state pulse power light source series is
engineered using modular construction. Enabling higher device vields by delivering improved energy
stability, this series is designed specifically for use in the manufacture of semiconductors with 250nm
and smaller design rules. The 5000 series consists of the following models: ELS-5010, ELS-5005
upgrade, ELS-5000 and EX-5000.




193nm ArF Light Sources

XLA 105 — The XLA 105 is Cymer’'s latest, ultra line-narrowed, high power 4kHz ArF production light
source. This is the second generation lithography light source to feature a dual chamber Master
Oscillator Power Amplifier (“MOPA”) design. The XLA 105 leverages the XLA 100 platform and optical
architecture and provides improved optical performance. The XLA 105 delivers spectral bandwidth of
less than 0.20pm FWHM, the tightest spectral bandwidth performance of any DUV production light
source. In addition, the XLA 105 adds a 4x pulse stretcher which increases the puise duration with the
benefit of extending scanner lens lifetimes.

The XLA 105 is targeted at enabling the process development for the next ArF technology node at 65nm
that will utilize lithography tools with an NA greater than 0.9.

XLA 100 — The XLA 100 is Cymer's first, ultra line-narrowed, high power 4 kHz ArF production light
source featuring the dual chamber MOPA design. The XLA 100 provides outstanding optical and power
performance. MOPA enables the XLA 100 to produce 40 W of output power, which is twice the output
power of Cymer's earlier and most powerful, single chamber-based ArF models.

By utilizing the ArF (193nm) exposure wavelength, the XLA 100 enables chip design rules to shrink,
which leads to faster processing speeds and boosts memory capacity per chip. With an ultra line-
narrowed spectral bandwidth of 0.25pm FWHM, the tightest spectral bandwidth performance of any DUV
production light source, the XLA 100 produces high contrast imaging for lithography tools with an NA up
to 0.9.

NanoLith™ 7000 — A fourth-generation design, the NanoLith™ 7000 provides the required output power
and stability while providing a highly line-narrowed bandwidth to meet the stringent requirements of high
volume production today. The NanolLith 7000 offers a bandwidth of <= 0.5 pm FWHM and <= 1.3 pm 95
percent energy integral, which enables next-generation scanners with high Numerical Aperture lenses to
produce the resolution for sub 100nm devices.

Today's chipmakers seek light sources that make the critical transition in exposure wavelength from
248nm using KrF to 193nm using ArF while maintaining the performance and volume demands of
mainstream manufacturing. The NanoLith 7000 was designed to meet these demands.

ELS-6010A ~ The ELS-6010A is a highly line-narrowed, high power 193nm light source designed to
meet resolution, image contrast, and wafer throughput requirements in semiconductor chip production at
the <130nm node.

The ELS-6010A, 2 kHz 10 W ArF production laser for 193nm step-and-scan tools provides dependable
optical performance. With highly line-narrowed bandwidth, the ELS-6010A enables high contrast imaging
from lithography scanners using high NA lenses.

Built-in laser metrology provides pulse-to-puise data acquisition and feedback control to minimize
transient wavelength instabilities, thereby enhancing exposure latitude and CD control. In life tests the
ELS-6010A revealed a potential for 70% cost of consumables reduction compared to the ELX-5000A
predecessor. The ELS-6010A is built on Cymer's highly reliable ELS-6000° platform.

Revenues generated from sales of light sources were approximately $189.5 million, $203.1
million, and $160.3 million for 2001, 2002, and 2003, respectively.

Replacement Parts
Certain components and subassemblies included in Cymer's light sources require replacement

or refurbishment following extended operation. For example, the discharge chamber of Cymer's light
sources has an expected life of approximately three to sixteen billion pulses, depending on the model.




Cymer estimates that a light source used in a semiconductor production environment will require one to
two replacement chambers per year, depending upon the level of usage. Similarly, certain optical
components of the light source deteriorate with continued exposure to DUV light and require periodic
replacement. Cymer provides these and other spare and replacement parts for its photolithography light
sources as needed by its customers.

Revenues generated from sales of replacement parts were approximately $62.5 million, $66.8
million, and $83.2 million for 2001, 2002, and 2003, respectively. Revenues from replacement parts is
dependent on both the utilization of Cymer’s light source systems and the size of the installed base of
light sources. The size of Cymer’s installed base increased from 1,986 light sources as of December
31, 2002 to 2,217 light sources as of December 31, 2003, and the utilization of Cymer’s light source
systems at chipmakers grew significantly in 2003. We believe that chipmakers are running
photolithography tools at or near maximum utilization rates.

Service

As the life and usage of Cymer’s installed base of light sources in production at chipmakers
exceeds the original warranty periods (generally 17 to 26 months from date of shipment), some
chipmakers request service contracts from Cymer. Additionally, Cymer provides service contracts
directly to the three semiconductor DUV photolithography equipment manufacturers. These contracts
require Cymer to maintain and/or service these light sources either on an on-call or regular interval basis
or both. Some of these contracts include replacement of consumable parts.

In addition to service contracts, Cymer provides an on-line diagnostic product, CymerOnLine™
CymerOnLine is a diagnostic and performance software product which delivers critical laser diagnostics
and performance information in near real-time directly to authorized users anywhere. The software
simplifies reporting and allows users to efficiently manage consumables management. CymerOnLine
features a user-friendly browser-based interface features a robust design and provides a secure data
environment. Event-initiated messages sent to pagers, email, mobile phones, or other handheld devices
enable up-to-the minute communication and proactive management.

Revenues generated from service and service contracts were approximately $11.7 million, $15.8
miltion, and $21.3 million for 2001, 2002, and 2003, respectively. We expect service and service
contract revenues to continue this upward trend in the future as Cymer’s installed base grows and the
warranty period of those light source systems expire.

Customers and End Users

Cymer sells its photolithography light source products to each of the three manufacturers of
DUV photolithography tools:

ASM Lithography Canon Nikon

Cymer believes that maintaining and strengthening customer relationships will play an important
role in maintaining its leading position in the photolithography market. Cymer works closely with its
customers to integrate Cymer's products into their photolithography tools. Sales to ASM Lithography,
Canon, and Nikon accounted for 24%, 24% and 21%, respectively, of total revenue in 2003.

Revenues generated from customers within the United States were $41.3 million, $29.1 million
and $31.0 million for 2001, 2002 and 2003, respectively. Revenues generated from customers outside
of the United States were $228.1 million, $261.1 million and $236.5 million for 2001, 2002, and 2003,
respectively.

Revenues generated from customers located in Japan were $111.6 million, $123.4 million and
$116.5 million for 2001, 2002 and 2003, respectively. Revenues generated from customers located in
Europe were $91.7 million, $102.1 million and $74.6 million for 2001, 2002, and 2003, respectively.




End users of Cymer’s light sources include the world’s 20 largest semiconductor manufacturers.
The following semiconductor manufacturers have purchased one or more DUV photolithography tools
incorperating Cymer's light sources:

United States Japan Singapore Korea

Agere Systems CASMAT 1% Silicon ANAM F1

Agilent Technologies Denso Chartered Silicon Partners Dongbu

AMD Elpida Memory Inc. Peregrine Semiconductor Hynix Semiconductor Inc.
Applied Materials Fuji Film Silterra Samsung

Atmel Fujitsu SSMC

Clariant Corp. Gifu Sanyo Electronics TECH Europe

Cypress Hitachi UMCI Pte Ltd.

Headway Technologies JSR Altis Semiconductor
Honeywell Kawasaki Seitetsu TJaiwan/China C-NET

HP Matsushita Communicant Semiconductor
iBM Mitsubishi ASMC Technologies

Integrated Device Technology NEC ERSO Ericsson Microelectronics AB
Intel OKI GSMC tHP

Jazz Semiconductor Rohm Hejian IMEC v.zw t

LS1 Logic Corp. Sanyo Inotera Infineon Technologies AG
Lucent Seiko Mosel LETI

Maxim Integrated Products SELETE t MXIC Micronas GmbH

Microchip Technology Inc. Sharp Nan-ya Philips

Micron Technology Sony Promos RENESAS Semiconductor
Motorola Tokyo Electron Ltd. PSC ST Microelectronics
National Semiconductor Tokyo Ohka Kougyo Co. SIS

SEMATECH t Toshiba SMIC

Shipley Trecenti Technologies TSMC

Texas Instruments UMC Group

VLSI VISC

Wafertech Winbond Group

Backlog

Cymer schedules production of light sources based upon order backlog and informal customer

forecasts. Cymer includes in backlog only those orders to which a purchase order number has been
assigned by the customer and for which delivery has been specified within 12 months. Because
customers may cancei or delay orders with little or no penalty, Cymer's backlog as of any particular date
may not be a reliable indicator of actual sales for any succeeding period. At December 31, 2003, Cymer
had a backlog of approximately $103.9 million compared with a backlog of $101.0 million at
December 31, 2002.

Manufacturing

Cymer's manufacturing activities consist of material management, assembly, integration and
testing. These activities are performed in a 265,000 square foot facility in San Diego, California that
includes approximately 31,000 square feet of Class 10,000 cleanroom manufacturing and test space. In
order to focus its own resources, capitalize on the expertise of its key suppliers and respond more
efficiently to customer demand, Cymer has contracted the manufacture of many of its subassemblies.
Cymer's manufacturing outsourcing strategy is exemplified by the modular design of Cymer's products.
Substantially all manufacturing of nonproprietary subassemblies has been contracted to third-party
suppliers. As a result, Cymer is increasingly dependent upon these contract suppliers to meet Cymer's
manufacturing schedules. The failure by one or more of these suppliers to supply Cymer on a timely
basis with sufficient quantities of components or subassemblies that perform to Cymer's specifications
could affect Cymer's ability to deliver completed light sources to its customers on schedule. Cymer
believes that the highly outsourced content and manufacturable design of its products allows for reduced
manufacturing cycle times and increased output per employee. To improve current production
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efficiencies, control costs, and manage overall manufacturing capacity, Cymer intends to continue to
provide additional training to manufacturing personnel, improve its assembly and test processes in order
to reduce cycle time, invest in additional manufacturing tooling and further develop its supplier
management and engineering capabilities.

In addition to the manufacturing capacity at its facilities in San Diego, California, Cymer
completed the construction of a manufacturing facility in Korea in late 2002. This facility is used as a
refurbishment facility and refurbishes one of Cymer’s core modules, its chamber, initially for light sources
in Korea and uitimately for the Asia-Pacific region. The refurbishment facility in Korea includes 6,550
square feet of Class 10,000 cleanroom manufacturing space. All of the final qualification phases for this
facility were completed during the fourth quarter of 2002 and the first chamber was shipped to a
customer from this facility in January 2003. Throughout 2003 chambers for several of Cymer's light
source models were refurbished in the Korea facility and successfully shipped to customers.

During the period from 1997 through March 2003, Cymer also had additional manufacturing
capacity as a result of its contract manufacturing agreement with Seiko Instruments, Inc. (“Seiko”).
Seiko was qualified as a contract manufacturer of Cymer’s light source systems and began production of
its light sources in 1997. Although the original agreement could have been renewed for an additional
two years, Cymer and Seiko mutually consented to the termination of this contract. As a result, Seiko
ceased manufacturing light source systems for Cymer effective March 31, 2003. The termination of this
agreement has not impacted Cymer’s production of light source systems to date.

A limited number of components and subassemblies included in Cymer's products are obtained
from a single supplier or a small group of suppliers. For certain optical components used in its light
source systems, Cymer currently utilizes a single supplier. Where possible, Cymer is working with
secondary suppliers to qualify additional sources of supply. To reduce the risk associated with this
single supplier, Cymer carries significant strategic stock of these components. Strategic inventories are
managed as a percentage of future demand. Cymer has also negotiated to have vendor-managed
inventory of critical components to further reduce the risk of a single supplier. To date Cymer has been
able to obtain adequate supplies of the components and subassemblies used in the production of
Cymer’s light source systems in a timely manner from existing sources. If in the future Cymer is unable
to obtain sufficient quantities of required materials, components or subassemblies, or if such items do
not meet Cymer's quality standards, delays or reductions in product shipments could occur which could
have a material adverse effect on Cymer's business, financial condition and results of operations.

Sales and Marketing

Cymer's sales and marketing efforts have been predominately focused on DUV photolithography
tool manufacturers. Cymer markets and sells its products through its own worldwide direct sales force.
Cymer has developed product and applications engineering teams to support the account managers and
Cymer's customers. Cymer believes that to facilitate the sales process it must work closely with and
understand the requirements of semiconductor manufacturers, the end users of Cymer's products.

Service and Support

Cymer believes its success in the semiconductor photolithography market is highly dependent
upon after-sales support of both the direct customer and the end user. Cymer supports its customers
with field service, technical service engineers and training programs, and in some cases provides
ongoing on-site technical support at the customer's manufacturing facility. Prior to shipment, Cymer’s
support personnel typically assist the customer in site preparation and inspection and provide customers
with training at Cymer's facilities or at the customer's location. Direct customers and end users are also
provided with a comprehensive set of manuals, including operations, maintenance, service, diagnostic
and safety manuals.

Cymer's field engineers and technical support specialists provide field service and front-line
technical support capability from Cymer’s San Diego headquarters, and at its field service offices located




throughout the United States. Support in Europe, Japan, Korea, Singapore, the People’s Republic of
China, and Southeast Asia are provided by Cymer's subsidiaries located within those regions. As part of
its customer service, Cymer maintains an inventory of spare parts at each of its service facilities. As
Cymer's installed base grows, replacement parts required to satisfy worldwide support requirements, as
well as Cymer’'s own logistics support organization, will be subject to the fluctuating demands of the
semiconductor industry. In order to meet these demands, Cymer must continue to effectively manage its
production of component modules which are required for new systems, as well as for support and
warranty requirements for installed systems.

Cymer believes that the need to provide fast and responsive service to the semiconductor
manufacturers using its light sources is critical and that it cannot depend solely on its customers and end
users to provide this service. Therefore, Cymer believes it is essential to maintain, through its own
personnel, a rapid response capability to service its customers throughout the world. Accordingly,
Cymer has an ongoing effort to continuously develop its direct support infrastructure in Japan, Korea,
Taiwan and Southeast Asia, Singapore, the People’s Republic of China, Europe and the United States.
This task entails recruiting and training qualified field service personnel or identifying qualified
independent firms and maintaining effective and highly trained organizations that can provide service to
customers in various countries in their assigned regions.

Cymer generally warrants its new light source products against defects in design, materials, and
workmanship. The warranty coverage period and terms vary by light source model. In general, the
warranty coverage period ranges from 17 to 26 months after shipment. Cymer also warrants
consumables and spare parts sold to its customers and the coverage period varies by spare part type as
some types include time based warranty periods and others include usage based warranty periods. On
average the warranty period for spares is 6 months from the date of shipment.

Research and Development

The semiconductor industry is subject to rapid technological change and new product
introductions and enhancements. Cymer believes that continued and timely development and
introduction of new and enhanced light source products are essential for Cymer to maintain its
competitive position. Cymer intends to continue to develop its technology and innovative products to
meet customer demands. Current projects include enhancements to Cymer's KrF and ArF light sources
and the new MOPA platform. Cymer has significant development efforts to address the technology and
products that will be based on the extreme ultraviolet ("EUV") technology needed for future generation
photolithography illumination sources. Cymer is also continuing its scientific investigation related to F2
since the timing for a commercialized product at this wavelength is still unclear. Cymepmay also invest
in other product and technology areas in order to expand its portfolio within the semiconductor capital
equipment market sector. in addition there are ongoing efforts to improve existing products, reduce
manufacturing costs, lower the cost of light source operation, enhance light source performance,
develop new features for existing light sources, and conduct research and development of non-light
source products.

Cymer has historically devoted a significant portion of its financial resources to research and
development programs and expects to continue to allocate significant resources to these efforts.
Research and development expenses for 2001, 2002, and 2003 were approximately $58.4 million, $73.7
million, and $58.2 million, respectively.

In addition to funding its own research and development projects, Cymer has pursued a strategy
of securing research and development contracts from customers, government agencies and
SEMATECH, a semiconductor industry consortium, in order to develop advanced technology for current
and future light source systems based on Cymer's core technology. In March 2002, Cymer announced
an agreement with a major U.S. chipmaker to provide funding for Cymer's research and development
efforts on EUV technology. In 2003, Cymer entered into an agreement with a government agency to
provide funding for EUV technology research and development efforts. Revenues generated from
research and development contracts amounted to approximately $2.4 million, $2.2 million, and $1.7




mitlion during 2001, 2002, and 2003, respectively.

In January 2004, Cymer signed a research and development agreement with Intel Corporation
(“Intel”). This agreement will provide Cymer with funding of $20.0 million over the next three years to
accelerate the development of production-worthy EUV lithography light sources. The funding to be
received from Intel under this agreement is milestone based and will be netted against Cymer’s total
research and development expenses in the period that the milestone is completed.

Intellectual Property Rights

Cymer believes that the success of its business depends more on such factors as the technical
expertise of its employees, as well as their innovative skills and marketing and customer relations ability,
than on patents, copyrights, trade secrets and other intellectual property rights. Nevertheless, the
success of Cymer may depend in part on patents. As of December 31, 2003, Cymer owned 197 United
States patents covering certain aspects of technology related to light sources and piezo techniques.
These patents will expire at various times during the period from January 2008 through November 2021.
As of December 31, 2003, Cymer had applied for 79 additional patents in the United States. As of
December 31, 2003, Cymer owned 267 foreign patents and had 317 patent applications pending in
various foreign countries.

Cymer's pending patent applications and any future applications might not be approved.
Cymer's patents might not provide Cymer with competitive advantages. Third parties might challenge
Cymer’s patents. [n addition, patents held by third parties might have an adverse effect on Cymer's
ability to do business. In this regard, due to cost constraints, Cymer did not begin filing for patents in
Japan or other countries with respect to inventions covered by its United States patents and patent
applications untit 1993. Therefore, Cymer lost the right to seek foreign patent protection for certain of its
early inventions. Additionally, because foreign patents may afford less protection under applicable
foreign law than may be available under corresponding United States patent law, any such patents
issued to Cymer might not adequately protect Cymer's technology in a given foreign jurisdiction.
Furthermore, third parties might independently develop similar products, duplicate Cymer's products or,
to the extent patents are issued to Cymer, design around those patents.

Others may have filed and in the future may file patent applications that are similar or identical to
those of Cymer. To determine the priority of inventions, Cymer may have to participate in interference
proceedings declared by the United States Patent and Trademark Office. Such interference proceedings
could result in substantial cost to Cymer. Such third-party patent applications might have priority over
patent applications filed by Cymer.

Cymer also relies upon trade secret protection, employee and third-party nondisclosure
agreements and other intellectual property protection methods to protect its confidential and proprietary
information. Despite these efforts, third parties might independently develop substantially equivalent
proprietary information and techniques or otherwise gain access to Cymer's trade secrets or disclose
such technology. Cymer might not be able to meaningfully protect its trade secrets.

Cymer has in the past funded a portion of its research and development expenses from outside
research and development contracts. Cymer has received such funding from customers, government
agencies and from SEMATECH, a research consortium, in connection with the design and development
of specific products. Although Cymer’s arrangements with these manufacturers and SEMATECH seek to
clarify the ownership of the intellectual property arising from research and development services
performed by Cymer, disputes over the ownership or rights to use or market such intellectual property
might arise between Cymer and such parties.

Third parties have in the past notified, and may in the future notify, Cymer that it may be
infringing intellectual property rights of others. Conversely, Cymer has in the past notified, and may in
the future notify, third parties that they may be infringing Cymer’s intellectual property rights.



Specifically, Cymer has engaged in discussions with Gigaphoton, Inc., a joint venture between
Ushio, Inc. and Komatsu, Ltd. with respect to certain of Komatsu's Japanese patents, in the course of
which Komatsu has also identified to Cymer a number of additional Japanese and U.S. patents that
Komatsu asserts may be infringed by Cymer or by Cymer's former Japanese manufacturing partner,
Seiko. Komatsu has also notified one of Cymer’s integrator customers, Nikon, of its belief that Cymer's
light sources infringe several of Komatsu's Japanese and U.S. patents. Cymer, in consultation with
Japanese patent counsel, initiated oppositions to certain Komatsu Japanese patents and patent
applications in the Japanese Patent Office. These oppositions have been dismissed by the Japanese
Patent Office. Litigation might ensue with respect to the Komatsu Japanese patents or Komatsu U.S.
patents. Also, Komatsu might assert infringement claims under other or additional patents. Komatsu
has notified Seiko that Komatsu intends to enforce its rights under the Komatsu Japanese patents
against Seiko if Seiko engages in manufacturing activities for Cymer. In connection with its former
manufacturing agreement with Seiko, Cymer has agreed to indemnify Seiko against such claims under
certain circumstances. Cymer and Seiko might not ultimately prevail in any such litigation.

Cymer has notified its competitors and others of Cymer’'s United States patent portfolio. Cymer
has specifically asserted certain of its U.S. patents against Komatsu when informed that Komatsu light
sources might be integrated into steppers intended for shipment into the U.S. Cymer and Komatsu have
engaged in discussions with regard to each party’s claims. Those discussions might not be successful
and litigation could result. Attorneys representing Komatsu challenged one of Cymer’s U.S. patents in
the U.S. Patent Office, but the patent was subsequently re-issued by the United States Patent and
Trademark Office (“USPTQ”). During 2000, Komatsu's lithography light source business was
transferred to Gigaphoton. Subsequently, Cymer and Gigaphoton have engaged in discussions
regarding each party’s patents. Those discussions might not be successful and litigation could result.
Cymer aiso engaged in patent discussions with another competitor, Lambda-Physik, concerning
allegations by each party against the other of possible patent infringement. These discussions also
might not be successful and litigation could result.

Any patent litigation initiated by Cymer, or initiated by Cymer's competitors against Cymer,
would, at a minimum, be costly. Litigation could also divert the efforts and attention of Cymer's
management and technical personnel. Both could have a material adverse effect on Cymer's business,
financial condition and results of operations. Furthermore, in the future other third parties might assert
other infringement claims, and customers and end users of Cymer's products might assert other claims
for indemnification resulting from infringement ciaims. Such assertions, if proven to be true, might
materially adversely affect Cymer's business, financial condition and results of operations. If any such
claims are asserted against Cymer, Cymer may seek to obtain a license under the third party's
intellectual property rights. However, such a license might not be available on reasonable terms or at all.
Cymer could decide, in the alternative, to resort to litigation to challenge such claims or to design around
the patented technology. Any of these actions could be costly and would divert the efforts and attention
of Cymer's management and technical personnel, which could materially adversely affect Cymer's
business, financial condition and results of operations.

Effective August 1, 1989 and lasting until the expiration of the licensed patents, Cymer entered
into an agreement for a nonexclusive worldwide license to use or sell certain patented light source
technology with Patlex Corp., a patent holding company. Under the terms of the agreement, Cymer is
required to pay royalties ranging from 0.25% to 5.0% of gross sales and leases of its light sources,
subject to an annual cap of $100,000 per year. During 2001, 2002 and 2003, royalty fees totaled
$100,000 per yeer.

Cymer has granted Seiko a right of first refusal to fund Cymer’s development of, and receive a
license to, new industrial light source technologies not developed with funding from other parties. In
exchange for these rights, Cymer received up-front license fees of $3.0 million in aggregate during 1992
and 1993. Cymer was also entitled to royalties of 5% on related product sales through September 1999,
after which the royalty rate is subject to renegotiation. Through 1999, Cymer earned no royalties under
the agreement. The license agreement also provides that product sales between Cymer and Seiko will
be at a 15% discount from the respective companies' list prices. The agreement terminates in August
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2012. There has been no Seiko production or sales activity associated with this contract to date and this
contract does not apply to Cymer’s current light source system products.

Cymer has registered the trademark “CYMER” & “INSIST ON CYMER” and others in the United
States and certain other countries and is seeking additional registrations of additional trademarks in the
United States and in certain other countries. Cymer uses these and a variety of other marks in its
advertisements and other business activities around the world. Based on the use of these or other
marks, Cymer might be subjected to actions for trademark infringement, which could be costly to defend.
If a challenge to a mark were to be successful, Cymer might be required to cease use of the mark and,
potentially, to pay damages. :

Competition

Cymer believes that the principal elements of competition in Cymer's markets are the technical
performance characteristics of the excimer light source products and the operating efficiency of the
system, which is based on availability, performance efficiency and rate of quality. Cymer believes that it
competes favorably with respect to these factors.

Cymer currently has two significant competitors in the market for light source systems for DUV
photolithography applications: Gigaphoton, headquartered in Japan, and Lambda-Physik, a subsidiary
of Coherent, Inc. headquartered in Germany. In 2003, Coherent purchased an additional 34% of the
outstanding shares of Lambda-Physik, increasing Coherent's ownership to 94%. Cymer believes that
Gigaphoton and Lambda-Physik are aggressively seeking to gain larger positions in this market. Cymer
believes that its three DUV photolithography tool manufacturing customers have each purchased
products offered by these competitors and that its customers have qualified the competitors' light
sources for use with their products. Both Gigaphoton and Lambda-Physik are located in closer proximity
to certain of Cymer’'s customers than Cymer. Cymer believes that Gigaphoton in particular has been
qualified for production use by chipmakers in Japan and elsewhere. Cymer also believes that Lambda-
Physik has been qualified for production use by chipmakers in the U.S. and Europe. Cymer could lose
market share and its growth could slow or even decline as competitors gain market acceptance.

In the future, Cymer will likely experience competition from other technologies, such as EUV and
electron projection lithography (“EPL"). To remain competitive, Cymer believes that it will need to
manufacture and deliver products to customers on a timely basis without significant defects and maintain
a high level of investment in research and development and sales and marketing. Cymer might not have
sufficient resources to continue to make the investments necessary to maintain its competitive position.

Larger competitors with substantially greater financial resources, including other manufacturers
of industrial light sources for advanced lithography, may attempt to enter the market. Further, other
competitors may introduce new and enhanced product offerings that customers deem superior to
Cymer’s products. Future competitors may also be attracted to Cymer’s growing instailed base of light
sources and seek to provide consumables and refurbished parts to that installed base.

Employees
On December 31, 2003, Cymer employed 766 persons worldwide. No employees are currently

covered by collective bargaining agreements or are members of any labor organization as far as Cymer
is aware. Cymer has not experienced any work stoppages and believes that its employee relations are

good.
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Executive Officers

Set forth below is certain information regarding the executive officers of Cymer and their ages as
of March 8, 2004.

Name Age Position
Robert P. AKINS ........c.ovvvan 52 Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer
Pascal Didier ..........c..ccoece. 45 President and Chief Operating Officer
Nancy J. Baker ................... 41 Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer
James M. Caltrider ............. 50 Executive Vice President, Manufacturing
Hugh R. Grinolds ................ 52 Executive Vice President, Corporate Process and Services
Edward P. Holtaway ............. 48 Executive Vice President, Lithography System Solutions
BrianC. Klene .................. 46 Executive Vice President, Emerging Technology and Applications
John Shin ... 49 Executive Vice President, Semiconductor Manufacturing Solutions
Rae Ann Werner ................. 39 Vice President, Controller and Chief Accounting Officer
Tsunehisa Yamashita .......... 57 President, Cymer Japan
Anthony Yen ...................... 42 Senior Vice President, Lithography Marketing Development

Robert P. Akins, one of Cymer's co-founders, has served as its chairman and chief executive
officer since its inception in 1988, and served as president of the company as well from its inception until
May 2000. He currently serves on the board of directors of SEMI (Semiconductor Equipment and
Materials International), the board of SEMI North America, and on the board of directors of Extraction
Systems, Inc, as well as on the council of advisors to the Irwin and Joan Jacobs School of Engineering
at the University of California, San Diego (“UCSD"”). Mr. Akins currently serves as a board member of the
UCSD Foundation Board of Trustees. Mr. Akins received the Ernst & Young Entrepreneur of the Year
Award for San Diego County in 1997, and with fellow co-founder Rick Sandstrom, received the
outstanding alumnus award from UCSD, and the prestigious SEMI Award for North America, the highest
honor conferred by SEMI, in 1896 for contributions to the field of DUV lithography. Mr. Akins received a
bachelor's degree in physics, a bachelor's degree in literature, and a doctorate in applied physics from
the University of California, San Diego.

Pascal Didier has served as president and chief operating officer since May 2000. He served as
senior vice president, worldwide customer operations from November 1997 until May 2000, and served
as vice president of sales and marketing from July 1997, when he joined the company, until November
of that year. He served as vice president of worldwide sales and field operations with GaSonics
International, a semiconductor capital equipment manufacturer, from June 1995 to June 1997, and
served in the additional capacity of vice president of Asia/Pacific for that company from June 1995 to
June 1996. Prior to that, Mr. Didier served for two years as vice president of international operations for
Megatest Carporation, a semiconductor test equipment manufacturer. Mr. Didier received a bachelor's
degree in business and administration from the College de Paris VIl and a bachelor's degree in
electronics from the Institut Universitaire de Lyon.

Nancy J. Baker has served as senior vice president and chief financial officer since January
2002. Prior to that, she served as Cymer’s vice president, finance and treasurer from June 1998 to
December 2001. During 2000, she headed the company’s successful effort to implement a new
Enterprise Resource Planning system, which was implemented in San Diegeo in only six months, and
globally in only nine months. From October 1996 to June 1998 she served as director, corporate finance
and treasurer. She joined Cymer as corporate controller for worldwide operations in August 1992. Ms.
Baker's professional career spans more than 18 years, and prior to joining Cymer, she held a variety of
financial management positions with an international manufacturer in the San Diego area. Ms. Baker
received a bachelor’'s degree in accounting from the University of Texas at Austin in 1985 and completed
the executive advanced management program at Harvard Business School in 1999.
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James M. Caltrider has served as executive vice president of the Manufacturing Operations
business unit since October 2003. He served as vice president of manufacturing and order fulfillment
from September 1999 until October 2003, and served as vice president of manufacturing systems from
October 1998 to September 1999. Prior to joining Cymer, Mr. Caltrider provided consulting services to
a range of clients including Hewlett-Packard, Sprint, Robert Bosch and Andersen Consulting, while
holding a faculty position in the Graduate School of Business at the University of San Diego and
instructing in the Advanced Manufacturing Systems Program in the UCSD Graduate Engineering
School. Mr. Caltrider also served as director of training and development at Brooktree Corporation from
1990 to 1992. He received a doctorate in mineral economics from the Colorado School! of Mines, and a
bachelor's degree in business administration from Michigan State University.

Hugh R. Grinolds has served as executive vice president of the Corporate Processes and
Services group since October 2002. Before that, he served as a senior director of the EUV program, the
post he had held since joining the company in May 2002. Prior to joining Cymer, he served as site
manager for Agilent Technologies in Fort Collins, Colorado from 1999, when Agilent was spun-off from
Hewlett Packard, until May 2002. Dr. Grinolds began his business career with Hewlett-Packard Co. in
1979, and during his tenure with that company, served in a variety of increasingly responsible positions,
including managing VLSI design for HP's internal ASIC needs in Corvallis, Oregon, and serving as
manufacturing manager in Fort Collins, Colorado for HP's internal ASICs which included responsibility
for the production of HP's PA-RISC processors. He assumed the role of worldwide manufacturing
manager at HP in 1998. Dr. Grinolds has published 21 technical articles and papers, and holds one
patent. He received bachelor's, master's and doctorate degrees in electrical engineering from the
University of Minnesota.

Edward P. (Ted) Holtaway has served as executive vice president of the Lithography System
Solutions business unit since October 2002. He served as senior vice president of operations and
business process management from May 2000 until October 2002. He joined Cymer in July 1998 as
senior vice president of process quality. Prior to joining Cymer, Mr. Holtaway spent 13 years developing
processes for San Diego-based Brooktree Corp., a fabless semiconductor company acquired by
Rockwell Semiconductor Systems in September 1996. During his tenure, Mr. Holtaway's executive posts
included director of Rockwell's San Diego operations from 1997 to 1998, vice president and managing
director of Brooktree's Singapore operations from 1995 to 1996, and vice president of corporate quality
from 1989 to 1995. Mr. Holtaway received a bachelor's degree in electrical engineering from the New
Jersey Institute of Technology, a master's degree in electrical engineering from the Polytechnic Institute
of New York, and a master's degree in business administration from San Diego State University.

Brian C. Klene has served as executive vice president of the Emerging Technology and
Applications business unit since October 2002. Previously, he served as senior vice president, marketing
and business development, which he had held since joining Cymer in June 2000. Prior to joining Cymer,
Mr. Klene spent two years as vice president, strategic planning and business development at Chartered
Semiconductor Manufacturing Ltd. in Singapore. From 1995 to 1997, he served as executive vice
president, sales and marketing at Micron Electronics, Inc., Nampa, Idaho. Before that, he served as
director of North American sales with Micron Technology, Inc., Boise, Idaho, from 1989 to 1994. He also
served in a variety of sales and marketing positions of increasing responsibility with IBM Corp. Mr. Klene
received a master's degree in business administration from the University of Southern California, and a
bachelor's degree from The Citadel, Charleston, South Carolina.

John Shin has served as executive vice president of the Semiconductor Manufacturing
Solutions business unit since October 2002. He served as senior vice president, worldwide customer
operations from June 2000 until October 2002. Previously, he served as vice president, worldwide
customer operations from September 1999 to June 2000, as vice president of worldwide field operations
from April to September 1999, and as vice president, Asia/Pacific Operations from March 1998 to April
1999. He joined Cymer as president, Cymer Korea in May 1997. Immediately prior to joining Cymer, Mr.
Shin served as president of Tencor Instruments Korea. From early 1993 to late 1996 he served as
country manager in Korea with Watkins-Johnson Co, sales account manager in Korea for Applied
Materials, and business development manager with Samsung America. Mr. Shin received a master's
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degree in computer science from Indiana University and a bachelor's degree in business from Hankuk
University of Foreign Studies, Seoul, Korea.

Rae Ann Werner has served as vice president, controller, and chief accounting officer since
January 2003. Prior to that, she served as Cymer’s Controller from February 1999 to January 2003.
From 1993 to 1999 she held a variety of finance positions with increasing responsibilities since joining
Cymer in November 1993. Ms. Werner's professional career spans more than 16 years, and prior to
joining Cymer, she held a variety of financial positions with semiconductor and communications
companies in the San Diego area. Ms. Werner received a bachelor’s degree in accounting from San
Diego State University in 1987.

Tsunehisa Yamashita has served as president of Cymer Japan since March 2003. Prior to
joining Cymer, Mr. Yamashita served for more than four years as general manager of the Japanese
Division of Teradyne, Inc., a leading supplier of automatic test equipment for the semiconductor industry.
From 1997 to 1998, he served as president of Brooks Automation, Japan where he managed the
Japanese operations—including sales and technical support of semiconductor wafer and LCD plate
handling automation and robotics. During the first 24 years of his career, he served in a variety of
positions with Nikon Corporation, including one year as general manager of business planning and
strategic marketing, and nine years as a senior manager responsible for developing product-marketing
plans. During his tenure, he also supported overseas sales and marketing activities at various U.S.- and
European-based Nikon subsidiaries. Prior to that, Mr. Yamashita was instrumental in establishing
Nikon’s U.S.-based lithography operations in San Bruno, California. He holds a bachelor's degree in
mechanical engineering from Hokkaido University in Japan.

Anthony (Tony) Yen has served as senior vice president of the Lithography Market
Development business unit since September 2003. Mr. Yen served as co-director of the Lithography
division of International SEMATECH from May 2001 to September 2003. Prior to his SEMATECH
assignment, he managed the Advanced Lithography and Advanced Lithography Technology
departments at Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Co., Ltd., which he joined in 1997. Before that, he
worked in lithography development and conducted pioneering work on resolution enhancement
techniques at Texas Instruments (*T1”) in Dallas, and as a Tl assignee at IMEC, the Belgium-based
research institute of semiconductor technology. Mr. Yen holds a bachelor's degree from Purdue
University as well as his master's, engineer's, and doctorate degrees from Massachusetts Institute of
Technology, all in electrical engineering. He is a fellow of the International Society for Optical
Engineering and has served as a member of Cymer's Scientific Advisory Board since 2000.

Executive officers serve at the discretion of the Board of Directors. There are no family
relationships between any of the directors and executive officers of Cymer.

Item 2. Properties

Cymer’s corporate headquarters is located in San Diego, California and includes administrative,
manufacturing, engineering, and research and development facilities. In addition, Cymer has field
service offices located throughout the United States and internationally. Cymer completed construction
of a refurbishment facility in Korea at the end of 2002. This manufacturing facility is used to refurbish
chamber assemblies and was qualified for production at the end of 2002. Cymer completed construction
of a 265,000 square foot building adjacent to its corporate headquarters located in San Diego, California
in the third quarter of 2003. Also in the third quarter of 2003, Cymer transferred all manufacturing
activities and corporate services from two leased facilities in San Diego to this company-owned
manufacturing and office facility. As of December 31, 2003, these two leased facilities were vacant.
Cymer intends to sub-lease these two buildings, and as of the end of the year was working with a real
estate broker to locate a tenant.




At December 31, 2003, details on Cymer’s leased and owned property were as follows:

Total
Lease Square
Location Expiration Footage Primary Usage
San Diego, California (1) Owned 135,000 Corporate headquarters, engineering,
research and development &cilities
San Diego, California (1) Owned 265,000 Manufacturing and administrative ofice
San Diego, California January 2010 155,000 Vacant
San Diego, California January 2010 65,755 Facility sub-leased
San Diego, California February 2004 22,200 Vacant
Santa Clara, California February 2005 1,857 Field service office
Austin, Texas October 2005 1,627 Field service office
Portland, Oregon April 2006 1,857 Field service office
Charlestown, Massachusetts January 2008 21,262 Vacant
Motoyata, Japan June 2004 13,831 Field service and sales ofiice
QOsaka, Japan December 2005 807 Field service and sales office
Hsin-Chu, Taiwan June 2004 4,821 Field service and sales office
United Square, Singapore May 2004 1,866 Field service and sales office
Maarssen, Netherlands May 2009 3,715 Field service and sales office
Veldhoven, Netherlands December 2008 2,605 Field service and sales office
Pyongtaek-city, Kyonggi, Korea - Land (2) December 2020
- Building (2) Owned 26,000 Manufacturing, sales and administrative
Pudong, Shanghai, China October 2004 4,746 Field service and sales office

(1) Land and building is owned by Cymer.

(2) Land lease is through December 2020. Building is owed by Cymer.

Iltem 3. Legal Proceedings

None.

Iltem 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

No matters were submitted to a vote of the security holders of Cymer during the fourth quarter of

the fiscal year ended December 31, 2003.

PART il

Item 5. Market for Registrant's Common Stock and Related Stockholder Matters

Cymer's Common Stock is publicly traded on the Nasdagq National Market under the symbol
“CYMI”. The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the high and low prices of Cymer's
Common Stock as reported by the Nasdag National Market.

Year ended December 31, 2002

First quarter
Second quarter
Third quarter
Fourth quarter

Year ended December 31, 2003

First quarter
Second quarter
Third quarter
Fourth quarter

High Low
$ 5080 $ 2655
$ 5344 $ 3105
$ 3548 $ 1719
$ 38.91 $ 16.31
$ 40.00 $ 23863
$ 3675 $§ 23.06
$ 40.09 $ 3052
$ 4089 $ 3905

The closing sales price of Cymer's Common Stock on the Nasdag National Market was $39.24
on March 3, 2004 and there were 303 registered holders of record as of that date.

Cymer has never declared or paid cash dividends on its Common Stock and currently
does not anticipate paying cash dividends in the future.

The information required to be disclosed by ltem 201(d) of Regulation S-K “Securities
Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans” is incorporated herein by reference to

Cymer’s Proxy Statement.
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data

The following selected consolidated financial data should be read in conjunction with Cymer’s
consolidated financial statements and notes thereto and with “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations,” which are included elsewhere in this report.

Years ended December 31,
1999 2000 2001 (1) 2002 2003
(in thousands, except per share data)

. Consolidated Statements of Operations Data:

Revenues:
Product sales $ 220,051 $ 366,280 $267,003 $287995 § 265816
Other 399 1,180 2,441 2,165 1,680
Total revenues 220,450 367,460 269,444 290,160 267,496

~Costs and expenses:

Cost of product sales 143,105 187,579 151,340 162,095 187,679
Research and development 34,518 45,433 58,368 73,714 68,231
Sales and marketing 16,742 20,098 19,617 17,153 16,966
General and administrative 13,101 22,510 18,990 18,212 39,004
Amortization of goodwill and intangible assets - 108 3,148 160 160
Purchased in-process research and development - - 5,050 - -
Loss (gain) on debt extinguishment (2) - - {610} 163 -
Total costs and expenses 207,466 275,728 255,903 271,497 302,130
Operating income (loss) 12,984 91,732 13,541 18,663 (34,634)
Other expense - net (3,748) (1,230) (1,447) (1,914) {1,139)
Income (loss) before income tax provision (benefit)
and minority interest 9,236 90,502 12,094 16,749 (35,773)
Income tax provision (benefit) - 26,246 2,871 2,706 (21,464)
Minority interest (663) (484) (368) (447) (1,091)

Income (loss) before cumulative change in
accounting principle 8,573 63,772 8,855 13,596 (15,400)

Cumulative change in accounting principle,

net of taxes - - (370) - -
Net income (loss) $ 8573 $ 63,772 $ 8485 § 13,506 $(15,400)
Basic earnings (loss) per share $ 031 § 219 § 028 $ 041 $ (044
Weighted average common shares

outstanding 27,907 29,113 30,474 33,317 35,065
Diluted earnings (loss) per share $ 029 % 207 § 027 § 039 $ (0.44)

Weighted average common and dilutive
potential common shares outstanding 29,640 30,758 31,108 34,712 35,065




December 31,
1999 2000 2001 (1) 2002 2003
(in thousands)

Consolidated Balance Sheet Data:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 75765 $ 79678 $ 111195 $ 196,643 $ 230,657
Working capital 213,121 278,546 257,851 351,127 397,846
Total assets 404,825 501,562 483,346 766,887 803,221
Total long-term debt 175,771 175,510 151,772 255,154 255,660
Treasury stock (24,871) (24,871) (24,871) . .
Stockholders' equity 126,893 212,968 254,814 412,334 453,330

(1) Includes results of operations of Active Control Experts, Inc. acquired on February 13, 2001 for the
periods subsequent to its acquisition. See further discussion under Item 8. Financial Statements and

Supplementary Data.

{2) The loss {gain) on extinguishment of debt was reclassed in 2003 in accordance with the provisions of
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 145.

item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

in this section, references to “we”, "us” or “our” are references to Cymer. The following
discussion of our financial condition and results of operations should be read in conjunction with our
consolidated financial statements and notes thereto included in this annual report on Form 10-K.

Overview

We are the world’s leading supplier of light source solutions for the semiconductor industry. Our
products provide the essential light source for DUV photolithography systems. Almost ali consumer
electronic devices manufactured in the last several years contain a semiconductor manufactured using
light sources, such as ours. We currently supply light sources to all three DUV lithography system
manufacturers, ASM Lithography, Canon, and Nikon, who in turn supply their wafer steppers and
scanners to chipmakers. Our light source systems currently constitute a substantial majority of all
excimer light sources incorporated in DUV photalithography stepper and scanner tools. Qur products
consist of photolithography light source systems, replacement parts and service. A large portion of our
revenue is derived from customers located outside of the United States. In order to support our foreign
customers and our installed base of light sources in foreign countries, we maintain a manufacturing and
field service office in Korea and field service and support offices in Japan, Taiwan, Singapore, the
People’s Republic of China and the Netherlands. We also maintain field service offices in the United
States to service our installed base of light sources located in the United States.

Since we derive a substantial portion of our revenues from the photolithography tool
manufacturers, we are subject to the volatile and unpredictable nature of the semiconductor industry.
The semiconductor industry is highly cyclical in nature and historically has experienced periodic ups and
downs. Since 2000, the last peak year in the cycle, the semiconductor industry has been in one of the
longest downturns in its history. This downturn has negatively impacted our business and results of
operations during the three year period from 2001 through 2003. Although we experienced the largest
negative impact to our revenues from 2000 to 2001, we have been able to maintain our revenues at a
fairly constant ievel over the last two years. In addition, during most of the downturn, we have remained
profitable. The only year in which we incurred a net loss since the start of the downturn was in 2003.
The loss of $15.4 million in 2003 was mainly due to our decreased revenues, inefficiencies in the initial
manufacturing of our newest XL series light source in early 2003, and the write-down of tenant
improvements and other assets primarily associated with vacating three facilities during 2003. We are
very conscious of the volatile nature of the semiconductor industry and make every effort to manage our
business through the cycles such that we maintain profitability during the downturn and take the
necessary steps during the downturns to strategically position ourselves for the next upturn.
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As a result of the continued downturn in the semiconductor industry in 2003, we took several

steps during the year to control our expenses and reduce our operating break-even level, including:

In April 2003, we conducted a reduction in our workforce. This reduction in workforce affected
all areas of the company and resulted in additional expenses during the second quarter. We
realized the cost benefits of this reduction in workforce in the third quarter of 2003.

In April 2003, we wrote down certain of our corporate assets. These asset write downs totaled
approximately $1.8 million and were recorded as an additional expense during the second
quarter. Again, we realized the cost saving benefits of these transactions in the third quarter of
2003,

In December 2003, we had a small reduction in workforce which primarily impacted the sales
and marketing area. As of December 31, 2003, there was $462,000 in outstanding liabilities
associated with this reduction in force, which included accrued payroli and benefits.

Throughout 2003, we worked to reduce the cycle times and material costs associated with our
XLA 100 light source. We made significant progress during the year and realized some of the
benefits from these efforts in the second half of 2003.

In order to position ourselves for the next upturn in the semiconductor industry, we completed

several key investments in 2003 that had been initiated during the first two years of the downturn,
including:

We developed the revolutionary MOPA technology, designed the extendable XL common
platform, and ramped the production of our XLA 100 model ArF light source during 2002 and
2003. The first production model was introduced in the first quarter of 2003. We are currently
the only light source provider with a production worthy 40 W ArF light source.

We constructed and qualified our chamber refurbishment factory in Korea in 2002 and officially
opened it in 2003, offering faster and less expensive consumable module turn-around.

We completed the construction of our new San Diego manufacturing facility and qualified it in
2003. This facility is designed to handle light source manufacturing with special emphasis on XL
platform-based models.

We consolidated our facilities in San Diego in 2003 and transferred all manufacturing activities
and corporate services from our two leased facilities to this new manufacturing facility.

We are also in a strong competitive position for leading edge KrF light sources, with our model
ELS-7000 and the new improved performance and power of the ELS-7010 planned for initial
shipment in mid-2004.

We continued to improve upon our business processes over the last few years which has
improved our overall efficiencies and has allowed us to execute our plan throughout the
downturn.

At this time, we believe the long-awaited semiconductor industry upturn has begun, based on a
number of positive indicators that became increasingly evident during the second half of 2003, including:

We experienced strong order growth and our direct customers announced increasing orders and
extended delivery times.

The chipmakers’ utilization of our DUV light sources has exceeded the levels achieved in 2000,
the peak of the last upturn, and leveled off at these historically high rates. We believe that
chipmakers are running these tools at or near the maximum utilization possible and that further
increases in factory wafer throughput can only be achieved by adding more semiconductor
manufacturing equipment, which will in turn drive demand for our light sources.

The mix of our light source mode! shipments and orders shifted toward leading edge KrF,
reflecting chipmakers’ need for more capacity expansion.

Semiconductor and electronic market forecasters believe that capital spending will increase in
2004 by 30% to 50% over 2003 levels. ‘

The future growth in semiconductor demand is expected to span a wide spectrum of
applications.
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The positive order momentum we experienced in the latter half of 2003 has moderately
improved our visibility into our future operations. We have seen no slowdown in orders for the spares
and consumables needed to support our installed base of light sources in the field. It appears that
chipmakers are increasing their inventories of consumables and spares in order to avoid unnecessary
downtime in the future. Based upon these positive indicators, we expect that 2004 will be characterized
by sequential increases in light source system unit sales and a record revenue year overall.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following table sets forth certain items in our consolidated statements of operations as a
percentage of totaf revenues for the periods indicated:

Years ended December 31,

2001 2002 2003
Revenues: _
Product sales 991 % 99.2 % 99.4 %
Other 0.9 0.8 0.6
Total revenues 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 %
Cost and expenses:
Cost of product sales 56.2 55.8 70.1
Research and development 21.6 254 218
Sales and marketing 7.3 5.9 6.3
General and administrative 7.0 6.3 14.6
Amortization of goodwill and intangible assets 1.2 0.1 0.1
Purchased in-process research and development 1.9 - -
(Gain) loss on debt extinguishment (.2) 0.1 -
Total costs and expenses 95.0 93.6 112.9
Operating income (loss) 5.0 6.4 (12.9)
Other expense — net (0.5) (0.6) (0.4)
Income (loss) before income tax provision (benefit)
and minority interest 4.5 5.8 (13.3)
Income tax provision (benefit) 1.1 1.0 (8.0)
Minority interest (0.2) (0.1) {0.4)
Income (loss) before cumulative change in accounting
principle 3.2 47 (5.7)
Cumulative change in accounting principle, net of taxes (.1) - -
Net income (loss) 31 % 47 % (5.7) %
Gross margin on product sales 433 % 43.7 % 294 %

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES
General

The discussion and analysis of our financial condition and resuits of operations are based upon
our consolidated financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. The preparation of these financial
statements requires us to make estimates and use judgment that may impact the reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, revenues, expenses, and related disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. As a
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part of our ongoing internal processes, we regularly evaluate our estimates, including those related to
inventory allowances, warranty provision, income taxes, allowances for bad debts, long-lived assets
valuation, intangible assets valuation, and contingencies and litigation. We base these estimates upon
both historical information and other assumptions that we believe to be valid and reasonable under the
circumstances. These assumptions form the basis for making judgments and determining the carrying
values of assets and liabilities that are not apparent from other sources. Actual results could vary from
our estimates if we were to use different assumptions and conditions.

We believe that inventory allowances, warranty provisions, and income taxes require more
significant judgments and estimates in the preparation of our consolidated financial statements than do
other of our accounting estimates.

Inventory Allowance

We perform an analysis of our inventory allowances on at least a quarterly basis to determine
the adequacy of this allowance on our financial statements. The amount of the inventory allowance is
determined by taking into consideration certain assumptions related to market conditions and future
demands for our products, including changes to product mix, new product introductions, and/or product
discontinuances, which may resuit in excess or absolete inventory. We determine the leve! of excess
and obsolete inventory associated with our raw materials and production inventory by comparing the on
hand inventory balances and inventory on order to the next 12 months of forecasted demand. We then
adjust this calculation for inventory that has a high likelihood of use beyond one year or can be used in
other products which may have lower demands. After this adjustment, we arrive at our total exposure
for excess and obsolete inventory within our raw materials and production inventory. As part of this
analysis, we also determine whether there are potential amounts owed to vendors as a result of
cancelled or modified inventory orders. We estimate and record a separate liability which is included in
accrued and other liabilities in the accompanying balance sheets for such amounts owed. For spare
parts inventory, we calculate the inventory allowance based upon a percentage of total spare parts
inventory balances. This percentage is calculated using certain estimates and assumptions, including
comparisons of on hand inventory to build forecasts, historical obsolescence in our spare parts
warehouses, and spare parts specifically identified as excess or obsolete.

Both methodologies for analyzing excess and absolete inventory and determining the inventory
allowance are significantly affected by future demand and usage of our products. There are many
factors that could potentially affect the future demand or usage of our products, including the following:

o Qverall condition of the semiconductor manufacturing equipment industry which is highly
cyclical in nature;
Rate at which our customers take delivery of our light source systems;
Loss of any of our three major customers or significant change in demand from any of these
three customers;

o Mix of light source system models and any changes to that mix required by our customers;
and

« Utilization rates of our light sources at semiconductor device manufacturers

Based upon our experience, we believe that the estimates we use in calculating the inventory
allowance are reasonable and properly reflect the risk of excess and obsolete inventory. If actual
demand or the usage period for our inventory are substantially different from our estimates, adjustments
to our inventory allowance may be required, which could have a material adverse effect on our financial
condition and results of operations.

Warranty Provision
We maintain an accrual for the estimated cost of product warranties associated with our product

sales. Warranty costs include the replacement parts and labor costs to repair our products during the
warranty periods. At the time revenue is recognized, we record a warranty provision, which is included in
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cost of product sales in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations. The warranty
coverage period and terms vary by light source model. In general, the light source system warranty
period ranges from 17 to 26 months after shipment. We also warrant consumables and spare parts sold
to our customers and the coverage period varies by spare part type as some types include time based
warranty periods and others include usage based warranty periods. On average, the warranty period for
consumables and spare parts is approximately 6 months from the date of shipment. The warranty
provision for light source systems is reviewed monthly and determined by using a financial model, which
takes into consideration actual historical expenses, and potential risks associated with our different light
source system models. This financial model is then used to estimate future expenses related to
warranty and the required warranty provision. The risk levels used within this mode! are reviewed and
updated as risk levels change by model over its product life cycle. Due to the highly technical nature of
our light source system products, the newer model light sources have higher inherent warranty risks and
require higher warranty provisions. The warranty provision for consumables and spare parts is
determined by using actual historical data.

We actively engage in product improvement programs and processes to limit our warranty
costs, but our warranty obligation is affected by the compiexity of our product, product failure rates and
costs incurred to correct those product failures at customer sites. The industry in which we operate is
subject to rapid technological change, and as a result, we periodically introduce newer, more compiex
light sources. Aithough we classify these newly released light source models as having a higher risk in
our warranty financial model resulting in higher warranty provisions, we are more likely to have
differences between the estimated and actual warranty costs for these new products. This is due to
limited or no historical product performance data on which to base our future warranty costs. Warranty
provisions for our older and more established light source models are more predictable as we have more
historical information available on these products. If actual product failure rates or estimated costs to
repair those product failures were to differ from our estimates, revisions to our estimated warranty
provision would be required, which could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and

results of aperations.
Income Taxes

We account for income taxes in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
No. 109 (“SFAS 109"), “Accounting for Income Taxes.” Pursuant to SFAS 109, a deferred tax asset or
liability is generally recognized for the estimated future tax effects attributable to temporary differences,
net operating loss carryforwards and tax credit carryforwards. Deferred tax assets are to be reduced by
a valuation allowance if, based on the weight of available evidence, it is more likely than not that some
portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized within the carryback or carryforward periods.
Information about an enterprise's current financial position and its results of operations for the current
and preceding years, as well as all currently available information about future years shouid be
considered.

We have considered our industry’s outlook for the future, our historical performance and
estimated future taxable income, and ongoing tax planning strategies in assessing the need for a
valuation allowance. Using this information, we have prepared a model to forecast our expected taxable
income in future years in order to estimate when the benefits of our deferred tax assets are likely to be
realized. Based upon the analysis, we believe that it is more likely than not that the results of future
operations will generate sufficient taxable income to realize the deferred tax assets within the period
allowed by current applicable tax law and, as such, no valuation allowance against deferred tax assets is
provided.

A material adverse change in the outicok for worldwide lithography tool sales, in the expected
selling prices or profit margins for our products, or in our expected share of the global market for
lithography light sources could cause us to determine that a valuation aliowance is needed for some or
all of our deferred tax assets, and would result in an increase to our income tax provision in the period in
which such determination is made.
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YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002 AND 2003

Revenues. Our revenues consist of product sales, which include sales of light source systems,
consumable and spare parts, upgrades, service, service contracts and training. Our revenues also
consist of other revenues which include revenue from funded development activities performed for
customers and government contracts and license agreements. We do not recognize any revenue for
light source systems prior to shipment. The systems are tested by us in environments similar to those
used by our customers prior to shipment to ensure that they meet the customers’ specifications and will
interface with the customers’ software. Our installation obligations are perfunctory within the framework
of Staff Accounting Bulletin 104. One of our customers has an acceptance provision, which is satisfied
by the issuance of an acceptance certificate following a visual inspection of the system by the customer.
We do not recognize revenue on systems shipped to that customer until we receive the acceptance
certificate. There are no customer retentions. Revenue from consumables and spare parts sales is
recognized at the point that legal title passes to the customer, which is generally upon shipment from our
facility. Service and training revenue is generally recognized at the time that the services are rendered
or the training class is completed. Service contract revenues are generally recorded as revenue ratably
over the life of the contract or per the specific terms of the agreement. Funded development contracts
are accounted for on the percentage-of-completion method based on the relationship of costs incurred
to total estimated costs. Revenues generated from funded development contracts are derived from cost
sharing contracts between us and certain customers. The costs associated with these contracts are
included in research and development expenses in the period incurred and are not listed separately as
other cost or expenses in the consolidated statements of operations. If milestones on funded
development contracts require that specific results be achieved or reported by us, revenue is not
recognized until that milestone is completed.

The following table summarizes the components of our revenue:
December 31,

2001 2002 2003
(in thousands, except units sold)

Light source systems:

Revenue $ 189,518 $ 203,106 $ 160,302
Units sold 335 282 163
Average selling price $ 566 $ 720 $ 983

Consumable and spare parts and

service products $ 77,485 $ 84,889 $ 105514
Other revenue $ 2,441 $ 2,165 $ 1,680
Total revenue . $ 269,444 $ 290,160 $ 267,496

Product sales decreased 8% from $288.0 million in 2002 to $265.8 million in 2003, primarily due
to a 42% decrease in the number of light source systems sold offset by a 37% increase in the average
selling price. A total of 282 light source systems were sold in 2002 at an average selling price of
$720,000, compared to 163 systems sold in 2003 at an average selling price of $983,000. On a foreign
currency adjusted basis, the average selling price for 2002 was $716,000 compared to $963,000 for
2003. This increase in foreign currency adjusted average selling price from year to year reflects the
inclusion in the product mix of the higher priced XLA 100 light source system which was introduced in
the first quarter of 2003 and has a higher average selling price. Sales of consumable and spare parts
and service products increased 24% from $84.9 million in 2002 to $105.5 million in 2003. The increase
in this type of product sales was due to increased utilization of our DUV light source by chipmakers and
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an increased installed base in 2003. Revenues from funded development projects were $2.2 million in
2002 and $1.7 million in 2003.

Our backlog at December 31, 2002 was $101.0 million compared to $103.9 million at December
31, 2003. Bookings for the year ended December 31, 2002 and December 31, 2003 were $294.0 million
and $270.4 million, respectively. This decrease in bookings was primarily due to a lower volume of laser
light source systems bookings offset by an increase in bookings of consumable and spare parts and
service products. The book-to-bill ratio for the quarter ended December 31, 2002 was 1.25 compared to
.92 for the quarter ended December 31, 2003. This decrease in the book-to-bill ratio was primarily due
to the combined impact of reduced light source system lead times and the light source systems product
mix shifting toward KrF systems, which have a lower average selling price. This shift in product mix
toward KrF systems reflects chipmakers’ need for more capacity tools.

We installed 284 light sources at chipmakers and other end-users during 2002 as compared to
231 light sources installed during 2003.

Our sales are generated primarily by shipments to customers in Japan, Europe, and the United
States. Approximately 90% in 2002 and 88% in 2003 of our sales were derived from customers outside
the United States. We maintain a wholly-owned Japanese subsidiary, which sells to our Japanese
customers. Revenues from Japanese customers, generated primarily by this subsidiary, accounted for
43% in 2002 and 44% in 2003. The activities of our Japanese subsidiary are limited to sales and service
of products purchased by the subsidiary from the parent corporation. We anticipate that international
sales will continue to account for a significant portion of our net sales.

Sales to our three largest customers, ASM Lithography, Canon, and Nikon, amounted to 32%,
21% and 24%, respectively, of total revenue for 2002, and 24%, 24% and 21%, respectively, of total
revenue for 2003.

Cost of Product Sales. Cost of product sales includes direct material and labor, warranty
expenses, license fees, and manufacturing and service overhead, and foreign exchange gains and
losses on foreign currency forward exchange contracts associated with purchases of our products by our
Japanese subsidiary for resale under firm third-party sales commitments. Shipping costs associated
with our product sales are also included in cost of product sales. We do not charge our customers for
shipping fees and such costs are not significant.

Although the number of light source systems recorded as revenue was significantly lower in
2003 as compared to 2002, in absolute dollars, the cost of product sales increased 16% from $162.1
million for 2002 to $187.7 million for 2003. This increase in the cost of product sales from year to year is
primarily due to the overall costs associated with our new XLA 100 light source systems and its initial
transition to manufacturing in the first quarter of 2003. These additional costs included infrastructure
building and facilities expenses as well as reduced efficiencies associated with the learning curve for the
production of this new light source system. In addition, the increase in the cost of product sales reflects
the costs associated with the increase in sales of consumables and spare parts and service products in
2003 compared to 2002.

The gross margin on product sales was 43.7% for 2002 as compared to 29.4% in 2003. This
lower gross margin in 2003 reflects the lower revenues with higher overall costs associated with the
introduction of our new XL series light source system. Gross margins were also negatively impacted by
additional expenses of approximately $4.2 million recorded in the second quarter of 2003 for costs
associated with the April 2003 reduction in workforce and the write down of manufacturing assets. Gross
margins were further reduced in 2003 as a result of additional Korean customs expenses associated
with our Korean operations incurred in the third quarter of 2003. We anticipate that the gross margins
will increase over the next couple of quarters as a result of increasing revenues and improved
efficiencies associated with the production of the XL series light source as well as the continued benefits
resulting from the cost savings measures taken in the second quarter of 2003.
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Research and Development. Research and development expenses include costs of internally-
funded and externally-funded projects as well as continuing research support expenses, which primarily
include employee and material costs, depreciation of equipment and other engineering related costs.
Research and development expenses decreased 21% from $73.7 million for the year ended December
31, 2002 to $58.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2003, due primarily to the early stages of the
MOPA common platform development effort in 2002 and its release to manufacturing with the
introduction of the XLA 100 in the first quarter of 2003. We shipped the first light source system that
utilizes the MOPA technology, the XLA 100, in February 2003. We also continued to invest in EUV, F2
and beam delivery unit technology and to focus on next generation KrF and ArF products based on the
XL platform. As a percentage of total revenues, research and development expenses decreased from
25.4% for 2002 to 21.8% for 2003, primarily due to the different stages of the MOPA platform
development effort.

Sales and Marketing. Sales and marketing expenses include the expenses of the sales,
marketing and customer support staff and other marketing expenses. Sales and marketing expenses
decreased 1% from $17.2 million for 2002 to $17.0 million for 2003, due to additional expenses
associated with reductions in workforce in the second and fourth quarters of 2003 and asset write-offs in
the second quarter of 2003. These additional expenses were more than offset by lower expenses
resulting from the transfer of various senior members of the sales and marketing staff to general and
administrative functions as part of an organizational structure change made in the last quarter of 2002.
As a percentage of total revenues, such sales and marketing expenses increased from 5.9% for 2002 to
6.3% for 2003.

General and Administrative. General and administrative expenses consist primarily of
management and administrative personnel costs, professional services and administrative operating
costs. General and administrative expenses increased 115% from $18.2 million for 2002 to $39.1 million
for 2003, due primarily to a $15.6 million tenant improvement write-off associated with the leased
facilities vacated during the third quarter of 2003. This write-off was partially offset by the cost savings
realized in the third and fourth quarters of 2003 as a result of the cost reduction efforts implemented in
the second quarter of 2003. In addition, general and administrative expenses in 2003 increased from
2002 levels due to the transfer of various senior personnel from the sales and marketing staff to general
and administrative functions in the last quarter of 2002. As a percentage of total revenues, such
expenses increased from 6.3% for 2002 to 14.6% for 2003.

Amortization of intangible assets. Amortization of intangible assets totaled $160,000 for 2002
and 2003. This amortization of intangible assets expense is consistent from year to year and relates to
the existing technology associated with the acquisition of Active Control eXperts, inc., or ACX, which
was completed in early 2001. With our adoption of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No.
142, ("SFAS 142"), “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets”, on January 1, 2002, we discontinued the
amortization of goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives associated with previous
purchase business combinations.

Other Income (Expense) - Nef. Net other income (expense) consists primarily of interest
income and expense and foreign currency exchange gains and losses associated with fluctuations in the
value of the functional currencies of our foreign subsidiary offices against the United States dollar. Net
other expense totaled $1.9 million and $1.1 million for 2002 and 2003, respectively. The decrease in net
other expense was primarily due to foreign currency exchange gains in 2003 compared to foreign
currency exchange losses recorded in 2002, and decreases in interest expense and interest income
from year to year. Also included in net other expenses for 2003 was a loss on disposal of assets of
approximately $427,000 as a result of a fixed asset audit conducted in the fourth quarter of 2003. The
decreased interest expense from period to period was caused by the lower interest rate on the 2002
Convertible Subordinated Notes (“2002 Notes”) issued by us in 2002, which is reflected in the interest
expense amounts for 2003 as compared to additional interest which was recorded in 2002 as the result
of the principal amounts of both our old 1997 Convertible Subordinated Notes (“1997 Notes”) issued in
1997 and the 2002 Notes issued in 2002 being outstanding during part of 2002. The decreased interest
income in 2003 was primarily due to lower average cash and investment balances in 2003 as compared

23




to 2002 as a result of cash used during 2003 for the continued construction of our new manufacturing
and office facility in San Diego which was completed in the third quarter of 2003, and cash used in
operating activities. Foreign currency exchange losses totaled $723,000, interest income totaled $10.1
million and interest expense totaled $11.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2002, compared to a
foreign currency exchange gain of $436,000, interest income of $8.9 million and interest expense of
$10.5 miltion for the year ended December 31, 2003.

Income Tax Provision (Benefit). The tax provision of $2.7 million and the tax benefit of $21.5
million for the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2003, respectively, reflects an annual effective rate
of 16% and 60%, respectively. The change in the annual effective tax rate during the year ended
December 31, 2002 from 16% to a benefit rate of 60% is primarily attributable to tax benefits from U.S.
export incentive programs and research and development and manufacturing investment credits. The
annual effective tax rates for both periods are less than the U.S. statutory rate of 35% primarily as a
result of permanent book/tax differences and tax credits. The tax benefit rate for 2003 reflects the
increased impact of our tax credits and foreign sales incentives in a low income or loss environment.
The effective tax rate is a function of current tax law and geographic location of pre-tax income. There is
currently pending legislation to repeal the existing U.S. export incentives and the federal research credit
is scheduled to expire for expenses incurred on or after June 30, 2004. Should these items be repealed
or allowed to expire with no replacement benefits, our effective tax rate would likely increase.

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001 AND 2002

Revenues. Product sales increased 8% from $267.0 million in 2001 to $288.0 million in 2002,
primarily due to a 27% increase in the average selling price of our light source systems and an increase
in consumable and spare parts, service revenue and other non-system products. A total of 335 light
source systems were sold in 2001 at an average selling price of $566,000, compared to 282 systems
sold in 2002 at an average selling price of $720,000. On a foreign currency adjusted basis, the average
selling price for 2001 was $578,000 compared to $716,000 for 2002. This increase in foreign currency
adjusted average selling price from period to period refiects increased sales in 2002 of our NanoLith
7000 and ELS-7000 series products which had higher average selling prices compared to the ELS-
6000/6010 KrF series products sold in 2001. Sales of consumable and spare parts and service products
increased 10% from $77.5 million to $84.9 million for 2001 and 2002, respectively. The increase in this
type of product sales was due to slightly increased utilization of our DUV light sources by chipmakers
and an increased installed base in 2002. Revenues from funded development projects were $2.4
million and $2.2 million for 2001 and 2002, respectively.

Approximately 85% and 90% of our sales in 2001 and 2002, respectively, were derived from
customers outside the United States. Revenues from Japanese customers, generated primarily by this
subsidiary, accounted for 41% and 43% of revenues in 2001 and 2002, respectively.

Sales to our three largest customers, ASM Lithography, Canon, and Nikon, amounted to 32%,
15% and 29%, respectively, of total revenue for 2001, and 32%, 21% and 24%, respectively, of total

revenue for 2002.

Cost of Product Sales. Although the number of light source systems recognized to revenue was
tower in 2002 as compared to 2001, the cost of product sales increased 7% from $151.3 million in 2001
to $162.1 million in 2002. This increase from period to period is primarily due to the higher material cost
of the ELS-7000 and NanoLith 7000 light source systems and the higher warranty provisions required for
the early shipments of these newer model light sources in 2002. In addition, net losses in 2002 as
compared to net gains in 2001 on the foreign currency forward exchange contracts entered into by our
Japanese subsidiary contributed to this overall cost of sales increase. These cost of product increases
during 2002 were partially offset by increased manufacturing efficiencies in 2002.

The gross margin on product sales was 43.3% and 43.7% for 2001 and 2002, respectively. The

increase in gross margin in 2002 as compared to 2001 is primarily due to the building of inventories in
2002 in preparation for the initial manufacturing of the XLA 100 product. With the XLA 100 production
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starting in the fourth quarter of 2002, production activities were higher than normal in the earlier quarters
of 2002 to accommodate the ramp of this new product. Although there were fewer light source system
unit sales during 2002 as compared to 2001, production levels were much higher, resulting in increased
manufacturing efficiencies and higher ending inventory balances in 2002, A portion of the dollar
increase in inventory is due to the initial material build requirements and higher overall cost of the XLA
100 product. During 2001, our inventory balances decreased by $15.2 million from December 31, 2000,
whereas inventory balances increased by $38.3 million during the twelve months ended December 31,
2002.

Research and Development. Research and development expenses increased 26% from $58.4
million for 2001 to $73.7 million for 2002, due primarily to our most recent product development effort,
the MOPA piatform, or XL series. We shipped the first light source system that utilizes the MOPA
platform, the XLA 100, in February 2003. We also continued to invest in EUV technology and the
continuing engineering of the ELS-7000 and NanoLith 7000 products. As a percentage of total
revenues, such expenses increased from 21.6% to 25.4%, primarily due to MOPA platform development
effort.

Sales and Marketing. Sales and marketing expenses decreased 13% from $19.6 million for
2001 to $17.2 million for 2002, due primarily to increased operational efficiencies as well as heightened
cost confrols made necessary by the continuing downturn in the semiconductor industry. As a
percentage of total revenues, such expenses decreased from 7.3% to 5.9%.

General and Administrative. General and administrative expenses decreased 4% from $19.0
million for 2001 to $18.2 million for 2002, due primarily to ongoing improvements in operational
efficiencies and increased cost controls in 2002 necessitated by overall industry conditions. As a
percentage of total revenues, such expenses decreased from 7.0% to 6.3%.

Amortization of intangible assets. Amortization of intangible assets totaled $3.1 million for 2001
as compared to $160,000 for 2002. This decrease in amortization of goodwill and intangible assets was
primarily due to the adoption of SFAS 142 on January 1, 2002, which discontinued the amortization of
goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives associated with previous purchase business
combinations. In 2001, we amortized amounts associated with the goodwill and intangible assets
resulting from the acquisition of ACX in February 2001. In 2002, we only amortized intangible assets
with definite lives per SFAS 142,

Purchased In-Process Research and Development. We incurred $5.1 million of such expenses
during the year ended December 31, 2001 compared o no such expenses for the year ended December
31, 2002. These expenses for the year ended December 31, 2001 were due to the acquisition of ACX
and represented the fair value of ACX development projects associated with the application of its
technology to the semiconductor market. As of the date of the ACX acquisition, this purchased in-
process research and development was expensed because the application of this technology to the
semiconductor market was at a stage of development that required further research and development
before reaching technological feasibility and commercial viability.

Other Expense - Net. Net other expense totaled $1.4 million and $1.9 million for the years
ended December 31, 2001 and 2002, respectively. The increase in net other expense was primarily due
to increased interest expense and foreign exchange losses during the year, which were almost
completely offset by increased interest income. Aithough the interest rate on the 2002 Notes is lower
than the blended rate on the 1897 Notes, interest expense was higher in 2002 as compared to 2001 as a
result of additional interest from both the 1997 Notes and 2002 Notes balances being outstanding in
early 2002. The increased interest income in 2002 was primarily due to higher cash balances, which
resulted from the bond transactions, which occurred in the first quarter of 2002, These transactions
included the private placement of the 2002 Notes in February 2002 and the redemption of the 1997
Notes that were not converted to common stock prior to the March 25, 2002 redemption date. Foreign
currency exchange gains totaled $877,000, interest income totaled $8.3 million and interest expense
totaled $10.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2001, compared to foreign currency exchange
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losses of $723,000, interest income of $10.1 million and interest expense of $11.2 million for the year
ended December 31, 2002.

Our results of operations are subject to fluctuations in the value of the Japanese yen against the
United States doliar. Sales by us to our Japanese subsidiary are denominated in dollars, and sales by
the subsidiary to customers in Japan are denominated in yen. Cur Japanese subsidiary manages its
exposure to such fluctuations by entering into foreign currency forward exchange contracts to hedge its
cash flow exposure to Cymer. From January 1, 2001 through June 30, 2001, gains or losses resulting
from the change in the value of contracts entered into prior to July 1, 2001 were recorded as other
income (expense) in the consolidated statements of operations. Subsequent to June 30, 2001, gains or
losses resulting from contracts entered into after July 1, 2001 were initially recorded in other
comprehensive income (loss). The net amount of unrealized effective gain or loss on the date the light
source system is received by our Japanese subsidiary is reclassified to cost of sales on the date that the
light source system is sold to the third party. Gains and losses resulting from foreign currency translation
are accumulated as a separate component of consolidated stockholders’ equity.

Income Tax Provision. The tax provision of $2.9 million and $2.7 million for the years ended
December 31, 2001 and 2002, respectively, reflects an annual effective rate of 25% and 16%,
respectively. The decrease in the annual effective tax rate during the year ended December 31, 2002
from 25% to 16% is primarily attributable to tax benefits from U.S. export incentive programs and
research and development and manufacturing investment credits. The annual effective tax rates for both
periods are less than the U.S. statutory rate of 35% primarily as a result of permanent book/tax

differences and tax credits.
‘LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

As of December 31, 2003, we had approximately $230.7 million in cash and cash equivaients,
$93.5 million in short-term investments, $77.5 million in long-term investments, and $397.8 million in

working capital.

In August 1997, we issued $172.5 million in aggregate principal amount in a private placement
of notes. These 3%:% / 7%% Step-Up Convertible Subordinated Notes were due on August 6, 2004 and
were convertible at the option of the holder into shares of common stock of Cymer. The conversion rate
on the 1997 Notes was 21.2766 shares per $1,000 principal amount or an effective conversion price of
$47.00 per share. In 2001, we repurchased a total of $24.9 million of the 1997 notes then outstanding.
The 1997 Notes were called for redemption on March 25, 2002. Immediately prior to the March 25, 2002
redemption date, holders of $113.0 million of the outstanding principal amount converted their 1997
Notes into shares of our common stock. As a result of these conversions, 2,325,542 shares of our
common stock were issued to the note holders and the remaining $38.0 million of the outstanding
principal amount of the 1997 Notes was redeemed.

In February 2002, we issued $250.0 million in aggregate principal amount in a private placement
of notes. The 2002 Notes are due on February 15, 2009 with interest payable semi-annually on
February 15 and August 15 of each year at 3%2% per annum. These 2002 Notes are convertible into
shares of our common stock at a conversion rate of 20 shares per $1,000 principal amount or an
effective conversion price of $50.00 per share. We used a portion of the net proceeds from this private
placement to redeem the 1997 Notes. The remaining proceeds will be used for our future operating,
investing and financing activities.

Net cash provided by operating activities was approximately $58.4 million and $25.8 million for
2001 and 2002, respectively, compared to $3.6 million used in operating activities for 2003. Net cash
provided by operating activities during 2001 primarily reflects a significant reduction in net income from
the prior year due to the downturn in the semiconductor industry during 2001. As a result of this
downturn and overall reduced business activities during the period, there were significant decreases in
accounts receivable and inventory during the period. These were offset by decreases in accounts
payable, accrued and other liabilities, and income taxes payable during the same period. Net cash
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provided by operating activities during 2002 primarily reflects increases in net income, accounts payable
and other liabilities which were offset by increases in inventory. The increase in inventory was primarily
due to the increased bookings and overall business activities in the first three quarters and new raw
materials requirements associated with the initial production of the XLA 100 in the fourth quarter of 2002.
Cash was also used as part of our investment in research and development for our MOPA platform
effort in 2002. Net cash used in operating activities during 2003 reflects the net loss for the year due to
the continued downturn in the semiconductor industry. This net loss for the year also reflects additional
overall costs associated with our new XLA 100 light source system and its introduction to manufacturing
in early 2003. Cash was further reduced by increases in customer accounts receivable, decreases in
accounts payable, and accrued expenses and other liabilities offset by a decrease in inventory from
period to period. :

Net cash used in investing activities was approximately $6.2 million, $166.5 million, and $5.2
million for 2001, 2002, and 2003, respectively. In 2001, the cash used in investing activities was
primarily due to the timing of short term and long term investments maturing and being reinvested during
the period offset by a $6.0 million payment made to acquire patents and the purchase of $20.4 million in
capital equipment. In 2002, the $166.5 million used in investing activities primarily reflects short-term
and long-term investments made using the net proceeds generated by the 2002 Note transactions in
February and March 2002, and $45.2 million in capital equipment purchases. Included in these capital
purchases for 2002 are costs associated with our new spare parts refurbishment factory in Korea, which
was completed in September 2002, and costs associated with the construction of a new manufacturing
and office facility adjacent to our corporate headquarters located in San Diego, California. In 2003, the
cash used in investing activites was due primarily to the continued construction of the new
manufacturing and office facility in San Diego and purchases of required manufacturing equipment for
the new facility. These capital acquisitions during the year were offset by the timing of short-term and
long-term investments that matured and were reinvested.

Net cash used in financing activities was approximately $14.5 million for 2001 compared to net
cash provided by financing activities of approximately $225.2 million and $41.4 million for 2002 and
2003, respectively. In 2001, the cash used in financing activities was attributable to the repurchase of
$24.9 million in outstanding notes and a net payment on the revolving loan of $1.1 million during the
period, partially offset by the receipt of $11.8 million from the exercise of employee stock options. In
2002, the $225.2 million provided by financing activities was primarily due to the activity during the first
quarter of 2002 related to our 2002 Notes. The private placement of notes that we completed in
February 2002 resulted in net proceeds of approximately $242.1 million. Of these proceeds, we used
$39.6 million to redeem a portion of our outstanding 1997 Notes and pay accrued interest and premiums
on those notes. In addition, during 2002 we received proceeds of $22.5 million from the exercise of
employee stock options. In 2003, the cash provided by financing activities was primarily due to proceeds
from the exercise of employee stock options of $48.2 million offset by a $6.7 million payment on our
Japanese revolving loan, which occurred in June 2003.

We had certain loan agreements with a commercial bank which provided for unsecured
revolving loan facilities allowing for borrowings of $10.0 million and $20.0 million under a U.S. line of
credit and Japanese line of credit, respectively. Under the loan agreements, we were able to borrow in
U.S. dollars or Japanese yen, and interest accrued on outstanding borrowings at LIBOR plus 1.75% on
U.S. dollar-denominated borrowings and at the yen Cost of Funds rate plus 1.5% on yen-denominated
borrowings. The loan agreements required us to maintain compliance with certain financial and other
covenants, including tangible net worth, quick ratio and profitability requirements. The loan agreements
expired on June 16, 2003 and were not renewed,

Since our initial public offering and a secondary.public offering, both in 1996, we have funded
our operations primarily from cash generated from operations, the proceeds of the 1997 and 2002 Notes
offerings in August 1997 and February 2002, bank borrowings, and the proceeds from employee stock
option exercises.
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We require substantial working capital to fund our business, particularly to finance inventories,
including purchase orders with our vendors and accounts receivable, and for capital expenditures. Our
future capital requirements depend on many factors, including our manufacturing activity, the timing and
extent of spending to support product development efforts, expansion of sales and marketing and field
service and support, competitive labor market compensation requirements, the timing of introductions of
new products and enhancements to existing products, and the market acceptance of our products. We
believe that we have sufficient working capital to sustain operations and provide for the future expansion
of our business for at least the next 12 months.

The following summarizes our contractual obligations and other commitments as of December
31, 2003, and the impact such obligations could have on our liquidity and cash flow in future periods (in

thousands):
Amount of Commitment Expiring byPeriod
2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 Thereafter Total

Capital lease obligations $ 45 $ - $ - $ - ] $ - $ 45
Operating lease obligations 4,507 3,809 3,787 3,782 3,236 3,328 22,450
Convertible subordinated notes - - - - - 250,000 250,000
Interest on convertible

subordinated notes 8,750 8,750 8,750 8,750 8,750 4,375 48,125
Purchase orders (1) 93,878 - - - - - 93,878

Total commitments $107,180 $12,559 $12,537 $12,532 $11,986 $ 257,704 $ 414,408

(1) This balance reflects purchase orders outstanding as ofMarch 2, 2004.

At December 31, 2002 and 2003, we did not have any relationship with unconsolidated entities
or financial partnerships, such as entities often referred to as structured finance variable interest,. or
special purpose entities, which would have been established for the purpose of facilitating off-balance
sheet arrangements or other contractually narrow or limited purposes. In addition, we did not engage in
trading activities involving non-exchange traded contracts. As a result, we are not exposed to any
financing, liquidity, market or credit risk that could arise if we had engaged in such relationships. We do
not have relationships and transactions with persons and entities that derive benefits from their non-
independent relationship with us or our related parties except as disclosed herein.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

In January 2004, we signed a research and development agreement with Intel. This agreement
will provide us with funding of $20.0 million over the next three years to accelerate the development of
production-worthy EUV lithography light sources. The funding to be received from Intel under this
agreement is milestone based and will be netted against our total research and development expenses
in the period that the milestone is completed.

in February 2004, we acquired 6% of the remaining 25% minority interest in our majority-owned
subsidiary, Cymer Korea. We paid a total of $2.0 million for this 6% interest and recorded $1.3 million of
the $2.0 million as an additional investment in Cymer Korea and the remaining $711,000 as goodwill.
This transaction increased our total interest in Cymer Korea from 75% to 81%.

In February 2004, we signed an intellectual property license agreement with Intel for the use of
certain Intel patents and trade secrets related to the EUV technology. Under the terms of this
agreement, we will pay license fees to Intel if we are successful in commercializing an EUV lithography
light source capable of high volume manufacturing by the end of the second quarter of 2008. The
license payments under this agreement are triggered in the first quarter in which we successfully ship
the first complete high volume manufacturing EUV source system. Upon shipment of this first unit, we
will pay Intel $1.25 million in license fees per quarter for a period of 16 quarters. The quarterly license
amounts paid to Intel will be related to the sale of our EUV light source systems and, as a resuit, will be
recorded as cost of sale in the period that the payment is made to Intel.
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RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In January 2003, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 46 (“FIN 46”), “Consolidation of Variable
interest Entities”. FIN 46 provides guidance on how to identify a variable interest entity (VIE) and
determines when the assets, liabilities, and results of operations of a VIE need to be included in a
company's consolidated financial statements. FIN 46 also requires additional disclosures by primary
beneficiaries and other significant variable interest holders in a VIE. The provisions of FIN 46 are
effective immediately for all VIEs created after January 31, 2003. For VIEs created before February 1,
2003, the provisions of FIN 46 must be adopted at the beginning of the first interim or annual reporting
period beginning after December 15, 2003. We do not believe that we will be subject to the
consalidation or disclosure requirements of FIN 46.

in December 2003, FASB issued Interpretation No. 46R, “Consolidation of Variable Interest
Entities”, which supersedes FIN 46. The application of the revised interpretation is required in the
financial statements of companies that have interests in special purpose entities for periods after
December 15, 2003. We do not believe the application of this interpretation will have a material effect
on the consolidated financial statements.

RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES THAT MAY AFFECT RESULTS

The risks described below may not be the only risks we face. Additional risks that we do not
currently think are material may also impair our business operations. If any of the events or
circumstances described in the following risks actually occur, our business, financial condition or results
of operations could suffer, and the trading price of our common stock could decline.

Our revenues and operating results from quarter-to-quarter have varied in the past and our
future operating results may continue to fluctuate significantly due to many factors including those listed
in this section and throughout this annual report on Form 10-K for the period ended December 31, 2003.
These factors inciude:

o demand for semiconductors in general and, in particular, for leading edge devices with
smaller circuit geometries;

e cyclicality in the market for semiconductor manufacturing equipment;

rates at which semiconductor device manufacturers take delivery of photolithography tools

from photolithography tool manufactures (“our customers”);

rates at which our customers take delivery of light source systems from us;

timing and size of orders from our small base of customers;

product lead time demands from our customers and the semiconductor manufacturers;

mix of light source models, consumable and spare parts and service revenues in our total

revenues,

changes in the price and profitability of our products;

our ability to develop and implement new technologies and introduce new products;

changes in market penetration by our competitors;

utilization rates of light sources and sales of consumable and spare parts and services;

our ability to manage our manufacturing requirements;

foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations, principally with respect to the Japanese yen (in

which sales by our Japanese subsidiary are denominated);

¢ worldwide palitical instability; -

s changing global economic conditions; and

* intellectual property protection.

We also have historically derived a large portion of our quarterly and annual revenues from
selling a small number of light source systems. Because we sell a small number of products, the precise
time that we recognize revenue from an order may have a significant impact on our total revenue for a
particular period. Our customers may cancel or reschedule orders with little or no penalty. Orders




expected in one quarter could shift to another period due to changes in the anticipated timing of
customers’ purchase decisions or rescheduled delivery dates requested by our customers. Our
operating results for a particular quarter or year may be adversely affected if our customers, particularly
our three largest customers, cancel or reschedule orders, or if we cannot fill orders in time due to
unexpected delays in manufacturing, testing, shipping, and product acceptance.

We manage our expense levels based, in large part, on expected future revenues. As a result,
our expenses are relatively fixed for the short term, and if our actual revenue decreases below the level
we expect, our operating results will be adversely affected. As a result of these or other factors, we
could fail to achieve our expectations as to future revenue, gross profit and operating income. Our
failure to meet the performance expectations set and published by external sources could result in a
sudden and significant drop in the price of our stock, particularly on a short-term basis, and could
negatively affect the value of any investment in our stock.

Our business depends on the semiconductor equipment industry, which is highly volatile and
unpredictable.

The semiconductor equipment industry is highly cyclical. We derive a substantial percentage of
our revenues from photolithography tool manufacturers. Our customers depend in turn on the demand
for their photolithography tool products from their customers, the semiconductor device manufacturers.
The capital equipment expenditures of semiconductor manufacturers depend on a number of factors,
including the current and anticipated market demand for semiconductors and products using

semiconductors.

The semiconductor industry is cyclical in nature and historically has experienced periodic ups
and downs and currently appears to be recovering from a significant and prolonged downturn. This
cyclical nature of the industry in which we operate affects our ability to accurately predict future revenue
and thus, future expense levels. When cyclical fluctuations result in lower than expected revenue levels,
operating results may be adversely affected and cost reduction measures may be necessary in order for
us to remain competitive and financially sound. During a down cycle, we must be in a position to adjust
our cost and expense structure to prevailing market conditions and to continue to motivate and retain our
key employees. In addition, during periods of rapid growth, we must be able to increase manufacturing
capacity and personnel o meet customer demand. We can provide no assurance that these objectives
can be metin a timely manner in response to industry cycles.

Although there is evidence that the prolonged downturn in the semiconductor industry may be
over, we are not able to predict with any certainty the recovery of the semiconductor industry or the order
of magnitude of any recovery. The recent downturn has had a severe effect on the demand for
semiconductor manufacturing equipment, including photolithography tools that our customers produce.
If overall market conditions deteriorate in the near term, our current operating levels may negatively
impact our profitability. We believe that downturns in the semiconductor manufacturing industry will
occur periodically, and result in periodic decreases in demand for all semiconductor manufacturing
equipment, including photolithography toals our customers manufacture. As a result, fluctuating levels of
investment by semiconductor device manufacturers and pricing volatility will continue to materially affect
our aggregate bookings, revenues and operating results. Also, even during periods of reduced revenues
we believe we must continue to invest in research and development and to maintain extensive ongoing
worldwide customer service and support capabilities to remain competitive, which may temporarily harm
our financial results. Accordingly, these downturns are likely to continue to adversely affect our
business, financial condition and operating results and our operating results may fall below the
expectations of public market analysts or investors in some future quarter or quarters. Such failure to
meet operating result expectations would materially adversely affect the price of our common stock.

Our customers try to manage their inventories and production requirements to appropriate levels
that best reflect their expected sales to semiconductor device manufacturers. Market conditions in the
industry and production efficiency of the photolithography tool manufacturers can cause our customers
to expand or reduce their orders for new light source systems as they try to manage their inventories and
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production requirements to these levels. We continue to wark with our customers to better understand
these issues. However, we cannot guarantee that we will be successful in understanding our customers’
inventory management and production requirements or that our customers will not build up an excess
inventory of light source products. if our customers retain an excess inventory of light source products,
our revenue could be reduced in future periods as the excess inventory is utilized, which could adversely
affect our operating results, financial condition and cash flows. in addition, if our customers demand
shorter product lead times as a solution to improve their inventory and cash positions, our inventory
management and cash position may be impacted, which may adversely affect our operating results,
financial condition and cash flows.

A significant percentage of our revenue is derived from sales to a few large customers, and if we
are not able to retain these customers, or they reschedule, reduce or cancel orders, delay or
default on payments, our revenues would be reduced and our financial condition and cash flows
would suffer.

Three large companies, ASM Lithography, Canon and Nikon dominate the photolithography tool
business. Collectively, these three companies accounted for the following percentage of our total
revenue during the periods indicated:

Years ended December 31,

2001 2002 2003
ASM Lithography .........ooeeiuiiriiiiin i vare e 32% 32% 24%
(0710 To1 | U OO 15% 21% 24%
o I OO 29% 24% 21%
LIS | 76% 77% 69%

Collectively, these three companies account for the following percentage of our total accounts
receivable at the dates indicated:

December 31,

2002 2003
ASM LIthography ........covevvieeiiiiiceinirccin i 43% 38%
CANON e s 13% 14%
NIKON Lot 19% 18%

TOhal i 75% 70%

We expect that sales of our light source products to these three customers will continue to
account for a substantial majority of our revenue in the foreseeable future. None of our customers are
obligated to purchase a minimum number of our products in the aggregate or during any particular
period. The loss of any significant business from or production problems for any one of these three
customers may have a material adverse effect on our business and financial condition. Sales to these
customers may be affected by many factors, some of which are beyond our control. These factors
include:

a change in a customer’s competitive position in its industry;

a customer experiencing DUV photolithography tool production problems;

a decision to purchase light sources from other suppliers;

changes in economic conditions in the semiconductor or the photolithography tool
industries; and

¢ adecline in a customer’s financial condition.




A substantial percentage of our revenue is derived from the sale of a limited number of primary
products.

Our only product line is excimer light source systems, which include KrF and Arf systems, and
we expect these primary products to continue to account for a large percentage of our revenues in the
near term. Continued market acceptance of our primary products is, therefore, critical to our future
success. The primary market for excimer light sources is in the use of DUV photolithography equipment
for manufacturing deep-submicron semiconductor devices using smaller circuit geometries. The demand
for our products depends in part on the rate at which semiconductor device manufacturers further adopt
excimer light sources as the chosen light source for their photolithography tools. The rate with which
semiconductor manufacturers adopt excimer light sources may vary for a variety of reasons, including:

inadequate performance of photoresists used in advanced DUV photolithography;
potential shortages of specialized materials used in DUV optics;

productivity of 300mm lithography relative to 200mm tools; and

consglidation of chipmakers.

We cannot guarantee that these factors can or will be overcome or that the demand for our
excimer light source products will not be materially reduced. The demand for our light source products,
and therefore our operating results, financial condition and cash flows, could be adversely affected by a
number of factors, including:

s adecline in demand for our customers’ DUV photolithography tools;

» afailure to achieve continued market acceptance of our products;

e an improved version of products being offered by a competitor in the market we participate
in;
technological change that we are unable to address with our products; and
a failure to release new enhanced versions of our products on a timely basis.

We depend on the introduction of new products for our success, and we are subject to risks
associated with rapid technological change.

Rapid technological changes in semiconductor manufacturing processes subject us to increased
pressure to develop technological advances enabling such processes. We believe that our future
success depends in part upon our ability to develop, manufacture and timely introduce new light source
products with improved capabilities and to continue to enhance our existing light source systems and
process capabilities. Due to the risks inherent in transitioning to new products, we must forecast
accurate demand for new products while managing the transition from older products.

Our newest product introduction project consists of a technology change from a single-
discharge-chamber designed excimer light source to a dual-discharge-chamber design called MOPA.
This MOPA design represents a paradigm shift from current lithography technology and is projected to
enable higher power, tighter bandwidth and lower cost of operation for future optical lithography
applications across all three DUV wavelengths — 248nm, 193nm and 157nm. There are risks inherent in
transitioning to this new technology. These risks include effective execution of the product development
plan, adoption of the product by photolithography tool manufacturers and semiconductor manufacturers,
manufacturability and cost effectiveness of the new products and the development of a comparable
product by our competitors. '

We believe that semiconductor device manufacturers are currently developing a capability to
produce devices that are measured at 0.13 micron or less, and these efforts are driving the current
demand for our light source products for DUV photolithography systems. After semiconductor device
manufacturers have this capability, their demand for our light source products will depend, in part, on
whether they want to expand their capacity to manufacture these devices. This will in turn depend on
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whether their sales forecasts and projected manufacturing process yields justify the necessary
investments.

Future technologies, such as EUV and EPL, may render our excimer light source products
obsolete. We must manage product transitions, as introduction of new products could adversely affect
our sales of existing products. If new products are not introduced on time, or have refiability or quality
problems, our performance may be impacted by reduced orders, higher manufacturing costs, delays in
acceptance of and payment for new products, and additional service and warranty expenses. We may
not be able to develop and introduce new products or enhancements to our existing products and
processes in a timely or cost effective manner that satisfies customer needs or achieves market
acceptance. Failure to develop and introduce these new products and enhancements could materially
adversely affect our operating results, financial condition and cash flows.

We expect to face significant competition from multiple current and future competitors. We
believe that other companies are developing systems and products that are competitive to ours and are
planning to introduce new products to this market, which may affect our ability to sell our new products.
Furthermore, new products represent significant investments of our resources and their success, or lack
thereof, could have a material effect on our financial results.

We must effectively manage changes in our business.

in order to respond to the business cycles of the semiconductor industry, in the past few years
we have sharply expanded and contracted the scope of our operations and the number of employees in
many of our departments. As the semiconductor industry grows and contracts we will need to:

closely manage our global operations;

improve our process and other internal management systems;

improve our quality control, order fulfillment, field service and customer support capabilities;
quickly adapt to changing sales and marketing channels;

effectively manage our inventory levels; and

attract, train, retain and manage key personnel.

If we fail to effectively manage changes in our business, our operating results, financial condition
and cash flows would be adversely affected.

Economic, political, regulatory and other events in geographic areas where we have significant
sales or operations could interfere with our business.

We serve an increasingly global market. A large portion of our total revenues is derived from
customers located outside of the United States, particularly in Asian countries. We expect our
international sales to continue to account for a very large portion of our total revenues. In order to
support our foreign customers, we maintain a manufacturing and field service subsidiary in Korea as well
as field service and support subsidiaries in Japan, Taiwan, Singapore, the People’s Republic of Chlna
and the Netheriands.

We may not be able to manage our operations to address and support our global customers
effectively. Further, our investments in these types of activities may not make us competitive in the
global market or we may not be able to meet the service, support, and manufacturing levels required by
our global customers.

Additionally, we are subject to the risks inherent in doing business globally, including:
» unexpected changes in regulatory requirements;

+ fluctuations in exchange rates and currency controls;
* political and economic conditions and instability;




+ imposition of trade barriers and restrictions, including changes in tariff and freight rates,
foreign customs and duties;

difficulty in coordinating our management and operations in several different countries;
difficuities in staffing and managing foreign subsidiary and branch operations;

limited intellectual property protection in some countries;

potentially adverse tax consequences in some countries;

the possibility of accounts receivable collection difficulties;

in the case of Asia, the risk of business interruption and damage from earthquakes;

the effect of acts of terrorism and war; and

the burdens of complying with a variety of foreign laws.

Many of our major customers and many of the semiconductor device manufacturers who use
our light source products in their photolithography systems are located in Asia. Economic problems and
currency fluctuations affecting these regions in Asia could create a larger risk for us. Further, even
though it has not been difficult for us to comply with United States export controls, these export rules
could change in the future and make it more difficult or impossible for us to export our products to many
countries. Any of these vuinerabilities could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial
condition and results of operations.

We depend on a few key suppliers for purchasing components and subassemblies that are
included in our products.

We purchase a limited nhumber of components and subassemblies included in our light source
products from a single supplier or a small group of suppliers. For certain optical components used in our
light source systems, we currently utilize a single supplier. To reduce the risk associated with this single
supplier, we carry a significant strategic inventory of these components. Strategic inventories are
managed as a percentage of future demand. We have also negotiated to have vendor-managed
inventory of critical components to further reduce the risk of a single supplier. In addition, we contract
the manufacture of various subassemblies more often than in the past. Further, some of our suppliers
have specialized in supplying equipment or manufacturing services to semiconductor equipment
manufacturers and therefore were adversely affected by the industry downturn. Because many of these
suppliers cut their work forces or otherwise downsized during the downturn they may not be able to meet
our requirements or respond quickly enough as the upturn gains momentum. Due to the nature of our
product development requirements, these key suppliers must rapidly advance their own technologies
and production capabilities in order to support the introduction schedule of our new products. These
suppliers may not be able to provide new modules and subassemblies when they are needed to satisfy
our product schedule requirements. If we cannot purchase enough of these materials, components or
subassemblies, or if these items do not meet our quality standards, there could be delays or reductions
in our product shipments, which would have a material adverse effect on our operating results, financial
condition and cash flows.

We face competition from two companies and may face competition from additional competitors
who enter the market.

We are currently aware of two significant competitors that sell light sources for DUV
photolithography applications. These competitors are:

» Gigaphoton, a joint venture between two large companies, Komatsu and Ushio, which is
headquartered in Japan; and

¢ Lambda-Physik, a company headquartered in Germany, owned by Coherent, inc., a U.S.
company. In 2003, Coherent purchased an additional 34% of the outstanding shares of
Lambda-Physik, increasing Coherent’s ownership to 94%.

We believe that Gigaphoton and Lambda-Physik are aggressively trying to gain larger market
penetration in the excimer light source industry. We know that our customers have purchased products
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from these two competitors and that our customers have approved these competitors’ light sources for
use with their products. We know that Gigaphoton, in particular, has been approved by chipmakers in
Japan, the U.S. and elsewhere for producing excimer light sources. Also, we believe that Lambhda-
Physik has been approved by chipmakers in the U.S. and Europe for producing excimer light source
products.

The market for excimer light sources is still small and immature. Larger competitors with
substantially greater resources, such as other manufacturers of industrial light sources for advanced
lithography, may attempt to sell competitive products to our customers. Potential competitors may also
be attracted to our growing installed base of light sources and may attempt to supply consumable
products and refurbished parts to that installed base. If any existing or future competitors gain market
acceptance we could lose market share and our growth could slow or decline, which could have a
material adverse effect on our operating results, financial condition and cash flows.

We depend on key personnel, especially management and technical personnel, who may be
difficult to attract and retain.

We are highly dependent on the services of many key employees in various areas, including:

engineering;

research and development;
sales and marketing;

field service;
manufacturing; and
management.

in particular, there are a limited number of experts in excimer light source technology, and we
require highly-skilled hardware and software engineers. Competition for qualified personnel is intense
and we cannot guarantee that we will be able to continue to attract and retain qualified personnel as
needed. We do not have employment agreements with most of our employees. We believe that our
future growth and operating results will depend on:

+ the continued services of our engineering, research and development, sales and marketing,
manufacturing and field service, and management personnel;
our ability to attract, train and retain highly-skilled key personnel; and
the ability of our personnel and key employees to continue to expand, train and manage our
employee base.

If we are unable to hire, train and retain key personnel as required, our operating results,
financial condition and cash flows could be adversely affected.

Decreased effectiveness of equity compensation could adversely affect our ability to attract and
retain employees, and proposed changes in accounting for equity compensation could adversely
affect earnings.

We have historically used stock options and other forms of equity-related incentives as a key
component of our employee compensation packages. We believe that stock options and other long-term
equity incentives directly motivate our employees to maximize long-term stockholder value and, through
the use of long-term vesting, encourage employees to remain with us. The Financial Accounting
Standards Board and other agencies have proposed, and are currently considering, changes to
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America that would require us to record
a charge to earnings for employee stock option grants and other equity incentives. Moreover, applicable
stock exchange listing standards relating to obtaining stockhoider approval of equity compensation plans
could make it more difficult or expensive for us to grant options to employees in the future, which may
result in changes in our equity compensation strategy. These and other developments in the provision of
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equity compensation to employees could make it more difficult to attract, retain and motivate employees,
and such a change in accounting rules may adversely impact our future financial condition and operating
results.

Failure to maintain effectively our direct field service and support organization could have a
material adverse effect on our business.

We believe it is critical for us to provide quick and responsive service directly to the
semiconductor device manufacturers throughout the world that use our light source products in their
photolithography systems, and that it is essential to maintain our own personnel or trained third-party
resources to provide these services. Accordingly, we have an ongoing effort to develop our direct
support system with locations in the United States, Japan, Europe, Korea, Singapore, Taiwan and the
People’s Republic of China. This requires us to do the following:

recruit and train qualified field service personnel;
identify qualified independent firms; and

¢ maintain effective and highly trained organizations that can provide service to our customers
in various countries.

We might not be able to attract and train quelified personnei to maintain our direct support
operations successfully. We may not be able to find and engage qualified third-party resources to
supplement and enhance our direct support operations. Further, we may incur significant casts in
providing these support services. Failure to implement our direct support operation effectively could have
a material adverse effect on our operating resulits, financial condition and cash flows.

Our ability to compete could be jeopardized if we are unable to protect our intellectual property
rights. These types of claims could seriously harm our business or require us to incur significant
costs.

We believe our success and ability to compete depend in large part upon protecting our
proprietary technology. We rely on a combination of patent, trade secret, copyright and trademark laws,
nondisclosure and other contractual agreements and technical measures to protect our proprietary

rights.

As of December 31, 2003, we owned 197 United States patents covering certain aspects of
technology related to light sources and piezo techniques. These patents will expire at various times
during the period from January 2008 to November 2021. As of December 31, 2003, we had applied for
79 additional patents in the United States. As of December 31, 2003, we owned 267 foreign patents and
had 317 patent applications pending in various foreign countries.

Our pending patent applications and any future applications might not be approved. Our patents
might not provide us with a competitive advantage and may be challenged by third parties. In addition,
third parties’ patents might have an adverse effect on our ability to do business. As a result of cost
constraints, we did not begin filing in Japan and other countries our patents for inventions covered by
United States patents and patent applications until 1993. As a result we do not have the right to seek
foreign patent protection for some of our early inventions. Additionally, laws of some foreign countries in
which our products are or may be developed, manufactured or sold, including various countries in Asia,
may not protect our products or intellectual property rights to the same extent as do the laws of the
United States. Thus, the possibility of piracy of our technology and products are more likely in these
countries. Further, third parties might independently develop similar products, duplicate our products or,
design around patents that are granted to us.

Other companies or persons may have filed or may file in the future patent épplications that are

similar or identical to ours. We may have to participate in interference proceedings declared by the
USPTO in order for the patent office to determine the priority of inventions. The patent office may
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determine that these third-party patent applications have priority over our patent applications. Loss of
priority in these interference proceedings could result in substantial cost to us.

We also rely on the following to protect our confidential information and our other intellectual
property:

trade secret protection;

employee nondisclosure agreements;
third-party nondisclosure agreements; and
other intellectual property protection methods.

However, we may not be successful in protecting our confidential information and intellectual
property, particularly our trade secrets, because third parties may:

¢ independently develop substantially the same proprietary information and techniques;
e gain access to our trade secrets; or
» disclose our technology.

The parties to whom we provide research and development services may dispute the ownership
of the intellectual property that we develop performing these services.

in the past, funds from research and development arrangements with third parties have been
used to pay for a portion of our own research and development expenses. We receive these funds from
government-sponsored programs, customers and from SEMATECH, a research consortium, in
connection with our designing and developing specific products. Currently, funds from SEMATECH,
photolithography too!l manufacturers and semiconductor manufacturers are used to fund a small portion
of our development expenses. In providing these research and development services to these
manufacturers and SEMATECH, we try to make clear who owns the intellectual property that resuits
from the research and development services we perform. However, disputes over the ownership or
rights to use or market this intellectual property may arise between us and the photolithography tool
manufacturers and SEMATECH. Any dispute over ownership of the intellectual property we develop
could restrict our ability to market our products and have a material adverse effect on our business.

In the future, we may be subject to patent litigation to enforce patents issued to us and defend
ourselves against claimed infringement by our competitors or any other third party.

Third parties have notified us in the past, and may notify us in the future, that we are infringing
their intellectual property rights. Also, we have notified third parties in the past, and may notify them in
the future, that they may be infringing our intellectual property rights.

Specifically, Komatsu has notified us that we may be infringing some of its Japanese patents.
During our discussions with Komatsu, they also asserted that we or our former Japanese manufacturing
partner, Seiko, may be infringing on some of Komatsu’s United States patents and a number of its
additional Japanese patents. Komatsu has also notified one of our customers, Nikon, of its belief that our
light sources infringe several of Komatsu's Japanese and U.S. patents. As a result, we started
proceedings in the Japanese Patent Office to oppose certain patents and patent applications of
Komatsu. The Japanese Patent Office has dismissed some of our opposition claims. Thus, litigation may
result in connection with Komatsu's Japanese patents or U.S. patents. Aiso, Komatsu might claim that
we infringe other or additional patents. Komatsu notified Seiko that it intends to enforce its rights against
Seiko with respect to its Japanese patents if Seiko continued to engage in manufacturing activities for
us. In connection with our former manufacturing agreement with Seiko, we agree to pay Seiko under
certain conditions for damages associated with these types of claims. Seiko may not prevail in any
litigation against Komatsu, and therefore, we may be required to pay Seiko for such damages.

We have notified our competitors and others of our United States patent portfolio. Specifically,
we have notified Komatsu that they may be infringing on some of our U.S. patents. We have discussed
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with Komatsu our claims against each other. Komatsu chalilenged one of our U.S. patents in the USPTO
but it was subsequently re-issued by the USPTO. Also, Komatsu transferred its lithography light source
business to one of our competitors, Gigaphoton. We also have had discussions with Lambda-Physik (a
subsidiary of Coherent, Inc.), another competitor, regarding allegations by each party against the other
for possible patent infringement. Any of these discussions with our competitors may not be successful
and litigation could result.

in the future, patent litigation may resuit due to a claim of infringement by our competitors or any
other third party or may be necessary to enforce patents issued to us. Any such litigation could result in
substantial cost and diversion of effort by us, which would have an adverse effect on our business,
financial condition and operating results. Furthermore, our customers and the end users of our products
might assert other claims for indemnification that arise from infringement claims against them. If these
assertions are successful, our business, financial condition and operating results may be materially
affected. Instead of litigation, we may seek a license from third parties to use their intellectual property.
However, we may not be abie to obtain a license on reasonable terms. In the alternative, we may design
around the third party's intellectual property rights or we may challenge these claims in legal
proceedings. Any adverse determination in a legal proceeding could result in one or more of the
following, any of which could have a substantial adverse effect on our business, financial condition and
operating resuits:

loss of our proprietary rights;

exposure to significant liabilities by other third parties;

requirement that we get a license from third parties on terms that are not favorable; or
restriction from manufacturing or selling our products.

Any of these actions could be costly and would divert the efforts and attention of Cymer’s
management and technical personnel, which would materially adversely affect Cymer's business,
financial condition and results of operations.

Trademark infringement claims against our registered and unregistered trademarks would be
expensive and we may have to stop using such trademarks and pay damages.

We registered the trademark “CYMER” & “INSIST ON CYMER” and others in the United States
and in some other countries. We are aiso trying to register additional trademarks in the United States
and in other countries. We use these trademarks and many other marks in our advertisements and
other business materials, which are distributed throughout the world. We may be subject to trademark
infringement actions for using these marks and other marks on a worldwide basis and this would be
costly to defend. If a trademark infringement action was successful, we would have to stop using the
mark and possibly pay damages.

We are dependent on air transport to cbnduct our business and disruption of domestic and
international air transport systems could adversely affect our business.

We depend on regular and reliable air transportation on a worldwide basis for many of our
routine business functions. If civil aviation in the United States or abroad is disrupted by terrorist
activities or security responses to the threat of terrorism or for any other reason, our business could be
adversely affected in the following ways:

s supplies of raw materials and components for the manufacture of our products or our
customers’ products may be disrupted;
we may not be able to deliver our products to our customers in a timely manner,

e we may not be able to provide timely support of installed light sources for semiconductor
device manufacturers; and

e our sales and marketing efforts may be disrupted.
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We are exposed to risks related to the fluctuations in the currency exchange rates for the
Japanese yen.

If we sell products to our Japanese subsidiary, the sale is denominated in U.S. doliars. If our
Japanese subsidiary sells our products directly to customers in Japan, the sale is denominated in
Japanese yen. Thus, our results of operations may fluctuate based on the changing value of the
Japanese yen to the U.S. dollar. Our Japanese subsidiary manages its exposure to these fluctuations
through foreign currency forward exchange contracts to hedge its purchase commitments. We will
continue to monitor our exposure to these currency fluctuations, and, when appropriate, use hedging
transactions to minimize the effect of these currency fluctuations. However, exchange rate fluctuations
may still have a material adverse effect on our operating results. in the future, we may need to sell our
products in other foreign currencies other than the Japanese yen and the management of more currency
fluctuations will be more difficult and expose us to greater risks in this area.

Compliance with changing regulation of corporate governance and public disclosure may
result in additional expenses.

Changing laws, regulations and standards relating to corporate governance and public
disclosure, including the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, new SEC regulations, Nasdaq Stock Market
rules, and new accounting pronouncements are creating uncertainty and additional complexities for
companies such as ours. To maintain high standards of corporate governance and public disclosure,
we intend to invest all reasonable necessary resources to comply with evolving standards. This
investment may result in increased general and administrative expenses and a diversion of
management time and attention from strategic revenue-generating and cost management activities.

We are subject to many standards and regulations of foreign governments and, even though we
intend to comply, we may not always be in compliance with these rules, or we may be unable to
design or redesign our products to comply with these rules.

Many foreign government standards and regulations apply to our products. These standards and
regulations are always being amended. Aithough we intend to meet all foreign standards and
regulations, our products may not comply with these foreign government standards and regulations.
Further, it might not be cost effective for us to redesign our products to comply with these foreign
government standards and regulations. Our inability to design or redesign products to comply with
foreign standards therefore could have a material adverse effect on our business.

Semiconductor device manufacturers’ prolonged use of our products in high volume
productions may not produce the results they desire and, as a result, our reputation and that of
our customers who supply photolithography tools to the semiconductor manufacturers could be
damaged in the semiconductor industry.

Over time, our light source products may not meet semiconductor device manufacturers’
production specifications or operating cost requirements after the light source is used for a long period in
high volume production. If any semiconductor device manufacturer cannot successfully achieve or
sustain their volume production using our light sources, our reputation could be damaged with the
semiconductor device manufacturers and our customers who are the limited number of photolithography
tool manufacturers. This would have a material adverse effect on our business.

We have in the past and may in the future acquire a business that will involve numerous risks.
We may not be able to address these risks successfully without substantial expense, delay or
other operational and financial problems.

The risks involved with acquiring a new company include the following:

s diversion of management’s attention and resources to integrate the new company;




failure to retain key personnel;

amortization of acquired definite-lived intangible assets and deferred compensation;
client dissatisfaction or performance problems with the acquired company;

the cost associated with acquisitions and the integration of acquired operations;
failure to commercialize purchased technologies;

ability of the acquired companies to meet their financial projections; and
assumption of unknown liabilities or other unanticipated events or circumstances.

Mergers and acquisitions are inherently subject to multiple significant risks, and the inability to
effectively manage these risks could have a material adverse effect on our business. Any of these risks
could materially harm our business, financial condition and operating results. Further, any business that
we acquire may not achieve anticipated revenues or operating results.

We must develop and manufacture enhancements to our existing products and introduce new
products in order to continue to grow our business. We may not effectively manage our growth
and integrate these new enhancements and products, which could materially harm our business.

To continue to grow our business, our existing light source products and their process
capabilities must be enhanced, and we must develop and manufacture new products to serve other
semiconductor applications. We cannot guarantee that we will be able to manage our growth effectively.
Nor can we guarantee that we will be able to accelerate the development of new enhancements to our
existing products and create new products. Further, we may not be able to effectively integrate new
products and applications into our current operations. Any of these risks could materially harm our
business, financial condition and results of operations.

We are dependent on our manufacturing facilities and subcontractors to assemble and test our
products.

Operations at our primary manufacturing facility and our subcontractors are subject to disruption
for a variety of reasons, including work stoppages, terrorism, fire, earthquake, energy shortages,
flooding or other natural disasters. Such disruptions could cause delays in shipments -of our products to
our customers. We cannot ensure that alternate production capacity would be available if a major
disruption were to occur or that, if it were available, it could be obtained on favorable terms. Such
disruption could resuit in cancellation of orders or loss of customers, which would have a material
adverse effect on our operating results, financial condition and cash flows.

Our operations are subject to environmental and other government regulations that may expose
us to liabilities for noncompliance.

We are subject to federal, state and local regulations, such as regulations related to the
environment, land use, public utility utilization and the fire code, in connection with the storage, handling,
discharge and disposal of substances that we use in our manufacturing process and on our facilities.
We believe that our activities comply with current government regulations that are applicable to our
operations and current facilities. We may be required to purchase additional capital equipment or other
requirements for our processes to comply with these government regulations in the future if they change.
Further, these government regulations may restrict us from expanding our operations. Adopting
measures to comply with changes in the government regulations, our failure to comply with
environmental and land use regulations, or restrictions on our ability to discharge hazardous substances,
could subject us to future liability or cause our manufacturing operations to be reduced or stopped.

Our products are subject to potential product liability claims if personal injury or death result.
We are exposed to significant risks for product liability claims if personal injury or death results

from the use of our products. We may experience material product liability losses in the future. We
maintain insurance against product liability claims. However, our insurance coverage may not continue

40




to be available on terms that we accept. This insurance coverage also may not adequately cover
liabilities that we incur. Further, if our products are defective, we may be required to recall or redesign
these products. A successful claim against us that exceeds our insurance coverage level, or any claim
or praduct recall that results in adverse publicity against us, could have a material adverse effect on our
business, financial condition and results of operations.

The price of our common stock has fluctuated and may continue to fluctuate widely.

The price of our common stock has fluctuated in the past. The market price of our common
stock will continue to be subject to significant fluctuations in the future in response to a variety of factors,
including the risk factors contained in this report.

Various factors may significantly affect the market price of our common stock, including:

the cyclical nature of the semiconductor industry;

actual or anticipated fluctuations in our operating results;

conditions and trends in the light source device and other technology industries;
announcements of innovations in technology;

new products offered by us or our competitors;

developments of patents or proprietary rights;

changes in financial estimates by securities analysts;

general worldwide political, economic, and market conditions;

United States political, economic, and market conditions; and

failure to properly manage any single or combination of risk factors listed in this section.

In addition, the stock market has experienced extreme price and volume fluctuations that have
particularly affected the market price for many high technology companies. Such fluctuations have in
some cases been unrelated to the operating performance of these companies. Severe price fluctuations
in a company’s stock have frequently been followed by securities litigation. Any such litigation can result
in substantial costs and a diversion of management’s attention and resources and therefore could have
a material adverse effect on Cymer's business, financial condition and results of operations.

We have implemented steps to protect our company from hostile takeovers.

Nevada law and our articles of incorporation contain provisions that discourage a proxy contest
and provisions that make an acquisition of a substantial biock of our common stock more difficult. In
addition, our board of directors is authorized to issue, without stockholder approval, shares of preferred
stock. Such shares of preferred stock may have voting, conversion and other rights and preferences that
may be superior to those of the common stock and this could adversely affect the voting power or other
rights of holders of common stock. Our board can use the issuance of the preferred stock or rights to
purchase the preferred stock to discourage any unsolicited acquisition proposal or attempt.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk
Foreign Currency Risk

Cymer conducts business in several international currencies through its global operations. Due
to the large volume of Cymer’s business that is conducted in Japan, the Japanese operation poses the
greatest foreign currency risk. Cymer uses financial instruments, principally foreign currency forward
exchange contracts, in Japan to manage its foreign currency exposures. Cymer enters into foreign
currency forward exchange contracts in order to reduce the impact of currency fluctuations related to
purchases of Cymer’s inventories by Cymer Japan in U.S. dollars for resale under firm third-party sales
commitments denominated in Japanese yen. Cymer does not enter into foreign currency forward
exchange contracts for trading purposes.
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As of December 31, 2003, Cymer had outstanding foreign currency forward exchange contracts
to buy U.S. $81.0 million for 9.3 billion yen under foreign currency exchange facilities with contract rates
ranging from 107.09 yen to 120.6 yen per U.S. dollar. These contracts expire on various dates through
February 2005.

Cymer’s foreign currency forward exchange contracts qualify for hedge accounting treatment per
the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative
Instruments and Hedging Activities”. As a result, Cymer defers changes in the fair value of these
contracts and records the amount in other comprehensive income (loss) and subsequently reclassifies
the gain or loss to cost of product sales in the same period that the related sale is made to the third
party. The unrealized loss or fair value of these contracts and the deferred loss totaled $6.4 million and
$2.7 million, respectively, as of December 31, 2003. The fair value of these foreign currency forward
exchange contracts as of December 31, 2003 would have changed by $8.1 million if the foreign currency
exchange rate for the Japanese yen to the U.S. dollar on these forward contracts had changed by 10%.

Investment and Debt Risk

Cymer maintains an investment portfolio consisting primarily of government and corporate fixed
income securities, certificates of deposit and commercial paper. While it is Cymer’s general intent to
hold such securities until maturity, Cymer will occasionally sell certain securities for cash flow purposes.
Therefore, Cymer’s investments are classified as available-for-sale and are carried on the balance sheet
at fair value. Due to the conservative nature of the investment portfolio, a sudden change in interest
rates would not have a material effect on the value of the portfolio.

In February 2002, Cymer issued $250.0 million principal amount of unsecured fixed rate 3%:%
Convertible Subordinated Notes due February 15, 2009. Interest on these 2002 Notes is payable on
February 15 and August 15 of each year, commencing August 15, 2002. The 2002 Notes are
convertible into shares of Cymer's common stock at a conversion rate of 20 shares per $1,000 principal
amount subject to adjustment under certain conditions. Cymer may redeem the 2002 Notes on or after
February 20, 2005, or earlier if the price of its commaon stock reaches certain levels. The 2002 Notes
are subordinated to Cymer's existing and future senior indebtedness and effectively subordinated to all
indebtedness and other liabilities of Cymer's subsidiaries. Because the interest rate is fixed, we believe
there is no risk of increased interest expense. These 2002 Notes are recorded at face value on the
consolidated balance sheets. The fair value of such debt based on quoted market prices on December
31, 2003 was $276.0 million.

item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

The information required by this Item is included in Part IV ltems 15(a)(1) and (2) of this Annual
Report on Form 10-K.

item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial
Disclosure

None.

item 9A. Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of disclosure controls and procedures. Cymer’s chief executive officer and its chief
financial officer, after evaluating the effectiveness of Cymer's disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) as of December 31, 2003, have concluded that
as of such date, Cymer’'s disclosure controls and procedures were adequate and sufficient to ensure that
information required to be disclosed by Cymer in the reports that it files under the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934 is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time period specified in the
Commission’s rules and forms.
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Changes in internal controls. There has been no change in Cymer’'s internal control over
financial reporting during the fiscal quarter ended December 31, 2003 that has materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, Cymer’s internal control over financial reporting.

PART !lI
Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant.

The information regarding the identification and business experience of Cymer's directors under
the caption "Proposal 1 - Election of Directors" in Cymer's Proxy Statement for the annual meeting of
stockholders to be held on May 20, 2004 to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission within
120 days after the end of Cymer's fiscal year ended December 31, 2003, is incorporated herein by
reference. For information regarding the identification and business experience of Cymer's executive
officers, see "Executive Officers" at the end of ltem 1 in Part | of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
Information concerning filing requirements applicable to Cymer's executive officers and directors under
the caption "Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance" in Cymer's Proxy Statement is
incorporated herein by reference.

in 2003, Cymer adopted a code of ethics that applies to its principal executive officer, principal
financia! officer, principal accounting officer or controller, or persons performing similar functions. Within
the next two months Cymer will post the text of the code of ethics on its website which can be accessed
at hitp://www.cymer.com under “Investor relations.” In addition, Cymer will promptly disclose on its
website (1) the nature of any amendment to the code of ethics that applies to its principal executive
officer, principal financial officer, principal accounting officer or controller, or persons performing similar
functions and (2} the nature of any waiver, including an implicit waiver, from a provision of the code of
ethics that is granted to one of these specified officers, and the name of such person who is granted the
waiver on Cymer's website in the future.

ltem 11. Executive Compensation

The information under the caption “Executive Compensation” in Cymer's Proxy Statement is
incorporated herein by reference.

item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related
Stockholder Matters

The information under the caption "Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and
Management” in Cymer's Proxy Statement is incorporated herein by this reference. The remaining
information called for by this item relating to “Securities Authorized for Issuance under Equity
Compensation Plans” is incorporated herein by reference to Cymer's Proxy Statement.

ltem 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

The information under the caption "Certain Transactions" in Cymer's Proxy Statement is
incorporated herein by reference.

With the exception of the information specifically incorporated by reference from Cymer's Proxy
Statement in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, Cymer's Proxy Statement shall not be deemed to be filed
as part of this Report. Without limiting the foregaing, the information under the captions “Report of the
Audit Committee of the Board of Directors,” “Report of the Compensation Committee of the Board of
Directors” and “Performance Measurement Comparison” in Cymer’s Proxy Statement is not incorporated -
by reference in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services

The information under the caption "Principal Accounting Fees and Services" in Cymer's Proxy
Statement is incorporated herein by reference.

PART IV
ltem 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules, and Reports on Form 8-K

(a) The following documents are filed as part of, or incorporated by reference into, this
Annual Report on Form 10-K:

{1)}(2) Financial Statements and Financial Statement Schedule. The following
Consolidated Financial Statements of Cymer, Inc., Financial Statement Schedules and Independent
Auditors’ Report are included in a separate section of this Annual Report on Form 10-K beginning on
page F-1:

Description Page Number
Independent Auditors’ Report ..o F-1
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2002 and 2003 .......... F-2

Consolidated Statements of Operations for the Years Ended

December 31, 2001, 2002 and 2003 .........coooiiiiiiiiiiiii e F-3
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity for the Years

Ended December 31, 2001, 2002 and 2003 ............c.cceiinnnn. F-4
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Years Ended

December 31,2001,2002and 2003 ..........oooiiiiiiiieii e, F-5
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements .....................cooii, F-7
Financial Statement Schedule:
Scheduie Il — Valuation and Qualifying Accounts and Reserves ............. S-1

All other financial stalement schedules have been omitted because the required
information is not applicable or not present in amounts sufficient to require submission of the schedule,
or because the information required is included in the consolidated financial statements or the notes
thereto.

(3) Exhibits. The exhibits listed under ltem 15(c) hereof are filed with, or
incorporated by reference into, this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Each management contract or
compensatory plan or arrangement is identified separately in item 15(c) hereof.

(b) Reports on Form 8-K. On October 21, 2003, Cymer filed a Form 8-K announcing its
third quarter 2003 financial results.

(c) Exhibits. The following exhibits are filed as part of, or incorporated by reference into,
this Annual Report on Form 10-K:

3.1 Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation of Cymer, Inc.
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to Cymer's Registration
Statement on Form 8-1, Reg. No. 333-08383).

3.2  Certificate of Designations of Rights, Preferences and Privileges of Series A
Participating Preferred Stock of Cymer {(incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 1 to Cymer’s Form 8-A, dated February 20, 1998).

3.3  Certificate of Amendment of Articles of Incorporation of Cymer, Inc.

(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to Cymer’s Quarterly Report
on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2002).
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34

35

4.1

4.2
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4.4

4.5

10.1#

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

Bylaws of Cymer, as amended and restated (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 3.3 to Cymer’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
year ended December 31, 2000).

Amendment to Bylaws of Cymer, inc. (incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 3.4 to Cymer's Quarterly Report on Farm 10-Q for the quarter ended
March 31, 2003).

Preferred Shares Rights Agreement, dated as of February 13, 1998
between Cymer and ChaseMellon Shareholder Services, L.L.C. (now
Mellon Investor Services L.L.C.) (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit
1 to Cymer's Form 8-A, dated February 20, 1998).

Agreement of Substitution and Amendment of Preferred Share Rights
Agreement, dated January 13, 2003, between Cymer and American Stock
Transfer and Trust Company (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit
4.2 to Cymer's Annual Report on Form 10-K filed for the year ended
December 31, 2002).

Purchase Agreement, dated as of February 12, 2002, among Cymer, Credit
Suisse First Boston Corporation and Merrill Lynch Pierce Fenner and Smith
Incorporated (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Cymer's
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2002).

Indenture, dated as of February 15, 2002, between Cymer and State Street
Bank and Trust Company of California, N.A., as Trustee (incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to Cymer's Quarterly Report on Form 10-
Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2002).

Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of February 15, 2002, among
Cymer, Credit Suisse First Boston Corporation and Merrill Lynch Pierce
Fenner and Smith Incorporated (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit
4.3 to Cymer's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March
31, 2002). '

Form of indemnification Agreement with Directors and Officers.

Standard Industrial Lease — Multi-Tenant, dated August 19, 1991, by
and between Lepercq Corporate Income Fund L.P. and Cymer (originally
between Frankris Corporation and Cymer) (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.15 to Cymer's Registration Statement on Form S$-1,
Reg. No. 333-08383).

Single-Tenant Industrial Lease, dated December 19, 1996, by and between
AEW/LBA Acquisition Co. ll, LLC and Cymer (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.20 to Cymer's Annual Report on Form 10-K filed for
the year ended December 31, 1996).

Standard Form of Agreement between owner (Cymer, Inc.) and contractor
{Hensel-Phelps Construction Company) dated July 22, 2002 {incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Cymer's Quarterly Report on Form 10-
Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2002).

Contract Manufacturing Agreement - Lithography Laser, dated August 28,
1992, by and between Cymer and Seiko Instruments inc. (the “Seiko
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10.6#

10.7#

10.8#

10.9#

10.10#

10.11#

10.12#

10.13#

10.14#

10.15#

10.16#

Agreement”) (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.16 to Cymer's
Registration Statement on Form S-1, Reg. No. 333-08383).

Addendum No. 2 to the Seiko Agreement, dated February 21, 2000
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to Cymer's Annual Report
on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1999).

Termination of Seiko Contract Manufacturing Agreement - Lithography
Laser, dated March 31, 2003 (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit
10.5 to Cymer’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December
31, 2002).

1996 Stock Option Plan, as amended (incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 99.1 to Cymer’s Registration Statement on Form S-8, Registration
No. 333-69736).

Form of Stock Option Agreement used in connection with the 1996 Stock
Option Plan, as amended (incorporated herein by reference {o Exhibit 4.1 to
Cymer’s Registration Statement on Form S-8, Registration No. 333-48242).

1996 Employee Stock Purchase Plan, as amended (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 99.3 to Cymer’s Registration Statement on Form S-8,
Registration No. 333-69736).

1996 Director Option Plan (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.5
to Cymer's Registration Statement on Form S-1, Reg. No. 333-08383).

2000 Equity Incentive Plan (formerly known as the 2000 Nonstatutory Stock
Option Plan and incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 99.4 to Cymer’s
Registration Statement on Form S-8, Registration No. 333-69736).

Form of Stock Option Agreement used in connection with the 2000 Equity
Incentive Plan (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 99.5 to Cymer’s
Registration Statement on Form S-8, Registration No. 333-69736).

Employment Agreement, effective as of April 1, 2002, by and between
Robert P. Akins and Cymer (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit
10.1 to Cymer's Quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March
31, 2002).

Employment Agreement, effective as of March 1, 2004, by and between
Nancy J. Baker and Cymer.

Employment Agreement, effective as of June 1, 2003, by and between
Pascal Didier and Cymer (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1
to Cymer’s Quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30,
2003).

Employment Agreement, effective as of May 1, 2003, by and between
Edward P. Holtaway and Cymer (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit
10.4 to Cymer's Quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June
30, 2003).

Employment Agreement, effective as of May 1, 2003, by and between Brian
C. Klene and Cymer (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to
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10.17#

10.18#

10.19#

10.20#

10.21#%

10.22#
10.23#

10.24

10.25

10.26*

10.27

Cymer's Quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30,
2003).

Employment Agreement, effective as of May 1, 2003, by and between Jung
Ho (John) Shin and Cymer (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.6
to Cymer’s Quarterly report:on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30,
2003).

Employment Agreement, effective as of June 1, 2003, by and between
Hugh R. Grinolds and Cymer (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit
10.3 to Cymer’s Quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June
30, 2003).

Employment Agreement, effective as of May 1, 2003, by and between Rae
Ann Werner and Cymer (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to
Cymer's Quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30,
2003).

Empioyment Agreement, effective as of October 1, 2003, by and between
James M. Caltrider and Cymer (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit
10.1 to Cymer’s Quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
September 30, 2003).

Employment Agreement, effective September 29, 2003, by and between
Anthony Yen and Cymer.

Description of Cymer Incentive Bonus Program.

Cymer Deferred Compensation Plan, as amended and restated
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Cymer's Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2000).

Credit Agreement, dated as of June 28, 2001, by and between Cymer, Inc.
and Wells Fargo HSBC Trade Bank (incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to Cymer's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter
ended September 30, 2001).

Amendment No. 1, dated June 7, 2002, by and between Cymer, Inc. and
Wells Fargo HSBC Bank, N.A. (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit
10.19 to Cymer's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2002).

Patent License Agreement, dated May 14, 2001, by and among Cymer,
Inc.,, Linda B. Jacob, Joseph A. Mangano, and Science Research
Laboratory, Inc. (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Cymer’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2001).

Patent Sublicense Agreement, dated May 14, 2001, by and between
Science Research Laboratory, Inc. and Cymer, Inc. (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Cymer’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended June 30, 2001).

Patent Sublicense Agreement, dated November 7, 2003, by and between
SRL-EUV, LLC and Cymer, Inc.
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(d)

10.28

10.29#

10.30#

10.31

10.32#

14.1

211
231

311

312

32.1

322

Patent Sublicense Agreement, dated November 7, 2003, by and between
Science Research Laboratory, Inc. and Cymer, Inc.

Reduction in Force Benefits Plan, as amended (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Cymer’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended March 31, 2003).

Executive Optibn and Group Health Coverage Extension Program
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.22 to Cymer’s Annual Report
on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2001).

Credit Agreement, dated October 30, 2001, by and between Cymer Japan,
inc. and Wells Fargo HSBC Trade Bank, N.A. (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.25 to Cymer’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
year ended December 31, 2002).

Parent Guarantee, dated October 30, 2001, by Cymer, Inc. with respect to
Credit Agreement between Wells Fargo HSBC Trade Bank, N.A. and Cymer
Japan, Inc. (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.25 to Cymer's
Annua! Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002).

Amendment No. 1, dated June 7, 2002, by and between Cymer Japan, Inc.
and Wells Fargo HSBC Bank, N.A. (incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.25 to Cymer’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2002). ‘

Description of President/COQO Bonus Plan (incorporated herein by reference
to Exhibit 10.26 to Cymer’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2002).

Code of Ethics for Chief Executive, Chief Financial and Chief Accounting
Officers

Subsidiaries of Cymer
Consent of KPMG LLP, Independent Auditors

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act

# Indicates management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.

* Caonfidential treatment was requested with respect ta certain portions of
this exhibit. Omitted portions were filed separately with the Securities and
Exchange Commission.

Financial Statement Schedules. See item 15, paragraph (a) (2), above.
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SIGNATURES
CYMER, INC.

Dated: March 9, 2004 By: Js/ ROBERT P. AKINS
Robert P. Akins,
Chief Executive Officer,
and Chairman of the Board

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each person whose signature appears
below constitutes and appoints Nancy J. Baker and Rae Ann Werner, and each of them, as his true and
lawful attorneys-in-fact and agents, with full power of substitution and resubstitution, for him and in his
name, place, and stead, in any and all capacities, to sign any and all amendments to this Report, and to
file the same, with all exhibits thereto, and other documents in connection therewith, with the Securities
and Exchange Commission, granting unto said attorneys-in-fact and agents, and each of them, full power
and authority to do and perform each and every act and thing requisite and necessary to be done in
connection therewith, as fully to all intents and purposes as he might or could do in person, hereby
ratifying and confirming that all said attorneys-in-fact and agents, or any of them or their or his substitute
or substituted, may lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed
below by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the date indicated.

Chief Executive Officer,

[s/ ROBERT P. AKINS and Chairman of the Board
Robert P. Akins (Principal Executive Officer) March 9, 2004
Senior Vice President
/sl NANCY J. BAKER and Chief Financial Officer
Nancy J. Baker (Principal Financial Officer) March 9, 2004
Vice President, Controller
/s/__RAE ANN WERNER and Chief Accounting Officer
Rae Ann Werner (Principal Accounting Officer) March 9, 2004
/s/ CHARLES J. ABBE Director March 9, 2004

Charles J. Abbe

/si _EDWARD H. BRAUN Director March 9, 2004
Edward H. Braun

fsi__MICHAEL R. GAULKE Director » March 9, 2004
Michael R. Gauike

Isi _WILLIAM G. OL.DHAM Director March 9, 2004
William G. Oldham

/s/ PETER.J. SIMONE Director March 9, 2004
Peter J. Simone

/s/_ YOUNG K. SOHN Director March 9, 2004
Young K. Sohn

/s/ _JON D. TOMPKINS Director March 9, 2004
Jon D. Tompkins




independent Auditors’ Report

Thé Board of Directors
Cymer, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Cymer, Inc. and subsidiaries as of
December 31, 2002 and 2003, and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’ equity
and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2003. In connection
with our audits of the consolidated financial statements, we also have audited financial statement
Schedule 1. These consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedule are the
responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements and financial statement scheduie based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on
a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit aiso
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Cymer, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2002 and 2003, and
the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended
December 31, 2003, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America. Also, in our opinion, the related financial statement Schedule Il, when considered in relation to
the basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly, in all material respects, the
information set forth therein.

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company adopted SFAS No. 142,
Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets, and, accordingly, changed its method of accounting for goodwill in
2002,

s/ KPMG LLP

San Diego, California
January 23, 2004, except for note 17,
which is as of February 4, 2004
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CYMER, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
{In thousands, except share data)

December 31, December 31,
ASSETS 2002 2003
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 196,643 $ 230,657
Short-term investments 71,249 93,474
Accounts receivable — net 52,341 62,819
Inventories 100,119 93,012
Deferred income taxes 20,041 1,407
Prepaid expenses and other assets 6,029 5,513
Total current assets 446,422 - 486,882
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT - NET 112,209 128,849
LONG-TERM INVESTMENTS 159,029 77,509
DEFERRED INCOME TAXES 20,553 80,711
GOODWILL — NET 10,597 7,647
INTANGIBLE ASSETS - NET 8,565 12,925
OTHER ASSETS 9,512 8,698
TOTAL ASSETS $ 766,887 $ 803,221
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable $ 26,344 $ 19,099
Accounts payable — related party 158 -
Accrued warranty and instaliation 30,078 26,486
Accrued payroll and benefits 7,334 7,196
Accrued patents, royalties and other fees 6,806 8,436
Foreign currency forward exchange contracts 907 6,401
income taxes payable 11,321 16,473
Revolving loan 6,667 -
Accrued and other current liabilities 5,683 4,945
Total current liabilities 95,295 89,036
CONVERTIBLE SUBORDINATED NOTES 250,000 250,000
OTHER LIABILITIES 5,154 5,660
MINORITY INTEREST 4,104 5,195
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Note 12)
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY:
Preferred stock — authorized 5,000,000 shares; $.001 par value,
no shares issued or outstanding - = -
Common stock — $.001 par value per share; 100,000,000 shares authorized;
34,227,000 and 36,345,000 shares outstanding at December 31, 2002
and 2003, respectively 34 36
Additional paid-in capital 302,501 358,988
Unearned compensation ‘ » ) (2,358) (146)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (3,429) (5,734)
Retained earnings 115,586 100,186
Total stockholders’ equity 412,334 453,330
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY $ 766,887 $ 803,221

See Notes to Cohsolidated Financial Statements.



CYMER, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
{(in thousands, except per share data)

REVENUES:
Product sales

Qther
Total revenues

COSTS AND EXPENSES:
Cost of product sales
Research and development
Sales and marketing
General and administrative
Amortization of goodwill and intangible assets
Purchased in-process research and development
{Gain) loss on debt extinguishment

Total costs and expenses
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)

OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE):
Foreign currency exchange gain (loss) — net
Interest and other income
Interest and other expense

Total other expense - net

INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAX
PROVISION (BENEFIT) AND MINORITY INTEREST

INCOME TAX PROVISION (BENEFIT)
MINORITY INTEREST

INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE CUMULATIVE CHANGE IN
ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLE

Cumulative change in accounting principle, net of taxes
NET INCOME (LOSS)

EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE:
Basic earnings (loss) per share:
Before cumulative change in accounting principle
Cumulative change in accounting principle
Basic earnings (loss) per share
Weighted average common shares outstanding

Diluted earnings (loss) per share:
Before cumulative change in accounting principle
Cumulative change in accounting principle
Diluted earnings (loss) per share
Weighted average common and dilutive
potential common shares outstanding

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Years ended December 31,

2001 2002 2003
$ 267,003 $ 287,995 $ 265816
2,441 2,165 1,680
269,444 290,160 267,496
151,340 162,095 187,679
58,368 73,714 58,231
19,617 17,153 16,966
18,990 18,212 39,094
3,148 160 160
5,050 . -
(610) 163 -
255,903 271,497 302,130
13,541 18,663 (34,634)
877 (723) 436
8,290 10,055 8,928
(10,614) (11,246) {10,503)
(1,447) (1,914) (1,139)
12,094 16,749 (35,773)
2,871 2,706 (21,464)
(368) _(447) (1,091)
8,855 13,596 (15,400)
(370) - ;

$ 8485 $ 13596  $ (15400)
$ 020 $§ 041 $ (0.44)
(0.01) - -

$ 028 $ 041 $ _ (0.44)
30,474 33,317 35,065
$ 028 $ 039 $ (0.44)
(0.01) - -

$§ 027 § 039 $  (0.44)
31,108 34,712 35,065
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CYMER, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
{In thousands)

Al

OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Net income (loss)

Adjustments to reconcile net income {loss) to net cash
provided by {used in) operating activities:
Cumulative change in accounting principle
(Gain} ioss on debt extinguishment
Depreciation and amortization
Non-cash stock-based compensation
Amortization of unearned compensation
Minority interest
Purchased in-process research and development
Provision for deferred income taxes
Loss on disposal and impairment of property and equipment
Change in assets and liabilities - net of acquisition in 2001:

Accounts receivable - net

Income taxes receivable

Foreign currency forward exchange contracts
Inventories

Prepaid expenses and other assets
Accounts payable

Accrued expenses and other liabilities
Income taxes payable

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Acquisition of property and equipment
Purchases of investments
Proceeds from sold or matured investments
Acquisition of Active Control eXperts, Inc., net of cash acquired
Acquisition of patents
Acquisition of minority interest

Net cash used in investing activities

FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Net repayments under revolving loan and security agreements
Proceeds from issuance of common stock
Redemption of convertible subordinated notes
Issuance of convertible subordinated notes
Issuance of convertible subordinated notes offering costs
Minority interest investments in subsidiary
Payments on capital iease obligations

Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities

EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ON CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END Ol\: THE YEAR

F-5

Years ended December 31,

2001 2002 2003
$ 8,485 $ 13,596 $(15,400)
370 . .
(610) 163 -
25,699 25,492 30,938
- 183 1,359
971 1,110 737
368 447 1,091
5,050 . -
(386) (31 (1,305)
505 675 18,106
35,969 (2,285) (10,478)
(3,039) 3,153 .
1,417 939 1,749
15,179 (38,335) 7,107
615 (2,538) 59
(8,146) 10,770 (7,400)
(16,322) 5813 (8,092)
(7,741) 6,651 (22,066)
58,384 25,803 (3,595)
(20,405) (45,217) (62,783)
(164,302) (284,352) (107,749)
184,759 163,410 165,527
(279) - -
(6,000) - -
- (360) (180)
(6,227) (166,519) (5,185)
(1,093) (1,672) (6,667)
11,781 22547 48,157
(24,930) (39,598) -
- 250,000 -
- (7,873) -
- 1,900 -
(281) (56) (50)
(14,523) 225,248 41,440
(6,117) 916 1,354
31,517 85,448 34,014
79,678 111,195 196,643
$ 111,195 $ 196,643 $ 230,657




CYMER, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS, CONTINUED
(In thousands) ‘

Years ended December 31,
2001 2002 2003

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION:

Interest paid $ 7,778 $ 10,473 $ 9,004
income taxes paid (refunded), net $ 13,982 $ (7821) § 1,325
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF NON-CASH INVESTING

AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Warrants issued for acquisition of patents $ 4,322 $ - $ -

Stock and stock options issued in acquisition of Active Control eXperts, Inc. $ 20,871 $ - $ -

Conversion of subordinated notes to equity $ - $ 112,998 $ .-

Reversal of unearned compensation related to cancelled stock options '
previously issued for the ACX acquisition $ - $ - $ 1,475

Intangible assets included in accrued liabilities $ - 3 - $ 5990

Reversal of deferred tax asset valuation allowance against goodwill $ - $ - $ 2,950

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CYMER, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Operations — Cymer, Inc. and its wholly-owned and majority-owned subsidiaries
(collectively, “Cymer” or the Company), are engaged primarily in the development, manufacturing
and marketing of excimer light sources for sale to manufacturers of photolithography tools in the
semiconductor equipment industry. Cymer sells its product to customers primarily in Japan, Asia,
Europe and the United States.

Principles of Consolidation — The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Cymer,
Inc., its wholly-owned subsidiaries — Cymer Japan, Inc. ("Cymer Japan”), Cymer Singapore Pte Ltd.
(“Cymer Singapore”), Cymer B.V. in the Netherlands (“Cymer B.V."”), Cymer Southeast Asia, Ltd, in
Taiwan (“Cymer SEA"), Cymer Semiconductor Equipment Shanghai Co., Ltd, in the People's
Republic of China (“Cymer PRC"), and its majority-owned subsidiary, Cymer Korea, Inc. (“Cymer
Korea”). Cymer, Inc. owns 75% of Cymer Korea. During 2002, Active Control eXperts, Inc. or ACX
was a wholly-owned subsidiary of Cymer, Inc. Effective January 1, 2003, ACX was merged with and
into Cymer, Inc. Cymer sells its excimer light sources in Japan primarily through Cymer Japan.
Cymer SEA, Cymer PRC, Cymer Singapore and Cymer B.V. are field service offices for customers in
those respective regions. Cymer Korea provides manufacturing, refurbishment, field service, and
administrative activities for that region. All significant intercompany balances have been eliminated in
consolidation.

Accounting Estimates — The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disciosure
of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts
of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results may differ from those
estimates.

Cash Equivalents — Cash equivalents consist of money market instruments, commercial paper and
other highly liquid investments purchased with an criginal maturity of three months or less.

investments — Cymer maintains an investment portfolio consisting primarily of government and
corporate fixed income securities, certificates of deposit and commercial paper. While it is Cymer’s
general intent to hold such securities until maturity, Cymer will occasionally sell certain securities for
cash flow purposes. Therefore, Cymer's investments are classified as available-for-sale and are
carried on the balance sheet at fair value, with unrealized gains and losses reported in stockholders’
equity. Unrealized losses at December 31, 2003 were $9,000. We have conciuded that this
unrealized loss is a temporary impairment, as it represents an excess of book value over market
value on a single U.S. government agency bond, held for only 8 days and due to mature in fess than
90 days as of December 31, 2003. Due to the conservative nature of the investment portfolio, a
sudden change in interest rates would not have a material effect on the vaiue of the portfolio.

Inventories ~ Inventories are carried at the lower of standard cost, which approximates first-in, the
first-out method, or market. Cost includes material, labor and manufacturing overhead costs. Cymer
reviews the components of its inventory on a regular basis for excess or obsolete inventory and
makes appropriate allowances and dispositions in the period that such inventory is identified.

Property and Equipment — Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation. Equipment acquired under capital leases is stated at the present value of the future
minimum lease payments. Additions and improvements are capitalized and maintenance and repairs
are expensed when incurred. Depreciation is provided using the straight-line method over the
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estimated useful lives of the assets (generally one to five years). The Cymer owned buildings are
depreciated over a useful life of twenty years. Leasehold improvements and equipment held under
capital leases are amortized using the straight-line method over the shorter of the life of the asset or
the remaining lease term. Amortization of equipment obtained under capital leases is included in
depreciation expense in the accompanying consolidated financial statements. Light source systems
built for internal use are capitalized and depreciated using the straight-line method over three years.

Goodwill/intangible Assets — Cymer adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No.
142 (“SFAS 142"), “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets” on January 1, 2002. SFAS 142
superceded Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 17, "Intangible Assets", and discontinued the
amortization of goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives associated with purchase
business combinations. In addition, SFAS 142 includes provisions regarding the reclassification
between goodwill and identifiable intangible assets in accordance with the new definition of intangible
assets set forth in Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 141 ("SFAS 141"), "Business
Combinations", the reassessment of the useful lives of existing intangible assets, and the annual
testing for impairment of existing goodwill and other intangible assets with indefinite lives. in
accordance with the adoption of SFAS 142 on January 1, 2002, Cymer ceased the amortization of
goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite lives, and completed the required transitional
impairment test, which resulted in no indication of impairment. Cymer also re-evaluated the
classifications of its existing intangible assets and goodwill in accordance with SFAS No. 141. As a
result, Cymer reclassified assembled workforce net of amortization of $617,000 from intangible
assets to goodwill, as assembled workforce no langer meets the definition of an identifiable intangible
asset under the provisions of SFAS No. 141. In accordance with SFAS 142, Cymer conducts an
annual impairment test of goodwill. This test is conducted in the fourth quarter of each fiscal year, or
whenever events or circumstances occur indicating potential impairment.

Intangible assets consist primarily of acquired patents and purchased technology. Intangible assets
with definite lives are recorded at cost and are amortized using the straight-line method over their
expected useful lives from four to eight years. Cymer reviews the carrying value and remaining useful
life of intangibles for impairment whenever events or circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. The amount of impairment, if any, is measured based on the projected
discounted future operating cash flows using a discount rate reflecting Cymer’s average cost of
funds. The assessment of the recoverability of intangible assets will be impacted if estimated future
operating cash flows are not achieved.

impairment of Long-Lived Assets and Long-Lived Assets to Be Disposed Of — On January 1,
2002, Cymer adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 144 (“SFAS 1447,
“Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets”, which addresses financial
accounting and reporting for the impairment or disposal of long-lived assets. While SFAS 144
supersedes SFAS 121, it retains many of the fundamental provisions of SFAS 121, including the
recognition and measurement of the impairment of long-lived assets to be held and used, and the
measurement of long-lived assets to be disposed of by sale. Long-lived assets and certain
identifiable intangibles are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. Recoverability of assets to be
held and used is measured by a comparisen of the carrying amount of the assets to future net cash
flows (undiscounted and without interest) expected to be generated by the asset. If such assets are
considered to be impaired, the impairment to be recognized is measured by the amount by which the
carrying amount of the assets exceeds the fair value of the assets. Assets to be disposed of are
reported at the iower of the carrying amount or fair value less costs to sell.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments — The foliowing methods and assumptions were used to
estimate the fair value of each class of financial instruments for which it is practicable to estimate
that value:
Cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable, accounts payable — related
party, accrued warranty and installation, accrued payroll and benefits, accrued patents, royalties
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and other fees, income tax payable and accrued and other current liabilities — The carrying
amount reported in the consolidated balance sheets for cash and cash equivalents, accounts
receivable, income taxes receivable, accounts payable, accounts payable — related party, accrued
warranty and installation, accrued payroll and benefits, accrued patents, royalties and other fees,
accrued interest, income tax payable and accrued and other current liabilities approximates fair
value because of the short maturity of these instruments.

Investments — Investments are carried at fair value which is based on quoted market prices for
such securities.

Foreign Currency Forward Exchange Contracts — The fair value of foreign currency forward
exchange contracts is determined using the quoted exchange rate (see “Derivative Instruments”
below).

Convertible Subordinated Notes — Convertible Subordinated Notes are recorded at face value of
$250.0 million at December 31, 2002 and 2003. The fair value of such debt, based on quoted
market prices at December 31, 2002 and 2003 was $245.9 million and $276.0 million,
respectively.

Revolving Loan — The carrying amount reported for Cymer’s revolving loan approximates its fair
value because the underlying instrument bears interest at rates comparable to current rates
offered to Cymer for instruments of similar terms and risk.

Guarantees — Cymer adopted the disclosure provisions of Financial Accounting Standards Board
Interpretation No. 45 (“FIN 45”), “Guarantor's Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for
Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness to Others”, during the quarter ended
December 31, 2002 and has adopted the recognition and measurement provisions as required after
December 31, 2002. FIN 45 provides expanded accounting guidance surrounding liability recognition
and disclosure requirements related to guarantees, as defined by this interpretation.

In the ordinary course of business, Cymer is not subject to potential obligations under guarantees
that fall within the scope of FIN 45, except for standard warranty provisions associated with product
sales, indemnification provisions related to intellectual property that are contained within many of its
customer agreements, and third-party bank guarantees for subsidiary office lines of credit. All of
these provisions give rise only to the disclosure requirements prescribed by FIN 45.

Product Warranties — Warranty provisions contained within Cymer’s customer agreements are
generally consistent with those prevalent in the semiconductor equipment industry. The warranty
period and terms vary by light source model. In general, the light source system warranty period
ranges from 17 to 26 months after shipment. Cymer also warrants consumables and spare parts
sold to its customers and the coverage period varies by spare part type as some types include
time-based warranty periods and others include usage-based warranty periods. On average, the
warranty period for consumables and spare parts is approximately 6 months from the date of
shipment. Cymer records a provision for warranty for all products, which is included in cost of
product sales in the consolidated statements of operations and is recorded at the time that the
related revenue is recognized. The warranty provision for light source systems is reviewed
monthly and determined using a financial model, which considers actual historical expenses, and
potential risks associated with Cymer's different light source system models. This financial model
is then used to calculate the future probable expenses related to warranty and the required level
of the warranty provision. The risk levels used within this model are reviewed and updated as risk
levels change by model over its product life cycle. The warranty provision for consumables and
spares is determined using actual historical data. For both light source systems and consumables,
if actual warranty expenditures differ substantially from Cymer's estimates, revisions to the
warranty provision would be required. Actual warranty expenditures are recorded against the
warranty provision as they are incurred.

F-9

—-—«



The following table summarizes information related to Cymer’s warranty provision for the year
ended December 31, 2002 and 2003 {in thousands):

2002 2003
Balance, January 1 $ 26,750 $ 29,600
Liabilities accrued for warranties issued during the
net of adjustments and expirations (1) 17,125 15,505
Warranty expenditures incurred during the year (14,275) (18,905)
Balance, December 31 $ 29,600 $ 26,200

(1) Included in this amount are adjustments to existing warranty reserves as a result of normal recurring updates made to
the risk factors used in the warranty model.

Intellectual Property Indemnifications — Cymer includes intellectual property indemnification
clauses within its general terms and conditions with its customers and the general purchase
agreements with its three major customers, ASM Lithography, Canon, and Nikon. In general,
these indemnification provisions provide that Cymer will defend its customers against any
infringement claims that arise related to Cymer's products. Under the indemnification clauses,
Cymer will pay all costs and damages, including attorney’s fees, associated with such settlements
or defenses, provided that the customer follows specific procedures for notifying Cymer of such
claims and allows Cymer to manage the settiement proceedings. Due to the nature of these
indemnification provisions, they are indefinite and extend beyond the term of the actual customer
agreements.

An indemnification provision is also included in the contract manufacturing agreement with Seiko,
which was terminated effective March 31, 2003. As with Cymer’s indemnification provisions on
intellectual property, Cymer will continue to honor this indemnification clause within the agreement
even after its termination. Seiko and at least one Japanese customer have been notified that
Cymer’s light source systems in Japan may infringe certain Japanese patents. Cymer believes,
based upon the advice of counsel, that Cymer's products do not infringe any valid claim of the
asserted patents or that it is entitled to prior use claims in Japan.

Guarantees on Subsidiary Debt — During the first quarter of 2003 and part of the second quarter of
2003, Cymer was party to a Parent Guarantee associated with a revolving Loan Agreement held
by Cymer Japan. This guarantee was between a commercial bank in the United States and
Cymer. The Parent Guarantee was entered into in 2001 in order to establish a banking
relationship between this commercial bank and Cymer Japan. Per the terms of the Parent
Guarantee, Cymer guaranteed payment of any obligations under the revolving loan agreement in
the event that Cymer Japan could not make such payments due or defaults on the loan. Cymer
Japan made all payments per the terms of the Loan Agreement and thus, Cymer did not incur any
guarantor obligations under the Parent Guarantee. Since Cymer Japan is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Cymer and Cymer Japan records the revolving loan outstanding balance as a liabitity
on its financial statements, the carrying amount of the liability was included in the consolidated
batance sheets. The Loan Agreement expired on June 16, 2003 and was paid in full by Cymer
Japan. The Loan Agreement was not renewed on this expiration date.

Comprehensive Income — Comprehensive income (loss) includes net income (loss), effective
unrealized gains and losses on foreign currency forward exchange contracts, foreign currency
transtation adjustments, and unrealized gains and losses on available-for-sale securities, which are
recorded as short-term and long-term investments in the accompanying consolidated balance
sheets.

Revenue Recognition — Cymer recognizes revenue when all four revenue recognition criteria have
been met. These four criteria are as follows: persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists; delivery
has occurred or services have been rendered; seller's price to buyer is fixed or determinable; and
collectibility is reasonably assured. Cymer’s revenue is generated from product sales, which includes
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light source systems, consumables and spare parts, upgrades, service, service contracts and
training. In addition, Cymer generates other revenue which primarily represents revenue earned
from funded development activities and license fees.

Cymer’s revenue recognition policy results in revenue being recognized as follows for product sales
1) For light source systems that have proven to meet specifications prior to shipment and do not
have acceptance provisions, the revenue is recognized once legal titie passes to the customer. The
systems are tested by Cymer in environments similar to those used by the customers prior to
shipment to ensure that they meet the customer’s specifications and will interface with the
customer’s software. As the shipping terms vary by customer, title will transfer based upon the
shipping terms specific to that customer. 2) For light source systems which are shipped to
customers requiring acceptance provisions, the revenue is recognized at such time that the
acceptance conditions are satisfied. 3) For consumables and spare parts sales, revenue is
recognized at the point that legal title passes to the customer. For consumables and spare parts
sales, legal title generally passes to the customer upon shipment from the Cymer facility. 4) For
service and training sales which are generated from a billable service call or a training class, revenue
is recognized when the services or training have been rendered to the customer. 5) For service
contract sales, revenue is generally recognized ratably over the life of the contract or per the specific
terms of the agreement.

Revenue classified as “other revenue” in Cymer’s statements of operations is recorded as revenue
on a basis consistent with the performance requirement of the funded development or license
agreement. Revenue from funded development contracts is generally recognized on the percentage-
of-completion method based on the relationship of costs incurred to total estimated costs. Revenues
generated from funded development contracts are derived from cost sharing contracts between
Cymer and certain customers. The costs associated with these contracts are included in research
and development expenses in the period incurred and are not listed separately as other cost or
expenses in the consolidated statements of operations. If milestones on funded development
contracts require that specific results be achieved or reported by Cymer, revenue is not recognized
until that milestone is completed. Payments received in advance of performance are recorded as
deferred revenue.

Warranty Expense — Cymer warrants its new light source products against defects in design,
materials, and workmanship. The warranty period and terms vary by light source model. In general,
the light source system warranty period ranges from 17 to 26 months after shipment and the spare
part warranty period on average is approximately 6 months from the date of shipment. Cymer
records a provision for warranty for all products when the related product revenue is recognized.
Warranty provisions are included in cost of product sales in the accompanying consoclidated
statements of operations. In general, the warranty provision for both light source systems and spare
parts is based upon actual historical expenses and potential risks associated with Cymer’s different
light source system models. Actual warranty expenditures are recorded against the warranty
provision as they are incurred.

Research and Development — Research and development costs are expensed in the period
incurred and include costs associated with funded development contracts. The funded development
contracts are generally cost sharing contracts between Cymer and a customer where each party
pays near equivalent portions of the total development costs. As a result, costs for the funded
development contracts approximate the revenue recorded for these contracts in other revenue in the
accompanying statements of operations. The services performed under the funded development
contracts are provided on a best efforts basis.

Income Taxes — Income taxes are accounted for under the asset and liability method. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences
between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their
respective tax bases. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates
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expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in
tax rates is recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment date.

Stock-Based Compensation — Cymer applies the intrinsic value-based method of accounting
prescribed by Accounting Principles Board {(“APB”) Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to
Employees”, and related interpretations including FASB Interpretation No. 44, “Accounting for Certain
Transactions involving Stock Compensation an interpretation of APB Opinion No. 25” to account for
its stock option plans. Under this method, employee-based stock compensation expense is
measured on the date of grant only if the then current market price of the underlying stock exceeded
the exercise price and is recorded on a straight-line basis over the applicable vesting period.
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards Board No. 123 (“SFAS No. 123”) “Accounting for
Stock-Based Compensation”, established accounting and disclosure requirements using a fair value-
“based method of accounting for stock-based employee compensation plans. As allowed by SFAS
No. 123, Cymer has elected to continue to apply the intrinsic value-hased method of accounting
described above, and has adopted the disclosure requirements of SFAS No. 123, as amended by
SFAS No. 148, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation—Transition and Disclosure”.

All options granted under the plans had an exercise price equal to the market value of the underlying
common stock on the date of grant.

Cymer accounts for options granted to non-employees under SFAS No. 123 and EITF Issue No. 96-
18, “Accounting for Equity Instruments that are Issued to other than Employees for Acquiring or in
Conjunction with Selling Goods or Services”. Cymer measures the fair value of such options using
the Black-Scholes option-pricing model at each financial reporting date. Cymer accounts for
changes in fair values between reporting dates in accordance with Financial Accounting
Interpretation 28. Stock-based compensation expense for options granted to non-employees and for
those related to employees who changed status for the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2003
was $161,000 and $1.3 million, respectively. There was no stock-based compensation expense
recorded for non-employees for the year ended December 31, 2001.

Under SFAS 123, the weighted average per share fair value of the options granted for the years
ended 2001, 2002, and 2003 was $14.36, $17.45 and $19.20 , respectively, on the date of grant.
Fair value under SFAS 123 is determined using the Black-Scholes option-pricing mode! with the
assumptions noted below. For risk free interest, Cymer uses the then currently available rate on zero
coupon U.S. Government issues with a remaining life of five years for valuing options and one year
for ESPP.

2001 2002 2003

Dividend yield None None None
Volatility rate 84% 83% 79%
Weighted average risk free interest :

Options 4.42% 3.34% 3.16%

ESPP 3.06% 1.88% 1.26%
Assumed forfeiture rate 5% 5% 5%
Expected life:

Options 6 years 6 years 6 years

ESPP .5 years .5 years .5 years
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The following table compares net income (loss) per share as reported by Cymer to the pro forma
amounts that would be reported had compensation expense been recognized for Cymer’s stock-
based compensation pfans in accordance with SFAS No. 123, (in thousands, except per share
amounts):

Years ended December 31,

2001 2002 2003

Net income (loss), as reported $ 8,485 $ 13,596 $ (15,400)
Deduct: Total stock-based employee

compensation expense determined

under the fair value based method for

all awards, net of related tax effects (32,139) (33,585) $ {10,389)
Pro forma net loss $ (23,654) $ (19,989) $ (25,789)
Earnings (loss) per share:

Basic - as reporied $ 0.28 $ 0.41 $ (0.44)

Basic - pro forma $ {(0.78) $ (0.60) $ (0.74)

Diluted - as reported $ 0.27 $ 0.39 $ {0.44)

Diluted - pro forma 3 (0.78) $ (0.60) $ (0.74)

Foreign Currency Translation — The financial statements of Cymer’s foreign subsidiaries where the
functional currency has been determined to be the local currency are translated into United States
dollars using current rates of exchange for assets and liabilities and rates of exchange that
approximate the rates in effect at the transaction date for revenues, expenses, gains and losses.
Gains and losses resulting from foreign currency translation are accumulated as a separate
component of consolidated stockholders’ equity as accumulated other comprehensive income (loss).
Gains and losses resulting from foreign currency transactions are included in. the consolidated
statements of operations.

Derivative Instruments — Cymer conducts business in several international currencies through its
global operations. Due to the large volume of Cymer's business that is conducted in Japan, the
Japanese operation poses the greatest foreign currency risk. Cymer uses financial instruments,
principally foreign currency forward exchange contracts, to manage its foreign currency exposures in
Japan. Cymer enters into foreign currency forward exchange contracts in order to reduce the impact
of currency fluctuations related to purchases of Cymer’s inventories by Cymer Japan in US dollars
for resale under firm third-party sales commitments denominated in Japanese Yen. Cymer does not
enter into foreign currency forward exchange contracts for trading purposes.

Cymer's foreign currency forward exchange contracts qualify for hedge accounting treatment per the
provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative
Instruments and Hedging Activities”. As a result, Cymer defers changes in the fair value of these
contracts and records the amount in other comprehensive income (loss) and subsequently
reclassifies the gain or loss to cost of product sales in the same period that the related sale is made
to the third party.

Cymer’s derivative instruments are designated as cash flow hedging instruments. Cymer adopted
SFAS 133 on January 1, 2001 but did not qualify for cash flow hedge accounting treatment until July
1, 2001 due to the extensive documentation and administrative requirements. Accordingly, for
contracts which Cymer entered into from January 1, 2001 to June 30, 2001, Cymer recorded
changes in the fair value of these foreign currency forward exchange contracts directly through
earnings in other income (expense) in the period that such changes occurred. For those contracts
that have been entered into on or after July 1, 2001, Cymer defers effective changes in the fair value
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of its foreign currency forward exchange contracts into other comprehensive income and
subsequently reclassifies the effective changes to cost of product sales in the same period that the
related sale is made to the third party. Prior to the adoption of SFAS 133, Cymer accounted for all
such gains and losses through cost of product sales in the same period as the related sale was
made to the third party. Upon adoption of SFAS 133 on January 1, 2001, Cymer recorded a loss to
cumulative change in accounting principle of $370,000 and a gain of $2.4 million to accumulated
other comprehensive income per SFAS 133 transition guidelines.

At December 31, 2003, Cymer had outstanding foreign currency forward exchange contracts to buy
US $81.0 miltion for 9.3 billion yen under foreign currency exchange facilities with contract rates
ranging from 107.09 yen to 120.6 yen per US dollar. These contracts expire on various expiration
dates through February 2005. Cymer recognized a net gain through cost of product sales from the
foreign currency exchange contracts of $2,320,000 for the year ended December 31, 2001, and a
net loss of $992,000 and $2,484,000 for the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2003,
respectively.

Concentration of Credit Risk - Financial instruments, which potentially subject Cymer to
concentrations of credit risk, consist principally of cash and accounts receivable.

Cash and cash equivalents — Cymer invests its excess cash in an effort to preserve capital,
provide liquidity, maintain diversification and generate returns relative to Cymer’s carporate
investment policy and prevailing market conditions. Cymer has not experienced any material
losses on its cash and investment accounts. At times, cash balances held in financial institutions
are in excess of federally insured limits. Cymer performs periodic evaluations of the relative credit
standing of financial institutions and limits the amount of risk by selecting financial institutions with
a strong relative credit standing. At December 31, 2002 and 2003, Cymer had $196.6 miilion and
$230.4 million respectively, in deposits with major financial institutions that exceeded the federally
insured limit of $100,000.

Accounts receivable - Cymer maintains an allowance for doubtful accounts for estimated losses
resulting from the inability of its customers to make required payments, which results in bad debt
expense. Management periodically determines the adequacy of this allowance by continually
evaluating individual customer receivables considering the customer’s financial condition, security
deposits, and current economic conditions. Credit losses to date have been minimal.

Major Customers — Revenues from major customers are detailed as follows:
Years ended December 31,

2001 2002 2003
(in thousands)

Customer

ASM Lithography $ 85,758 $ 92,286 $ 63,793
Canon 41,698 61,709 64,459
Nikon 77,490 68,358 55,107

Accounts receivable balances for these same major customers are detailed as follows:

December 31,
2002 2003
{(in thousands)

Customer

ASM Lithography $ 20,729 $ 22,033
Canon 6,290 8,041
Nikon 9,262 10,550

Revenues from Japanese customers, generated primarily by Cymer Japan, accounted for 41%, 43%
and 44% of revenues for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2002, and 2003, respectively.
Revenues from ASM Lithography in the Netherlands accounted for 32%, 32% and 24% of revenues
for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2002, and 2003, respectively.
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The loss of business of any of these major customers would have a material adverse effect on our
operating results, financial condition, and cash flows.

Earnings (Loss) Per Share - Basic earnings (loss) per share ("EPS") excludes dilution and is
computed by dividing net income or loss attributable to common stockholders by the weighted-
average of common shares outstanding for the period. Diluted EPS reflects the potential dilution that
could occur if securities or other contracts to issue common stock (convertible subordinated notes,
warrants to purchase common stock and common stock options using the treasury stock method)
were exercised or converted into common stock. Potential dilutive securities are excluded from the
diluted EPS computation in loss periods as their effect would be anti-dilutive.

The following table sets forth the computation of diluted weighted average common and potential
common shares outstanding for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2002 and 2003, respectively:

Years ended December 31,
2001 2002 2003
(in thousands)

Basic weighted average common shares

outstanding 30,474 33,317 35,065
Effect of dilutive securities: .
Warrants - 19 .
Options 634 1,376 -

Diluted weighted average common and
potential common shares outstanding 31,108 34,712 35,065

For the years ended December 31, 2001, 2002, and 2003, weighted average options and warrants to
purchase 3,614,000, 2,482,000 and 3,943,000 shares of common stock, respectively, were
outstanding but not included in the computation of diluted earnings per share as their effect was anti-
dilutive. In addition, for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2002, and 2003, weighted average
common shares attributable to convertible subordinated notes of 3,387,000, 5,077,000 and
5,000,000, respectively, were not included in the computation of diluted earnings per share as their
effect was also anti-dilutive.

Reclassifications — Certain amounts in the prior year consolidated financial statements have been
reclassified to conform to current period presentation.

Accounting Pronouncements Adopted

Cymer adopted the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 143 (“SFAS No.
143"), "Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations" on January 1, 2003. SFAS No. 143 addresses
financial accounting and reporting for obligations associated with the retirement of tangible long-iived
assets and the associated asset retirement costs. SFAS No. 143 applies to tangible long-lived assets
that have a legal obligation associated with their retirement that results from the acquisition,
construction or development or normal use of the asset. The adoption of this statement did not have
an impact on Cymer’s financial condition or results of operations.

Cymer adopted the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 145 (“SFAS No.
145"), "Rescission of FASB Statements No. 4, 44 and 64, Amendment of FASB Statement No. 13,
and Technical  Corrections” on January 1, 2003. SFAS No. 145 provides guidance on the
classification of gains and losses from the extinguishment of debt and on the accounting for certain
specified lease transactions. Cymer reclassified the 2001 gain and the 2002 loss on extinguishment
of debt from an extraordinary gain (loss) on debt extinguishment to operating expenses in the
consolidated statements of operations.

Cymer adopted the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 146 (“SFAS No.
146”), “Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities”, on January 1, 2003. SFAS
No. 146 revises the accounting for specified employee and contract terminations that are part of

F-16




restructuring activities and allows recognition of a liability for the cost associated with an exit or
disposal activity only when the liability is incurred and can be measured at fair value. This statement
applies on a prospective basis to exit or disposal activities that are initiated after December 31, 2002.
The adoption of this statement did not have an impact on Cymer’s financial condition or results of

operation.

Cymer adopted the initial recognition and measurement provisions of FIN 45 on January 1, 2003,
which apply on a prospective basis to guarantees issued or modified after December 31, 2002.
Cymer adopted the disclosure provisions of FIN 45 during the quarter ended December 31, 2002. In
the ordinary course of business, Cymer is not subject to potential obligations under guarantees that
fall within the scope of FIN 45 except for warranty provisions, intellectual property indemnification
clauses that are contained within many of Cymer’s customer agreements and third-party bank
guarantees that Cymer had with one of our subsidiaries until June 2003. These provisions fall within
the disclosure requirements prescribed by FIN 45.

In November 2002, the Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”) issued EITF lIssue No. 00-21,
"Accounting for Revenue Arrangements with Multiple Deliverables.” EITF Issue No. 00-21 addresses
how to determine whether a revenue arrangement involving multiple deliverables contains more than
one unit of accounting for the purposes of revenue recognition and how the revenue arrangement
consideration should be measured and allocated to the separate units of accounting. EITF Issue
No. 00-21 applies to revenue arrangements entered into after June 15, 2003. The adoption of this
statement did not have a material impact on Cymer’s financial condition or results of operations.

In April 2003, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 149 ("SFAS No.
149"), "Amendment of Statement 133 on Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities". SFAS No.
149 amends and clarifies financial accounting and reporting for derivative instruments, including
certain derivative instruments embedded in other contracts and for hedging activities under FASB
Statement No. 133. This statement is effective for contracts entered into or modified after June 30,
2003 and for hedging relationships designated after June 30, 2003. The adoption of this statement
did not have a material impact on Cymer’s financial condition or resuits of operations.

in May 2003, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No.150 ("SFAS No.
1507), "Accounting for Certain Instruments with Characteristics of Both Liabilities and Equity". The
standard establishes how an issuer classifies and measures certain freestanding financial
instruments with characteristics of liabilities and equity and requires that such instruments be
classified as liabilities. The standard is effective for financial instruments entered into or modified
after May 31, 2003 and is otherwise effective at the beginning of the first interim period beginning
after June 15, 2003. The adoption of the statement did not have a material impact on Cymer's
consolidated financial statements.

ACQUISITION OF ACTIVE CONTROL EXPERTS, INC.

On February 13, 2001, Cymer acquired the Cambridge, Massachusetts based company, Active
Control Experts, Inc. (“ACX”) in an all-stock transaction including 689,000 shares of Cymer stock and
336,000 stock options. ACX was a leading developer, manufacturer and marketer of hardware,
software and firmware solutions for vibrations and nano-motion. The ACX technology can be
physically embedded, creating adaptive “smart structures” to intrinsically improve the stability and
precision of nano-motion control in next-generation semiconductor capital equipment. The acquisition
was accounted for using the purchase method of accounting, and the results of operations of ACX
are included in Cymer's consolidated financial statements from the acquisition date. The total
consideration for the purchase was approximately $24.8 million which included common stock of
$15.0 million, $3.0 million liabilities assumed, $5.9 million employee stock options assumed, and $0.9
million capitalized transaction costs. Cymer valued the 689,000 shares of common stock issued to
acquire ACX at $21.75 per share, which was the average closing price for Cymer's common stock for
the period of ten trading days commencing five trading days immediately preceding the
announcement of the transaction on November 20, 2000. A total of $12.3 million was recorded as
goodwill based on the total consideration of $24.8 million less $1.5 million of acquired tangible
assets, $1.4 million of acquired identifiable intangible assets, a $5.1 million in process research and
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development charge, and $4.5 miilion of unearned compensation recorded related to the assumed
stock options. Had this company been acquired on January 1, 2001, Cymer’s net income would
have been as follows (in thousands, except per share data):

Year ended
December 31, 2001

Reported net income 3 8,485
Adjustments:
Amortization of goodwill and intangible assets (429)
Incremental net loss (475)
Tax effect 226
Total (678)
Adjusted net income $ 7,807

Basic earnings per share:

As reported $ .28
As adjusted $ .26

Diluted earnings per share:

27
.25

As reported
As adjusted

A

The purchased in-process research and development (“IPR&D") totaling $5.1 million, which related to
one vibration control development project, was expensed upon acquisition because the application of
ACX's technology to semiconductor manufacturing required further research and development
before reaching technological feasibility and commercial viability. In valuing the ACX IPR&D,
consideration was given to key characteristics of the product under development, as well as the
technology’s life cycle, and the project’s stage of development. A discounted cash flow model was
used to value the ACX IPR&D which included key assumptions related to ACX’s revenue growth,
cost of goods levels, selling, general, and administrative expenses, research and development
expenses, and income tax rates, all over a four year projection period from 2001 through 2004. The
estimated cash flows attributable to the technology were converted to present value equivalents
using a 20% discount rate. The value of the ACX IPR&D was then calculated by summing the net
present value amounts over the four year projection period, adding the tax amortization benefit, and
applying a 70% percentage of completion factor for the project.

Cymer continued to conduct research and development on the vibration control project that related to
this IPR&D charge following the acquisition in February 2001. The core technology was pursued as
both a stand-alone product and one that could be embedded into Cymer’s future light source system
products. Development of this technology as a stand-alone product was conducted through the end
of the third quarter 2001. At that time, Cymer and a potential customer for the stand-alone product
decided not to pursue this product further. During the same period, Cymer further developed this
same core technology so that it could be embedded in certain core modules of its light source
system products. This ACX technology was successfully embedded in the NanoLith 7000 light
source system, which was introduced in the third quarter of 2001. The project completion date was
consistent with the Company’s original estimate at the time of the acquisition. This technology is also
embedded in several of the core modules of Cymer’'s newest light source system products, the ELS-
7000 and the XLA 100 fight sources, which were released in early 2002 and 2003, respectivetly.
During the period that the core technology was being completed as an application in the
semiconductor industry, Cymer incurred and expensed additional costs of approximately $2.5 million,
which were consistent with the costs originally anticipated to complete the project. The technology
as embedded in Cymer's existing light systems projects has been consistent with the sales
projections used in determining the value of the IPR&D. As with Cymer's other core technologies,
Cymer intends to continue to develop ACX vibration control technology so that it can expand the
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technology’s application further within Cymer’s existing light source system products and include it in
newly developed products. '

Given the successful completion of the above research program and performance of the associated
product, Cymer believes the assumptions used to determine the IPR&D charge are reasonable.

3. BALANCE SHEET DETAILS

The consolidated balance sheets detail is as follows as of December 31, 2002 and 2003 (in
thousands):

December 31,

2002 2003
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE:
Trade $ 46,283 $ 58,514
Notes and other 7,814 6,269
54,097 64,783
Less allowance for doubtful accounts and notes (1,756) (1,964)
Total $ 52,341 $ 62,819
INVENTORIES:
Raw materials $ 44,252 $ 37,393
Work-in-progress 32,718 26,949
Finished goods 37,849 40,698
Allowance for excess and obsolete inventory - (14,700) (12,028)
Total , $ 100,119 $ 93,012
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT:
Land $ 9,080 $ 9,080
Building 31,178 88,547
Building improvements 2,451 4,280
Furniture and equipment 77,434 72,287
Capitalized light sources 40,850 33,069
Leasehold improvements ‘ 27,412 2,860
Construction in process 17,641 1,521
‘ 206,046 211,644
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization (93,837) (82,795)
Total $ 112,209 $ 128,849

4. INVESTMENTS

Investments at December 31, 2002 consist of the following (in thousands):

Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Market
Cost Gains Losses Value
Short-term: ‘
Corporate debt securities $ 35,762 $ 275 $ (135) $ 35,902
Commercial paper 13,988 3 - 13,991
U.S. government agencies 14,994 8 - 15,082
Other 6,218 46 - 6,264
Total 3 70,962 $ 422 $ (135) $ 71,249
Long-term:
Corporate debt securities $ 136,247 $ 3,200 $ (38) $ 139,409
U.S. government agencies 19,259 361 - 19,620
Total $ 155,506 $ 3,561 $ ~ (38) $ 159,029
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investments at December 31, 2003 consist of the following (in thousands):

. Short-term:
Corporate debt securities
Commercial paper

U.S. government agencies

Other
Total

Long-term:
Corporate debt securities

U.S. government agencies

Other
Total

Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Market
Cost Gains Losses Value
$ 66,526 $ 454 $ - 66,980
8,438 - - 8,438
16,000 59 9 16,050
2,003 3 - 2,006
$ 92,967 $ 516 $ 9 $ 93,474
65,337 1,488 - 66,825
3,154 89 - 3,243
7,234 207 - 7,441
$ 75,725 $ 1,784 3 - 77,509

As of December 31, 2003, the contractual maturities of debt securities were as follows (in thousands):

5. REPORTING COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Short-term:
Long-term:

Total

Less than One to
One Year Three Years Total
93,474 - 93,474
- 77,509 77,509
93,474 77,509 170,983

Comprehensive income (loss) includes net income (loss), effective unrealized gains and losses on
foreign currency forward exchange contracts, foreign currency translation adjustments, and unrealized
gains and losses on available-for-sale securities, which are recorded as short-term and long-term
investments in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

The following table summarizes the change in each component of accumulated other comprehensive
income (loss) for the year ended December 31, 2003 (in thousands):

January 1, 2001
December 31, 2001
December 31, 2002

December 31, 2003

Balance
Period net change
Balance
Period net change
Balance
Period net change
Balance

Total unrealized

Total unrealized

gains on gains (losses) on Accumulated
Translation available-for-sale foreign currency other
adjustment, investments, forward exchange comprehensive
net of tax net of tax contracts, net of tax loss
$ (1,797) $ 106 $ - 3 (1,691)
(3,610) 270 1,369 (1,971)
(5,407) 376 1,369 (3,662)
135 1,966 (1,868) 233
(5,272) 2,342 (499) (3,429)
799 (894) (2,210) (2,305)
$ (4,473) $ 1,448 $ (2,709) $ (5,734)
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6. GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

As of the date of adoption of SFAS No. 142, on January 1, 2002, Cymer had unamortized goodwill in
the amount of $9.8 million and unamortized identifiable intangible assets, excluding acquired patents,
in the amount of $1.1 million, all of which were subject to the transition provisions of SFAS No. 142,

During the fourth quarter of 2003, Cymer completed its annual impairment test of goodwill and
intangible assets, and concluded that no impairment of goodwill existed.

Also included in intangible assets — net on the accompanying balance sheets are amounts associated
with patents which were acquired in 2001 and 2003 (see Note 13). As of December 31, 2002 and
December 31, 2003, the net carrying amount of these patents was $8.2 million and $12.7 million,
respectively.

Aggregate amortization expense was $3,148,000, $160,000 and $160,000 for the years ended
December 31, 2001, 2002, and 2003, respectively. As of December 31, 2003, future estimated
amortization expense is expected to be as follows (in thousands):

Future
Amortization
Year ended December 31, 2004 $ 160
Year ended December 31, 2005 $ 20

The following table summarizes the activity in the carrying amount of goodwill for the years ended
December 31, 2002 and 2003 (in thousands):

Goodwill as of December 31, 2001 $ 9,791
Goodwill acquired for acquisition of 5% minority

interest of Cymer Korea 189
Reclassification of assembled workforce to goodwill 617
Goodwill as of December 31, 2002 10,597
Reversal of deferred tax asset valuation allowance

against goodwill {2,950)
Goodwill as of December 31, 2003 $ 7,647

Income before cumulative change in accounting principle, net income and earnings (loss) per share
on a pro forma basis, excluding goodwill and intangible asset amortization expense related to
intangibles no longer amortized, would have been as follows if SFAS 142 had been adopted on
January 1, 2001 (in thousands, except per share data):

Year ended December 31,

2001 2002 2003

Reported income (loss) before cumulative
change in accounting principle $ 8,855 $ 13,596 $ (15,400)
Reported net income (loss) $ 8,485 $ 13,596 $ (15,400)
Adjustments:

Amortization of goodwill and intangible assets 3,008 - -

Tax effect (752) - -

2,256 - -

Adjusted income (loss) bebore cumulative
change in accounting principle $ 11,111 $ 13,596 $ (15,400)
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Year ended December 31,

2001 2002 2003
Adjusted net income (loss) $ 10,741 $ 13,586 $ (15,400)
Basic earnings (loss) per share:
As reported - before cumuiative change in
accounting principle $ 0.29 $ 0.41 $ (0.44)
As adjusted - before cumulative change in
accounting principle $ 0.36 $ 0.41 3 (0.44)
As reported —net income (loss) $ 0.28 $ 0.41 $ (0.44)
As adjusted —net income (loss) $ 0.35 " $ 0.41 $ (0.44)
Diluted earnings (loss) per share:
As reported —before cumulative change in
accounting principle $ 0.28 $ 0.39 $ (0.44)
As adjusted —before cumulative change in
accounting principle $ 0.36 $ 0.39 $ (0.44)
As reported - net income (loss) $ 0.27 $ 0.39 $ (0.44)
As adjusted —net income (loss) $ 0.35 $ 0.39 $ (0.44)

7. CREDIT FACILITIES

Revolving Loan Agreements — During 2002 and 2003, Cymer had certain loan agreements with a
commercial bank which provided for unsecured revolving loan facilities allowing for borrowings of
$10.0 million and $20.0 million under a U.S. line of credit and Japanese line of credit, respectively.
Under the loan agreements, Cymer was able to borrow in U.S. dollars or Japanese yen, and interest
accrued on outstanding borrowings at LIBOR plus 1.75% on U.S. dollar-denominated borrowings and
at the yen Cost of Funds rate plus 1.5% on yen-denominated borrowings. The loan agreements
required Cymer to maintain compliance with certain financial and other covenants, including tangible
net worth, quick ratio and profitability requirements. The loan agreements expired on June 16, 2003
and were not renewed.

As of December 31, 2002 there was $6.7 million outstanding at an annual interest rate of 1.60%
under the aforementioned loan agreements.

Foreign Exchange Facilities - During 2002 and 2003, Cymer maintained foreign exchange facilities
with three different banks in the United States and Japan. See also “Derivative Instruments” in Note
1. The foreign exchange facilities provided up to $100 million in 2000 and 2001 to be utilized for spot
and futures foreign exchange contracts for periods of up to one year. As of December 31, 2002 and
2003, $63.8 million and $81.0 million was utilized under the foreign exchange facilities, respectively.
One of these facilities is associated with the Revolving Loan Agreements discussed above and was
subject to the same covenants.

8. IMPAIRMENT OR DISPOSAL OF LONG-LIVED ASSETS

The total amount of impairment losses incurred in the years ended December 31, 2001, 2002, and
2003 was approximately $510,000, $574,000, and $17.7 million , respectively. For the year ended
December 31, 2001, the impairment loss of $510,000 included write-offs associated with tenant
improvements in Cymer’s San Diego facility, obsolete software used in the customer service and
support organization and obsolete lasers used within research and development. The loss of
$510,000 was recorded in the research and development, sales and marketing, and general and
administrative expenses, as appropriate, in the accompanying consolidated statements of
operations. For the year ended December 31, 2002, the impairment loss of $574,000 included write-
offs associated with tenant improvements in Cymer's San Diego facility and test equipment used
within research and development. The loss of $574,000 was recorded in the research and
development and general and administrative expenses, as appropriate, in the accompanying
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10.

consolidated statements of operations. For the year ended December 31, 2003 the impairment loss
of $17.7 million included write-offs associated with tenant improvements, $15.6 million of which
resuited from the two leased facilities in San Diego which were vacated in the third quarter of 2003.
In addition, there were impairment losses associated with test equipment used within manufacturing
and research and development. The loss of $17.7 million was recorded in general and
administrative, cost of product sales and research and development expenses, as appropriate, in the
accompanying consolidated statements of operations.

CONVERTIBLE SUBORDINATED NOTES

In August 1997, Cymer issued $172.5 miliion in aggregate principal amount in a private placement of
notes. These 3/2% / 7Y% Step-Up Convertible Subordinated Notes were due on August 6, 2004 and
were convertible at the option of the holder into shares of common stock of Cymer. The conversion
rate on the 1997 Notes was 21.2766 shares per $1,000 principal amount or an effective conversion
price of $47.00 per share. In 2001, Cymer repurchased a total of $24.9 million of the 1997 notes
then outstanding. The redemption resulted in a gain on debt extinguishment of $610,000. The 1997
Notes were called for redemption on March 25, 2002. Immediately prior to the March 25, 2002
redemption date, holders of $113.0 million of the outstanding principal amount converted their 1997
Notes into shares of Cymer's common stock. As a result of these conversions, 2,325,542 shares of
Cymer common stock were issued to the note holders and the remaining $38.0 million of the
outstanding principal amount of the 1997 Notes was redeemed. Cymer used its 2,000,000 shares of
treasury stock as part of the total 2,325,542 shares issued in the conversion. The redemption
resulted in a loss on debt extinguishment of $163,000.

In February 2002, Cymer issued $250.0 million in aggregate principal amount in a private placement
of notes. The 2002 Notes are due on February 15, 2009 with interest payable semi-annually on
February 15 and August 15 of each year at 3%2% per annum. These 2002 Notes are convertible into
shares of Cymer common stock at a conversion rate of 20 shares per $1,000 principal amount or an
effective conversion price of $50.00 per share. Cymer used a portion of the net proceeds from this
private placement to redeem the 1997 Notes. Cymer may redeem the 2002 Notes on or after
February 20, 2005, or earlier if the price of its common stock reaches certain levels. The 2002 Notes
are subordinated to Cymer’s existing and future senior indebtedness and effectively subordinated to
all indebtedness and other liabilities of Cymer’s subsidiaries. The remaining proceeds are to be used
for Cymer’s future operating, investing and financing activities.

STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Common Stock Warrants — During fiscal 2001, Cymer issued warrants to purchase 200,000 shares
of its common stock at a weighted average purchase price of $31.43 per share in conjunction with
the acquisition of certain patents (See Note 13). During fiscal 2002 and 2003, no warrants were
granted and no warrants were exercised. The warrants expire in May 2006.

Stock Option and Purchase Plans - Cymer has the following stock option and stock purchase
plans:

1996 Stock Option Plan (the “1996 Plan”) — The 1996 Plan provides for the grant of incentive
stock options to employees and nonqualified stock options to employees, directors and consultants
of Cymer. The exercise price of stock options granted under the 1996 Plan must be at least equal to
the fair market value of Cymer’s common stock on the date of grant. Options issued under the 1996
Plan expire five to ten years after the options are granted and generally vest and become exercisable
ratably over a four-year period following the date of grant. A total of 7,900,000 shares of common
stock were reserved for issuance under the 1996 Stock Pian. Of these shares, options to purchase
4,476,736 shares are outstanding and 238,946 shares remain available for grants as of December
31, 2003. ‘
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1896 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the "ESPP”) — The ESPP is intended to qualify under
Section 423 of the Code. Under the ESPP, eligible employees may purchase shares of common
stock from Cymer through payroll deductions of up to 15% of his or her compensation (as defined in
the plan), at a price per share equal to 85% of the lower of (i) the fair market value of Cymer's
common stock as of the first day of each offering period under the ESPP or (ii) the fair market value
of the common stock at the end of the purchase period. This plan was amended in 2001 by the
shareholders to establish two year offering periods with six month purchase periods and to increase
the plan shares issuable from 500,000 to 800,000. This plan was amended in 2003 to increase the
plan shares issuable to 1.0 million shares. The amount of shares issuable under this plan as of
December 31, 2003 was 154,338, and 845,662 shares have been previously issued.

2000 Equity Incentive Plan (the “2000 Plan”) — On August 16, 2000, Cymer adopted the 2000
Plan which provides for the grant of options to employees or consultants who are neither directors
nor officers. The exercise price of the options granted under the 2000 Plan will equal the quoted
market value of the common stock at the date of grant. Options issued under the 2000 Plan expire
ten years after the options are granted and generally vest and become exercisable ratably over a four
year period following the date of grant. This ptan was amended in 2002 to increase the shares
reserved for issuance under the plan from 1,850,000 to 4,950,000. Of these shares, options to
purchase 2,686,970 shares are outstanding and 1,354,594 shares remain available for grants as of
December 31, 2003.

ACX 1993 Stock Option Plan (the “ACX Plan”) — Cymer assumed the ACX Stock Option Plan
upon completion of the acquisition of ACX in February 2001. Outstanding options may be exercised
solely for shares of Cymer common stock, according to the conversion ratio established in the terms
of the acquisition. The outstanding ACX options were converted to options to purchase 336,109
Cymer shares, at exercise prices ranging from $2.08 to $38.71 per share. The ACX Plan provides
for the grant of incentive and nonstatutory options to purchase shares of common stock to
employees, directors and consultants at prices not less than 100% of the fair market vaiue of
common stock on the date the options are granted. Options issued under the ACX Plan expire five
to ten years after the options were granted and generally vest and become exercisable ratably over a
four-year period following the date of grant. No further options will be issued under the ACX Stock
Option Plan. As of December 31, 2003, 42,069 shares are outstanding under the ACX Stock Option
Plan.

in 1996, Cymer adopted a 7996 Director Option Plan (the "Director Option Plan”) whereby
200,000 shares were reserved for Board of Director option grants. There were 80,000 options issued
under the Director Option Plan in 1997. The Director Option Plan was dissolved in October 1997;
however, 20,000 of these options remain outstanding as of December 31, 2003.

1987 Stock Option Plan (the “1987 Plan”) — The 1987 Plan provided for the grant of incentive
and nonstatutory options to purchase shares of common stock to employees and consultants at
prices that are not less than 100% (85% for nonstatutory options) of the fair market value of Cymer’s
common stock on the date the options are granted. The 1987 Plan also provided for various
restrictions regarding option terms, prices, transferability and other matters. Options issued under
the 1987 Plan expired five to ten years after the options were granted and generally vest and became
exercisable ratably over a four-year period following the date of grant. This plan expired in 1997, and
there are no shares outstanding under this plan as of December 31, 2003. '
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Stock option transactions are summarized as follows (in thousands, except per share data):

Weighted Average

Number of Exercise Price
Shares Per Share
Outstanding, January1, 2001 5,737 $ 29.56
Granted 2,601 23.98
Assumed in acquisition of ACX 336 10.97
Exercised (550) 17.45
Cancelled (579) 28.60
Outstanding, December 31, 2001 7,545 27.75
Granted 1,803 28.20
Exercised (900) 21.94
Cancelled (326) 34.81
Outstanding, December 31, 2002 8,122 28.20
Granted 1,496 32.01
Exercised (1,899) 23.22
Cancelled (493) 27.38
Qutstanding, December 31, 2003 7,226 $ 30.36
Exercisable, December 31, 2003 4,618 $ 30.78

The following table summarizes information as of December 31, 2003 concerning currently
outstanding and exercisable options (number of shares in thousands):

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted Average
Remaining Weighted Weighted
Range of Number Contractual Life Average Number Average
Exercise Prices Qutstanding (years) Exercise Price Exercisable Exercise Price
$208-% 208 4 2.18 $ 208 3 $ 208
$10.41 - $14.91 53 3.37 $ 1229 42 $ 1247
$16.32 - $23.76 2,257 6.98 $ 20.53 1,378 $ 2004
$23.87 - $30.69 1,214 7.68 $ 26.84 867 $ 26.59
$30.97 - $39.81 2,938 7.31 $ 3563 1,791 $ 3647
$40.19 - $60.00 700 7.54 $ 47.05 537 $ 47.70
$ 2.08 - $60.00 7,226 7.26 $ 30.36 4,618 $ 3078

Stockholder Rights Plan - In the event of hostile takeover attempts, including the accumulation of
shares in the open market or through private transactions, the rights plan enhances the ability of
Cymer’s board of directors to negotiate with a potential acquirer for a fair price to all of the
stockholders. Under the rights plan, rights were distributed as a dividend at the rate of one right (a
"Cymer right") for each share of common stock held by stockholders of record as of the close of
business on March 2, 1998. After March 2, 1998, each holder of shares of common stock is entitled to
a Cymer right in respect of each share held by the stockholder. The Cymer rights will expire on
February 13, 2008. Under the rights plan, each Cymer right initially entitles stockholders to buy one
one-thousandth of a share of preferred stock for $100, subject to subsequent adjustment. The Cymer
rights will be exercisable only if a person or group acquires beneficial ownership of 15% or more of
Cymer common stock or commences a tender or exchange offer upon consummation of which the
person or group would beneficially own 15% or more of Cymer’s common stock.
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1.

if any person becomes the beneficial owner of 15% or more of Cymer’s common stock, other than
pursuant to a tender offer for all outstanding shares approved by a majority of Cymer’s directors not
affiliated with the person, then each Cymer right not owned by the acquiring person or related parties
will entitle its holder to purchase, at the Cymer right's then current exercise price, shares of Cymer's
common stock having a value of twice the Cymer right's then current exercise price (or, in certain
circumstances as determined by Cymer’s board of directors, cash, other property or other securities in
lieu of purchasing preferred shares). If after any person has become a 15% stockholder, Cymer is
involved in @ merger or other business combination transaction with another person in which Cymer is
not the surviving entity or in which Cymer’s common stock is changed or exchanged, or if Cymer sells
50% or more of its assets or earning power to another person, each Cymer right will entitle its holder
to purchase, at the Cymer right's then current exercise price, shares of common stock of the other
person having a value of twice the Cymer right's then current exercise price.

Prior to their expiration, Cymer is generally entitled to redeem the Cymer rights at $0.01 per Cymer
right at any time prior to a public announcement that a 15% position has been acquired.

INCOME TAXES

Total income taxes for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2002 and 2003 were allocated as follows
(in thousands):

Years ended December 31,

2001 2002 2003
To income on continuing operations $ 2,871 $ 2,706 $ (21,464)
To stockhoider’s equity and goodwill 532 (6,683) (13,005)
Total income taxes $ 3403 $ (3.977) $ (34,469)

The components of the provision (benefit) for income taxes are summarized as follows:

Years ended December 31,
2001 2002 2003
(in thousands)

Current income taxes:

Federal $ 1,560 $ 8,320 $ (4,082

State (3,432} 371 (714)

Foreign 3,017 4,262 3,989
Total 1,145 12,953 (807)
Deferred income taxes:

Federal (118) (6,874) (14,904)

State 1,844 (3,373) (4,418)

Foreign - - (1,335)
Total 1,726 (10,247) (20,657)

Income tax provision (benefit) $ 2,871 3 2,706 $ (21,464)




The income tax provision (benefit) is different from that which would be obtained by applying the
statutory Federal income tax rate (35%) to income before income tax expense. The items causing

this difference for the period are as follows:

Years ended December 31,
2001 2002 2003
(in thousands)

Provision at statutory rate $ 4,020 $ 5,919 $ (12,520)
Foreign provision in excess of federal

statutory rate 412 1,756 312
State income taxes, net of federal benefit (1,032) (730) (2,903)
EIE benefit (787) (2,848) (4,108)
Federal tax credits (2,509) (1,990) (2,123)
Tax exempt interest, net of disallowed expenses (38) - -
Non-deductible amortization of goodwill and

in-process research and development 2,869 56 56
Other (64) 543 (178)
Provision (benefit) at effective tax rate $ 2,871 % 2,708 $ (21,464)

Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for income tax
purposes. Significant components of Cymer’s net deferred tax assets are as follows:

December 31,
2002 2003
(in thousands)

Deferred tax assets:

Reserves and accruals not currently deductible $ 16,084 $ 15,250
Difference between book and tax basis of
inventory and property and equipment 6,156 4,606
Tax carryforwards 15,089 59,049
Tax effect of foreign transactions 6,726 7,169
Foreign deferred tax assets 732 2,067
Total gross deferred tax assets 44,787 88,141
Valuation allowance (2,951) -
Net deferred tax assets 41,836 88,141
Deferred tax liabilities (1,242) (6,023)
Net deferred tax assets $ 40,594 $ 82,118

In assessing the realizability of deferred tax assets, management considers whether it is more likely
than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. Based upon the level of
historical taxable income and projections for future taxable income, management provided a valuation
allowance of $3 million for the year ended December 31, 2002 related to the acquisition of ACX net
operating loss and credit carryforwards. The valuation allowance was released in 2003 due to the
merger of ACX into Cymer. The release of the valuation allowance generated a benefit to goodwill
and had no impact on the tax rate. Management believes that it is more likely than not that the results
of future operations will generate sufficient taxable income to realize the deferred tax assets for which
a valuation allowance has not been provided.

At December 31, 2003, Cymer had federal and state tax loss carryforwards of $106.6 milion and
$25.5 million, respectively, which begin to expire in 2018 and 2014, respectively. At December 31,

F-26



12,

2003, Cymer had federal and state tax credit carryforwards of $12.2 million and $10.3 million,
respectively, which begin to expire in 2018 and 2010, respectively.

It is Cymer's intention to reinvest undistributed earnings of its foreign subsidiaries and thereby
indefinitely postpone their remittance. Accordingly, no provision has been made for foreign
withholding taxes or United States income taxes which may become payable if undistributed earnings
of foreign subsidiaries were paid as dividends to Cymer.

Cymer benefits from a tax holiday in Korea where it manufactures certain products. The tax holiday is
scheduled to expire in nine years. The effect of the tax holiday has not had a material impact on the
Company’s net income and net income per share over the past year.

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

Leases ~ Cymer leases certain facilities under non-cancelable operating leases. The lease terms on
these facilities are through January 1, 2010 and provide for certain rent abatements and minimum
annual increases and options to extend the terms. In addition, Cymer has a land lease in Korea with a
lease term through December 2020. This land lease is currently exempt from lease payments
because the building meets certain investment and operational criteria of the Korean government.
Cymer also leases certain equipment under capital and short-term operating lease agreements. The
capital leases expire on various dates through 2004.

Rent expense under operating leases is recognized on a straight-line basis over the life of the related
leases and totaled approximately $5,052,000, $4,545,000 and $4,773,000 for the years ended
December 31, 2001, 2002 and 2003, respectively.

The net book value of assets under capital leases at December 31, 2002 and 2003 was approximately
$112,000 and $61,000, which are net of accumulated amortization of approximately $187,000 and
$86,000, respectively.

Total future minimum lease commitments under operating and capital leases are as follows (in
thousands): :

Years ending December 31, Operating Capital

2004 $ 4,507 $ 45
2005 3,808 -
2006 3,787 -
2007 3,782 -
2008 3,236 -
Thereafter 3,329 -
Total $ 22,450 45

Less amount representing interest -

Present value of minimum lease payments 45
Less current portion (45)
Long term obligations under capital leases 3 -

Patent License Agreement — Cymer has a patent license agreement for a non-exclusive worldwide
license to certain patented light source technology. Under the terms of the agreement, Cymer is
required to pay royalties ranging from 0.25% to 5.0% of gross sales and leases as defined depending
on the total amounts attained subject to an annual maximum of $100,000. Royalty fees totaled
$100,000 in each of the years ended December 31, 2001, 2002 and 2003.
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Employee Savings Plan — Cymer has a 401(k) plan that allows participating employees to contribute
a percentage of their salary, subject to annual limits. The Plan is available to substantially all full-time
United States employees. Effective January 1, 1997 through December 31, 1999, Cymer matched
100% of each eligible employee’s contributions, up to $500 per year. The Plan was amended
effective January 1, 2000 to include a matching contribution of up to 4% of each participating
employee’s compensation, not to exceed $4,000 per year. Under the Plan, Cymer contributed
$1,504,000, $1,438,000, and $1,558,000 for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2002, and 2003,
respectively. Effective January 1, 2004, the 401(k) plan was amended to increase the employer
matching contribution of up to 5% of each participating employee’s compensation, not to exceed

$5,000 per year.

Executive Deferred Compensation Plan — Cymer has an executive deferred compensation plan for
certain officers and key executives. Beginning in 2001, Cymer used corporate owned life insurance to
finance the plan. Compensation expense under this plan totaled $684,000, $367,000 and $391,000
for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2002 and 2003, respectively. Cymer’s liability for deferred
compensation totaled $1,691,000 and $2,250,000 as of December 31, 2002 and December 31, 2003,
respectively, and is included in other liabilities. The cash surrender value of the life insurance policies
totaled $487,000 and $869,000 as of December 31, 2002 and 2003, respectively, and is included in

other assets.

Executive Option and Group Health Coverage Extension Program — Cymer has an executive
option and health coverage extension program for eligible executives who meet certain minimum
service and age requirements. This program is designed to provide extended benefits to eligible
executives who retire and cease to serve Cymer on a full-time basis. Under the terms of the plan, the
executive acts as a consultant to Cymer for a term of four years. in return for these services, the
program allows the executive to continue vesting in his or her stock options after the retirement
separation date. The program also provides the executives with specified health insurance
continuation benefits. As of December 31, 2002, there were no executives active in this program. In
2003 one former executive was participating in this program. The cost for this program was not
material in 2003.

Retirement Plan — Cymer Japan has a retirement benefit plan for all Cymer Japan employees and
Japanese directors. The plan consists of a multi-employer retirement plan covering all employees and
life insurance policies covering all employees and Japanese directors. The multi-employer retirement
plan was established under the Small and Medium-Size Enterprise Retirement Benefits Cooperative
Law. Cymer Japan also has a Retirement Allowance and Pension Plan. Expense under these plans
totaled $492,000, $247,000, and $526,000 for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2002 and 2003,
respectively.

Korea Customs Investigation — The customs agency in Korea has asserted that parts being
imported into Korea from Cymer’s corporate office in San Diego were classified improperly and some
used items which were returned to San Diego were valued improperly during the period from 1997
through July 2003. Although Cymer does not agree with these assertions, Korean customs has begun
to assess and require payment from Cymer on additional duties related to shipments during this time
period. As a result of these assertions and discussions that Cymer has had to date with the customs
agencies in Korea, Cymer accrued a liability of $4.7 million of which $2.5 million was paid to Korean
customs through December 31, 2003. The remaining accrual is included in accrued patents, royalties
and other fees in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. The expense resulting from this
recorded liability was included in cost of product sales in the accompanying consolidated statements
of operations as they pertain to potential costs associated with the shipment of Cymer’s product.

' Contingencies — Cymer is party to legal actions in the normal course of business. Based in part on
the advice of legal counsel, management does not expect the outcome of legal action in the normal
course of business to have a material impact on the financial position or results of operations of
Cymer.

F-28



13.

14.

Cymer’s former Japanese manufacturing partner, Seiko, and one of Cymer’'s Japanese customers
have been notified that Cymer’s light source systems in Japan may infringe certain Japanese patents
held by another Japanese company. Cymer has agreed to indemnify its former Japanese
manufacturing partner and its customers against patent infringement claims under certain
circumstances, even after the termination date of the contract manufacturing agreement. Cymer
believes, based upon the advice of counsel, that Cymer’s products do not infringe any valid claim of
the asserted patents or that Cymer is entitled to prior user rights in Japan.

PATENT LICENSE AGREEMENTS

In May 2001, Cymer acquired certain patents for use in its DUV light source applications. The total
consideration for this transaction was $10.3 million, which included a $6.0 million cash payment and
the issuance of 200,000 warrants valued at $4.3 million. The warrants were valued on the date of
issuance using the Black-Scholes pricing mode! using the following assumptions: 87% volatility, 5.0%
risk-free interest rate and 4.6 years expected life. The total value of these patents are being
amortized over eight years which represents the remaining life of the patents purchased under the
agreement. The amortization of these patents is included in cost of product sales on the
accompanying statements of operations since they are used in products which are currently being
shipped to customers.

In November 2003, Cymer acquired the rights to the same list of patents as in the May 2001
agreement but for a different field of use, for a total amount of $6.0 million in cash. Instead of DUV
light source applications for the patents, this license agreement allows Cymer to use the patents for
EUV and other future applications. The total value of these patents are being amortized over a period
of 5.5 years which represents the remaining life of the patents purchased under the agreement. The
amortization of these patents is included in research and development expenses on the
accompanying statements of operations since the field of use involves applications which are still in
the research and development stages. As of December 31, 2002 and December 31, 2003, the net
carrying amount of these patents was $8.2 million and $12.7 million, respectively.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Collaborative Arrangement — Cymer has a collaborative arrangement with a Japanese company
that was also a stockhoider of Cymer until 2000. The arrangement, entered into in August 1992,
includes a product license agreement and contract manufacturing agreement. The general provisions
of these agreements are as follows:

Product License Agreement — Cymer granted to the stockholder the exclusive right in Japan and the
non-exclusive right outside Japan to manufacture and sell one of Cymer's products and subsequent
enhancements thereto. Cymer also granted the stockholder the right of first refusal to license and fund
the development of new technologies not developed with funding from other parties. In exchange for
these rights, Cymer received up-front license fees and was entitled to royalties of 5% on related
product sales through September 1999, after which the royalty rate was subject to renegotiation. The
license agreement also provides that product sales between Cymer and the stockholder will be at a
15% discount from the respective companies’ list price. The agreement terminates in August 2012.
There was no activity under this agreement in 2001, 2002 and 2003.

Contract Manufacturing Agreement — The stockholder agreed to manufacture for Cymer certain
products and Cymer was required to purchase a specified percentage of its total annual product, as
defined, from the stockholder. Cymer and this stockholder mutually agreed to the termination of this
contract effective March 31, 2003.
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Cymer made $3.1 million, $2.0 million and $351,000 in purchases under this agreement in 2001, 2002
and 2003, respectively. In addition, Cymer had payables due under this agreement of $155,000 at
December 31, 2002 and no payables due at December 31, 2003.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Cymer designs, manufactures and sells excimer light source systems, replacement parts, and support
services for use in photolithography systems used in the manufacture of semiconductors with critical
features sizes. In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 131, “Disclosure
about Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information”, Cymer currently considers its business to

consist of one reportable operating segment.

Geographic Information

Presented below is information regarding sales to unaffiliated customers, operating income (loss)
from operations, long-lived assets, all other identifiable assets and total identifiable assets, classified
by operations located in the United States, Japan, Korea, Taiwan, Singapore, the People’s Republic of
China (“China”), and the Netherlands. Long-lived assets includes net property, plant and equipment
by geographic area. Cymer sells its excimer light sources in Japan through Cymer Japan.
intercompany sales to the subsidiaries are generally priced between 90% to 95% of the price of
products sold to outside customers. All significant intercompany balances are eliminated in
consolidation. The majority of corporate costs and expenses are incurred in the United States and are
reflected in the operating loss from the United States operations.

Year ended December 31, 2001

(in thousands)

Korea, Taiwan,
Singapore, China,

United States Japan and the Netherlands Consolidated
Sales to unaffiliated customers $ 124,325 $ 111,407 $ 33,712 $ 269,444
Operating income (loss) (57,531) 57 545 13,527 13,541
Long-lived assets 85,707 2,939 1,773 90,419
All other identifiable assets 333,793 29,866 29,268 392,927
Total identifiable assets $ 419,500 $ 32,805 $ 31,041 $ 483,346

Year ended December 31, 2002

(in thousands)

Korea, Taiwan,
Singapore, China,

United States Japan and the Netherlands Consolidated
Sales to unaffiliated customers $ 119,708 $ 122,917 $ 47,535 $ 290,160
Operating income (loss) (62,033) 61,990 18,706 18,663
Long-lived assets 102,695 3,231 6,283 112,209
Ali other identifiable assets 585,539 36,312 32,827 654,678
Total identifiable assets $ 688,234 $ 39,543 $ 39,110 $ 766,887

F-30




Year ended December 31, 2003
(in thousands)

Korea, Taiwan,
Singapore, China,

United States Japan and the Netherlands Consolidated
Sales to unaffiliated customers $ 92608 $ 116,531 $ 58,357 $ 267,496
Operating income (loss) (109,800) 46,831 . 28,335 (34,634)
Long-lived assets 120,452 1918 6,479 128,849
All other identifiable assets 581,929 46,650 45,793 674,372
Total identifiabie assets $ 702,381 $ 48,568 § 52,272 $ 803,221

16. SELECTED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDITED)

QUARTERLY RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
(in thousands, except for per share data)

Years ended December 31, 2002

1st 2nd 3rd 4th
Revenues $ 61,983 $ 73669 $§ 84,484 $ 70,024
Operating income (loss) $ 6944 $§ 9265 § 6571 $ (4,117)
Net income (loss) $ 4088 % 6,550 $ 6,855 $ (3,897)
Basic earnings (loss) per share $ 013 § 019 § 020 § (0.11)
Diluted earnings (loss) per share $ 012 $ 018 § 020 $ 0.11)

Years ended December 31, 2003

1st 2nd 3rd 4th
Revenues $ 67599 § 62416 $ 64,437 § 73,044
Operating income (loss) $ (2,702) $ (16,974) $ (20,160) $ 5,202
Net income (loss) $ (3362) $ (5193) $ (8519) $ 1674
Basic earnings (loss) per share $ (010) $ (0.15) $ (0.24) $ 0.05
Diluted earnings (loss) per share $ (0’.10) $ (0.15) § (0.24) % 0.04

17. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On January 26, 2004, Cymer signed a research and development agreement with Intel Corporation
(“Intel”). Total funding under the agreement is $20.0 million and will provide Cymer with funding over
the next three years to accelerate the development of production-worthy EUV lithography light
sources. The funding to be received from Intel under this agreement is milestone based and will be




netted against Cymer’s total research and development expenses in the period that the milestone is
completed.

As part of the research and development agreement signed with Intel, Cymer also agreed to provide
Intel with indemnity against any infringement of the intellectual property rights of any third party arising
from Intel's purchase and/or use of EUV source systems, such indemnity to be negotiated as part of
the purchase agreement.

On February 2, 2004, Cymer acquired 6% of the remaining 25% minority interest in its majority-owned
subsidiary, Cymer Korea. Cymer paid a total of $2.0 million for this 6% interest and recorded $1.3
million of the $2.0 million as an additional investment in Cymer Korea and the remaining $711,000 as
goodwill. This transaction increased Cymer’s total interest in Cymer Korea from 75% to 81%.

On February 4, 2004, Cymer signed an intellectual property license agreement with Intel for the use of
certain Intel patents and trade secrets related fo the EUV technology. Under the terms of this
agreement, Cymer will pay license fees to Intel if Cymer is successful in commercializing an EUV
lithography light source capable of high volume manufacturing by the end of the second quarter of
2008. The license payments under this agreement are triggered in the quarter in which Cymer
successfully ships the first complete high volume manufacturing EUV source system. Upon shipment
of this first unit, Cymer is to pay Intel $1.25 million in license fees per quarter for a period of sixteen
quarters. The quarterly license amounts paid to Intel will be related to Cymer’'s sale of EUV light
source systems and, as a result, will be recorded as cost of sales in the period that the payment is
made to Intel.
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CYMER, INC.

SCHEDULEII

VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
Years Ended December 31, 2001, 2002 and 2003
(in thousands)

Balance at Additions (net) Balance at

Beginning of Year (1) Deductions End of Year
Allowance for Doubtful
Year ended December 31, 2001 $ 2,078 $ 182 $ (63) $ 2,197
Year ended December 31, 2002 $ 2,197 $  (399) $ (42) $ 1,756
Year ended December 31, 2003 $ 1,756 $ 250 $ (42) $ 1,964
Inventory Allowance
Year ended December 31, 2001 $ 15,000 $ 6,047 $ (7.519) $ 13,528
Year ended December 31, 2002 $ 13,528 $ 6,658 $ (5.,486) $ 14,700
Year ended December 31, 2003 $ 14,700 $ 4,324 $ (6,996) $ 12,028

(1) Includes reversals of allowance amounts as deemed necessary.

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.




Exhibit 23.1

Independent Auditors’ Consent

The Board of Directors
Cymer, Inc.:

We consent to incorporation by reference in the registration statements (No. 333-16559, No. 333-99975,
No. 333-88616, No. 333-67491, No. 333-48242, No. 333-69736, No. 333-58554 and No. 333-109544) on
Form S-8 and in the registration statements (No. 333-88496 and No. 333-38101} on Form S-3 of Cymer,
Inc. of our report dated January 23, 2004, except for note 18, which is as of February 4, 2004, relating to
the consolidated balance sheets of Cymer, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2002 and 2003, and
the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the
years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2003, which report appears in the December 31, 2003
Annual Report on Form 10-K of Cymer, Inc. Our report refers to a change in the Company’s method of
accounting for goodwilt in 2002.

s/ KPMG LLP

San Diego, California
March 10, 2004
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Offices

Headquarters

Cymer, Inc.

17075 Thornmint Court
San Diego, CA 92127
United States

Tel: +1-858-385-7300
Fax: +1-858-385-7100
www.cymer.com

Cymer B.V.

European Headquarters
Planetenbaan 16-BG

3606 AK Maarssen

The Netherlands

Tel: +31-346-58-2000
Fax: +31-346-58-2002

Cymer Japan, Inc.
Cosmos Motoyawata Bldg.
4-17-8, Minamiyawata,
Ichikawa-shi

Chiba 272-0023 Japan

Tel: +81-47-393-5668
Fax: +81-47-393-5672

Cymer Korea, Inc.
Eoyeon-Hansan

Industrial Park

833-1 Hansan-Ri,
CheongBook-Myeon
Pyungtaek, KyungKi-Do
Korea 451-833

Tel: +82-31-680-1500
Fax: +82-31-680-1510

Cymer Semiconductor
Equipment (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.
King Tower 806

No. 28, Xinjingiao Rd.

Pudong, Shanghai 201206
China

Tel: +86-21-5032-6300
Fax: +86-21-5032-6301

Cymer Singapore Pte., Ltd.
101 Thomson Road

#23-01 United Square
Singapore, 307581

Tel: +65-6259-9792
Fax: +65-6259-9036

Cymer Southeast Asia Ltd
3F, No. 49, Lane 2
Kuang-Fu Road, Sec. 2
Hsin-Chu, Taiwan, R.O.C.
Tel: +886-3-573-9960
Fax: +886-3-573-9961
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Cymer, Inc.
17075 Thornmint Ct.
San Diego, CA 92127

United States
Tel: +1-858-385-7300
Fax: +1-858-385-7100

WWW.CyImer.com




